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EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK

The finoncial institution of the European
Community, the European Investment
Bank (EIB) was created by the Treaty of
Rome establishing the European Eco-
nomic Community. Its Statute constitutes
a Protocol to the Treaty.

The members of the EIB, an autonomous
public institution within the Community,
are the Member States of the EC, who
have all subscribed to the Bank's capi-
tal.

Within the Community

The EIB's main activity is to contribute
concretely, by financing capital projects,
to the balanced development of the
Community, while adhering to the rules
of strict banking management.

As stipulated in Article 20 of its Statute,
the EIB pays particular heed to ensuring
“that its funds are employed as ration-
ally as possible in the interests of the
Community “.

OBJECTIVES

In keeping with the guidelines laid down
in Article 130 of the Treaty of Rome and
in the light of developments in Com-
munity policies, projects considered for
EIB financing must contribute towards
one or more of the following objectives:
— fostering the economic advancement
of less favoured regions;

— improving transport and telecom-
munications infrastructure of benefit to
the Community;

As a Community institution, the EIB
continuously adapts its activity to devel-
opments in Community policies; it pro-
motes greater economic and social
cohesion and attoinment of the single
market.

As a bank, it works in close collabor-
ation with the banking community both
when borrowing on the capital markefs
ond when financing capital projects.

— protfecting the environment and the
quality of life as well as safeguarding
the Community's  architectural and
natural heritage;

— promoting urban development;

— attaining Community energy policy
objectives;

— enhancing the international com-
petitiveness of industry and integrating
it at Community level;

— supporting the activities of small and
medium-sized enterprises through glo-
bal loans.

PROJECTS

EIB loans may be granted to public or
private borrowers in the following pro-
ductive sectors:

— infrastructure,

— energy,

— industry, services and agriculture.

The EIB finances large-scale projects by
means of individual loans concluded
directly or through various financial
intermediaries. Ventures undertaken by

The EIB grants loans mainly from the
proceeds of its borrowings, which,
together with "own funds” (paid-in capi-
tal and reserves), constitute its “own
resources”.

Outside the Community, EIB financing
operations are conducted both from the
Bank's own resources ond, under man-
date, from Community or Member
States' budgetary resources.

small ond medium-sized enterprises as
well as smaller-scale schemes involving
infrastructural works, more efficient use
of energy or environmental protection
are generally funded through global
loans.

Global loans are similar to temporary
lines of credit opened with banks or
financial institutions operating at Euro-
pean, national or regional level. These
intermediaries draw on the proceeds to
finance a variety of ventures promoted
by small ond medium-sized enterprises
or local authorities, in accordance with
the EIB's criteria.

In all cases, the EIB finances only part of
the investment costs, supplementing the
borrower’s own funds and other sources
of finance. Loans may not normally
exceed 50% of investment costs.

The EIB also helps to finance investment
programmes in conjunction with the
oper-ations of the structural Funds and
of the Community's other financial
instruments. Loans from the EIB may be
used in association with national or
Community grant aid.
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Project appraisal, conducted by EIB
staff, is designed to verify the econo-
mic benefits and viability of the scheme
concerned. The appraisal looks into the
project’s consistency with the EIB's own
financing criteria and Community policy
guidelines as well as its compliance with
environmental protection and procure-
ment regulations. The promoter's finan-
cial situation and cash flow projections
along with security offered are also
exomined.

Once the appraisal is completed, the
EIB's Board of Directors, acting on a
proposal from the Management Com-
mittee, decides on the granting of a
loan, taking account of the opinions of
the Member State concerned and the
Commission of the European Communi-
ties.

FINANCIAL TERMS AND
CONDITION

Maturity

The EIB grants long-term loans of which
the maturity depends on the type of
project concerned and its technical life.
It generally varies between 7 and 12
years for industrial projects and may
extend to 20 years or more for infra-
structural schemes.

Currencies

Depending on the format selected,
loans are disbursed at par:

— in a single currency, particularly o
Member State's currency or the ecu;
— in several currencies, either in stan-

dard mixes, with maturity, compaesition
and interest rate all fixed in advance, or
in varying mixes tailored to borrowers'
preferences and the EIB's holdings.

Interest rates

The EIB's first-class credit rating
("AAA”) enables the Bank to raise funds
on the keenest terms available at the
time.

As it operates on a non-profit-making
basis, the EIB onlends the funds bor-
rowed by it on the markets at a rate,
adapted continuously, reflecting each
currency's market cost plus a margin of
0.15% to cover the Bank's operating
costs.

Rates may be set either upon signature
of the finance contract or on the oc-
casion of each disbursement (open-rate
contract). Loans are granted mainly at
fixed rates, but may be granted at rates
revisable after a set period of gener-
ally 4 to 10 years. They may also carry
variable rates, possibly convertible into
fixed rates.

The method adopted for setting rates is
the same for all countries and sectors.
The EIB does not accord interest sub-
sidies, although these may be granted
by third parties.

Outside the Community

The second paragraph of Article 18(1) of
the Statute provides for financing oper-
ations by the EIB outside the Com-
munity on authorisation
from the Bank's Board of Governors.

unaNIMous

Authorisation is given:

— case by case, for financing for cer-
tain types of project of particular im-
portance to the Community (satellite
communications or energy supplies, for
example);

— as ceiling amounts in the case of
financing in individual countries or
groups of countries under agreements,
conventions or decisions on Community
financial cooperation.

The EIB's field of operations under the
latter heading covers:

— sixty-nine African, Caribbean and
Pacific States signatories to the Lomé
Convention (ACP States) plus the Over-
seas Countries and Territories {OCT);

— twelve non-member Mediterranean
Countries;

— five Central and Eastern European
Countries.

Special arrangements apply to finan-
cing provided outside the Community,
the terms and conditions of which are
established by various financial cocper-
ation agreements.
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Key data

(million ecus)

Total financing provided
From own resources .

of which loans .

of which guarantees .
From other resources

Within the Community .
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FOREWORD

The Treaty on European Union, signed at the beginning of 1992, sets the stage for the future development of the Com-
munity. The European Investment Bank, as the Community's financial institution, has important tasks to perform in this
new situation and thus also takes on a particular measure of responsibility in establishing the Union.

The economic objectives of European Union to a large extent coincide with the central concerns of EIB activity, which
is geared to balanced development of the Community and the strengthening of its economic potential. The Protocol
on economic and social cohesion reaffirms that the main task of the Bank is to provide funding for economically
worthwhile investment in regions lagging most seriously behind in their development. In addition, the Treaty calls for
a common policy in areas in which the Bank is already heavily committed and of which it has pertinent experience:
the creation of trans-European transport, telecommunications and energy supply networks, increasing industrial com-
petitiveness, environmental protection and Community development cooperation with third countries.

In 1991, by raising 13.7 billion ecus on capital markets and signing finance contracts worth 15.3 billion ecus, with effec-
tive disbursements of the some order, the EIB mobilised a greater volume of funds than any other international
financial institution. Thanks to its top-ranking position on international financial markets, it is to a large extent able
to raise funds for investment projects of value to the Community on the finest terms available at the time. The EIB
complements the activity of the banking sector by putting its professional know-how and special knowledge of the
Community to use for projects meriting support. In the Community in 1991, the EIB assisted the implementation of
investment totalling around 60 billion ecus; this represents about 6% of gross fixed capital formation for the year.

Despite major changes in the political and financial environment, the volume of funding was increased by nearly 15%
over the preceding year. In the process, while maintaining its dual role as a bank and a Community institution, the
EIB was able to demonstrate its adapfability in accomplishing its specific task. Mindful of the need fo cater for likely
developments in its operating environment, the Bank enlisted the cooperation of external consultants to conduct a
review of its management structure and methods and prepared corresponding adjustments.

The EIB will thus promote the integration process in the Community, not so much by changing its criteria and pri-
orities as by stepping up its activity. It is in a position to mobilise extensive resources required for attainment of the
internal market without burdening the budgets of the Member States. At the same time, through its strict selection
and appraisal criteria, it channels resources in an economically efficient manner to regions and secfors in need of
support.

The European Investment Bank will continue to take resolute action in modernising and integrating the European econ-
omy in a single economic area, which will benefit from the disappearance of exchange rate risks following the infro-
duction of a single currency and from cost savings due to economies of scale. In so doing the EIB will, as in the past,
bring professional rigour to bear in examining projects submitted for financing in order to ensure their economic
viability, while subsequently monitoring their implementation; the Bank will thereby continue in the future to make
a contribution to the balanced development of the Community.

Ernst-Ginther BRODER
President
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THE EIB, THE COMMUNITY'S FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

The task of the European Investment
Bank, the Community's financial insti-
tution, is to contribute to the balanced
development, integration and economic
and social cohesion of all Member
Countries. For this purpose, it deploys
banking resources in helping tfo finance
capital profects.

Finance contracts signed in 1991
totalled 15 339 million (') (13 393 million
in 1990), an increase of 14.5% at cur-
rent prices and 9.1% in real terms (see
note 7, page 114).

Total lending from own resources came
to 15 165 million (13 326 million in loans
and guarantees in 1990), while oper-
ations using other resources totalled
174 million (68 million in 1990).

(') Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts given in this
report are expressed in ecus and have been rounded to
the nearest million.

Bank activity in 1991

It also provides funding for projects in
non-member countries with which the
Community has concluded economic
and financial cooperation agreements.

In order to carry out its task, the EIB
grants loans from its own resources and
provides guarantfees (see note 5fe),

In order to cater for a particularly high
level of demand for disbursements
(15316 million, compared with 11 811
million in 1990), the EIB substantially
increased its borrowings on capital
markets, which amounted to 13672
million, 24% more than in 1990 (10 996
million). About 75% were raised in the
form of fixed-rate, long and medium-
term funds, 25% through floating-rate
operations and 8% through short-term
operations.

Community currencies accounted for
three quarters of aggregate borrow-

page 114). In addition, it provides
financing, in particular outside the
Member States, under mandate and
from Community or Member States’
budgetary resources; such operations
are accounted for off balance sheet in
the Special Section (see page 66).

ings, with the ecu heading the list for the
third 'yeor in a row (2.5 billion, or over
18% of the total).

Loans for investment within the Com-
munity amounted to 14 423 million, of
which 39 million from NCI resources
(see list, page 83). This represented a
rise of 14% on a year-on-year basis,
giving an average annual increase of
15% since the accession of Spain and
Portugal ot the beginning of 1986.

Table 1: Contracts signed in 1991 and from 1987 to 1991
Breakdown by origin of resources and project location

1991 1987-1991
million million

ecus % ecus %

Loans from own resources and guarantees. 15 165.1 98.9 57 184.1 973
within the Community 14 383.6 93.8 54 543.2 928
of which: loans 14 383.6 93.8 54 305.7 924
of which: guarantees — - 237.5 0.4
outside the Community 781.5 5.1 2 640.9 45
Financing from other resources 1737 1.1 1 586.8 27
within the Community 39.2 03 9228 1.6
outside the Community 1345 0.9 664.0 1.1
Grand Totdl 15 338.8 100.0 58 770.9 100.0
within the Community 14 4228 94.0 55 4659 94.4
outside the Community 916.0 6.0 3 305.0 5.6

1



Projects were financed in every Com-
munity Member State, with a marked
increase in activity in Spain, Portugal
and Greece, but also in Germany in the
wake of growth in operations in the
eastern Lander.

The Treaty on European Union has
underscored the key part played by the
EIB in promoting economic and social
cohesion.

Financing in the less-favoured regions
of the Community, foremost among the
EIB's objectives, rose by over one billion,
accounting for 63% of the total. About
nine tenths of the corresponding
amount related to projects located in
areas eligible for Community structural
measures.

Contracts signed

million ecus

1991 1990
115.6 Belgium 206.3
538.6 Denmark 564.7
1.300.1 Germany 863.5
366.9 Greece 176.3
23425 Spain 1942.0
1924.4 France 1684.6
237.0 Ireland 077
4000.7 Italy 38557
28.6 Luxembourg 11.8
1754 Netherlands 2453
1002.1 Portugal 7947
2090.5 United Kingdom 1892.8
300.4 Other () 225.1
14 422.8 Community 12 680.5
389.5 ACP-OCT 153.4
241.5  Mediterranean 344.5
285.0 CEEC 215.0

15 338.8 Total 13 393.4

(") Projects located outside the Member States but of
benefit to the Community (see note 5(d), page 113).

The EIB helps to strengthen the econ-
omic and social cohesion of the Com-
munity by its support for the develop-
ment of infrastructure facilitating com-
munications  between the various
regions and fostering links of European
importance. It also finances investment
needed to protect the environment and
improve the quality of life, to develop
the Community's energy resources and
to diversify its sources of supply.

In supporting productive sector invest-
ment, the EIB attaches particular import-
ance to strengthening the international
competitiveness of Community industry
and to promoting small and medium-
sized enterprises (SMEs), whose dyna-
mism and impact on employment are
very considerable, especially at regional
level.

The pattern of Bank financing bears wit-
ness to the EIB's commitment to achiev-
ing Community objectives and its abili-
ty to offer loan” conditions tailored to
the needs of project promoters.

Outside the Community, financing
amounted to 916 million (713 million in
1990), with 781.5 million from own
resources and 134.5 million from budget-
ary resources (see list, page 91). Entry
into force of the Fourth Lomé Conven-
tion led to a marked recovery in funding
in the African, Caribbean and Pacific
(ACP) countries and in the Overseas
Countries and Territories (OCT). Further
operations were conducted in the
Southern Mediterranean countries, as
well as in the Central and Eastern Euro-
pean Countries (CEEC) eligible for Bank
financing.

Activity by country (%) in 1991 ()

CEEC: 1.9% BE: 0.8%
Mediterranean: 1.6% DK: 3.5%
ACP-OCT: 28%— DE: 8.5%
Other: 2.0%

GR: 2.4%
GB: 13.6%

. BB 158%

PT: 6.5%
NL: 1.1%
LU: 0.2% /

FR: 12.5%
IT: 26.1% IE: 1.5%

(") For abbreviations, see note 3, page 113.
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1991: A YEAR OF LOW
GROWTH

For all the OECD countries, 1991 was a
vear of low growth following the slow-
down noted in 1990. Overall, economic
activity increased by only about 1%,

compared with 2.6% in 1990 ().

In the Community, economic growth
dipped significantly to 1.3% in 1991, as
against 2.8% in 1990, 3.3% in 1989 and
4% in 1988. This performance, the worst
since 1982, was attributable to a varie-
ty of causes, different growth rates and
contrasting national situations, with
Germany (%) (+3.4%) at one extreme
and the United Kingdom (—2.2%) at the
other.

GDP, inflation, employment,
unemployment

(annual variations)

Unemployment

Inflation

s

0 g

—

_o | Employment

Economic background

The signs of a slackening apparent in
several countries from mid-1990, after
four years of uninterrupted growth,
were heightened in the first half of 1991
by the Gulf Crisis, the US recession, the
dramatic events in Central and Eastern
Europe and, in particular, the break-up
of the Soviet Union. As a result, world-

After showing aggregate growth of
nearly 30% over the past five years,
total investment fell markedly, register-
ing its first drop in real terms (—0.3%)
since the recession of 1981-1982. This
deterioration essentially reflects busi-
expectations  with regard to
demand trends coupled with continuing
high interest rates and a declining
return on capital investment.

ness

Expenditure on capital equipment as a
proportion  of investment
showed a similar decline: —0.9% (com-
pared with increases of 4.9% in 1990
and 8.5%, 11.2% and 8.3% in the three
preceding years). It fell in real terms in
Ireland (—5%), Spain (—2.5%), France
(—3.4%) and Italy (—1.1%) and particu-
larly in the United Kingdom (—12%).
Capital spending continued to increase
in the other Member Countries, albeit at
a generally lower rate than in previous
years. The growth rate remained high in
Germany at around 9%.

overall

The deteriorating economic situation
and high interest rates also affected
investment in the construction sector,
which fell in real terms in 1991.

In these circumstances, job creation
slowed significantly (4 0.3%, compared
with +1.6% in 1990), but with marked
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wide growth was very poor (approxi-
mately 0.2%), with a further flagging of
international trade and worsening
unemployment.

variations from one country to another.
Unemployment  worsened, affecting

(') The macro-economic statistics in this chapter are
drawn from the 1992-1993 economic budgets pub-
lished by the Commission and from the “Economic
Outlook of the OECD”. They remain provisional
despite having been revised at the beginning of
1992. The rates of growth for physical aggregates
are expressed in volume terms. Inflation is meas-
ured by the consumer price index. See page 114 for
list of abbreviations.

() Apart from trade and current balance statistics
as from 1991, the data for this country do not take
account of the new German Lénder.

GFCF and its components

(annual variations)
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8.9% of the working population, com-
pared with 8.3% in 1990.

Inflation gained momentum (5.2% as
against  4.8%), although with lesser
national  differentials: the position
improved somewhat in countries with
above-average levels and generally
worsened in those with the lowest rates.

The Community's trade balance, in rela-
tive equilibrium in 1990, recorded a defi-
cit equivalent to about 0.5% of GDP in
1991. This reversal reflects the shrinkage
in Germany's trade surplus deriving
from accelerating domestic demand in
the wake of unification. The current
account deficit could also widen to
—0.9% of GDP, compared with —0.3%
in 1990.

GDP

(growth rates)

BE DK DE GR ES FR IE IT LU NL PT GB EC
[Jiess [ 1989 990 B 1991

GDP/GNP
international comparisons

(annual variations)
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In the United States, where the slow-
down in economic activity grew more
pronounced, the GDP growth rate be-
came negative (—0.7%, as against
+0.9% in 1990). Dwindling public and
private consumption and the fall in pri-
vate investment and house-building,
exacerbated by the tightening of consu-
mer credit and bank loans, brought
about this recession despite relaxation
of monetary policy. Inflationary pres-
sures were slightly reduced, while the
federal budget deficit again worsened.
Unemployment rose significantly.

A further reduction in imports combined
with export buoyancy helped to reduce
the trade deficit (—1.3% of GDP, com-
pared with —2% in 1990) and brought
the current account virtually into bal-
ance (—0.2% of GDP), partly as a result
of payments connected with the Gulf
War.

While economic growth slackened in
Japan, it remained at a high level,

e L L

14

especially during the first half. GNP
rose by 4.4%, compared with 5.6% in
1990.

Investment grew by 4.6%, as against
10.8% in 1990. Private consumption and
public spending remained buoyant.
Industrial output declined, reducing the
rise in imports of manufactured goods
and raw materials at the very time when
exports to Europe and South-East Asia
were increasing.

The trade and current account surpluses
should therefore increase to about 2.9%
and 2.2% of GDP respectively, thus
reversing the shrinkage of recent years.

The situation in Africa remains critical.
While the structural reforms introduced

Current balances
(in relation to GDP)

T T T T T w
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by the majority of countries have some-
times slightly reduced financial imbal-
ances, they have so far had little real
impact on production, economic growth
and living standards. In 1991, the
increase in GDP again fell short of pop-
ulation growth.

Moreover, internal economic difficulties
were aggravated by an unfavourable
international climate — particularly
worsening terms of trade and virtual
stagnation of export markets — as well

Trade balance fob:
international comparisons

(as % of GDP)
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as by generally straitened circumstan-
ces and political crises in many coun-
tries.

In the non-member Mediterranean
countries, the unsettled international
climate and weak demand from the
more developed countries helped to
delay the recovery expected after the
Gulf War. It proved impossible to offset
the loss of migrant workers' remit-
tances, the breakdown of trade with
parties to the conflict, the drop in
financial aid from the Gulf States and
the appreciable reduction in tourist
flows.

These adverse factors contributed to a
deterioration in the public finances and
current balances of most of the coun-
tries concerned. Signs of recovery
emerged only towards the end of the
year.

In Central and Eastern Europe as a
whole, GDP is estimated to have fallen
by around 15% reflecting, in particular,
the collapse of trade between the for-
mer Comecon countries — accompa-
nied by a dramatic rise in unemploy-
ment and spiralling inflation — and the
implementation of restrictive monetary
and fiscal policies.

As regards external accounts, the
reduction in imports offset the decline in
new export outlets, some of which could
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be found within the Community under
EC association agreements. While con-
siderable international financial aid
continued to be provided, inward pri-
vate investment remained very modest.
Western support continues to be vital to
the success of the difficult process of
structural adjustment and stabilisation
at both economic and political levels.

Indicative commodity prices
(constant 1985 dollars)
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1991 CAPITAL INCREASE: 57 600 MILLION

The doubling of the EIB's subscribed capital to 57.6 billion
ecus decided by the Bank's Board of Governors in June 1990
became effective on 1 January 1991.

The Bank’s Statute stipulates that aggregate loans and guar-
antees outstanding may not exceed 250% of subscribed cap-
ital. This ceiling has been raised to 144 billion ecus. The
amount outstanding which, at the end of 1990, was approx-
imately 62 billion ran to some 72.7 billion at the end of 1991,
corresponding to just over half the statutory ceiling. Hence,
the EIB has sufficient headroom to develop its financing
activities.

This capital increase demonstrates the continued support of
the EIB's shareholders, the Member States, and serves as
added endorsement of its first-class credit rating.

The increase in subscribed capital is due to conversion of
1225 million into paid-in capital by way of a transfer from

the Additional Reserves (') and to new subscriptions by the
Member States totalling 27 575 million.

Called capital has been increased from 2 596 million to 4 321
million by the injection of the above 1225 million plus 500
million from the Member States’ subscriptions to be paid in in
ten equal semi-annual instalments as from April 1994 (see
financial statements, page 64).

As from 1 January 1991, therefore, the amount paid in or to
be paid in corresponds to 7.5% of subscribed capital.

(') Article 24 of its Statute requires the EIB to build up a reserve fund of
up to 10% of its subscribed capital. This statutory reserve reached its ceil-
ing of 2 880 million ecus at the end of 1986. In accordance with Article 24,
the Board of Directors has set aside additional reserves which totalled
about 4 billion ecus at the end of 1990, annual operating surplus included.

Growth in the Bank’s subscribed capital

million
ecus
150 000 = ———
ssssses - Maximum outstanding
e Actual level of
outstanding lending
- Subscribed capital
100 000 =———

1958 7173 76 798 86 91

Increases
date million ecus
Initial subscribed capital
(BE, DE, FR, IT, LU, NL) 1958 1000
Increase 26.04.1971 + 500
Accession (DK, IE, GB) 01.01.1973 + 525
Increase 01.01.1976 + 151875
Increase 01.01.1979 + 354375
Accession (GR) 01.01.1981 + 11250
Increase 31.12.1981 + 7200
Increase ‘ 01.01.1986 +12108.15
Accession (ES, PT) 01.01.1986 + 229185
Increase 01.01.1991 + 28 800
Subscribed capital 57 600

Total at 01.01.1991
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1991: A YEAR OF PROGRESS
TOWARDS EUROPEAN UNION

The agreement reached at Maastricht in
December 1991 on the Treaty on Euro-
pean Union marks an imporfant new
stage in the Community'’s development.
Adoption of this new Treaty, covering
both Economic and Monetary Union
and Political Union, will entail gradual
but profound, changes including, in par-
ticular, infroduction of a single currency
managed by an independent central
bank. This agreement bears witness fo
Europe’s potential role on the world
scene at a time when mojor upheavals
are occurring in remarkably swift suc-
cession.

As the Community’s financiol instifution,
the European Investment Bank will con-
tribute towards implemeniation of the
key Community guidelines defined or
endorsed ot Maastricht. If commands
the necessary financial resources for
this task inasmuch as the Member States
have underscored their confidence in its
future role by deciding fo double its
copifal on 1 January 1991. It alfso com-
mands the necessary expertise, as borne
out by the growth in the range and vol-
ume of its activity in 1991 both within
and outside the Community. In working
towards this goal it can cooperafe
closely with the other parties involved,
ie. the Commission of the European
Communities, national and regional
authorities, project promoters and the
banking community.

Community context

The Treaty on European Union contains
several passages relating to the Bank
(see box article, page 18), especially Title
XIV on Economic and social cohesion
{Articles 130c to 130e). This Title is
accompanied by a protocol in which the
contracting parties refer explicitly to the
EiB’s action “for the benefit of the poor-
er regions”, stress that it “should con-
tinue to devote the majority of its
resources to the promotion of economic
and social cohesion” and declare their
“willingness to review the capital needs
of the European Investment Bank as
soon as this is necessary for that pur-
pose’’.

As part of measures to strengthen co-
hesion, the Maastricht Council decided
to create a new instrument, the Cohe-
sion Fund. Its purpose is to contribute
towards implementing projects in the
fields of the environment and trans-
European transport networks in Mem-
ber States with a per capita GNP of less
than 90% of the Community average
(Partugal, Greece, Ireland, Spain) which
apply an economic convergence pro-
gramme,

This Fund will be set up before the end
of 1993; its resources and modus
operandi, together with those of the
different structural Funds and their
overall coordination, will be examined
in 1992 ot the same time as the 1993-
1997 financial arrangements as a whole.

As with the reform of the structural
Funds implemented since 1989, in coop-
eration with the EC Commissicn, and in
conjunction with those Funds and the
new Cohesion Fund, the EIB will con-
tinue to support the advancement of
regions whose development is lagging
behind (Objective 1), areas seriously

affected by industrial decline (Objective
2), rural creas {Cbjective 5b) or areas
benefiting from specific Community pro-
grammes. To this end, the EIB will be
able to contribute to the financing of
progremmes and projects supported by
the Community funds, notably in ac-
cordance with Arficle 198e.

Regional development thus remains
the Bank's top priority; in 1991, 63% of
its loans were given over to projects fur-
thering this objective, more than nine-
tenths in areas targeted by the Com-
munity funds.

The timetable for establishment of
Economic and Monetary Union pro-
vides for transition to the second stage
on 1 January 1994 characterised by the
complete liberalisation of capital move-
ments, o measure well under way since
the start of the first phase on 1 July
1990. It also provides for the creation of
a European Moaonetary Institute (EMH)
which will help to coordinate monetary
policy and, in conjunction with the Com-
mission, monitor progress towards con-
vergence with regard to inflation, pub-
lic finances, exchange-rate stability and
long-term interest rates. Also note-
worthy in.this connection was the entry
of the escudo into the exchange rate
mechanism of the European Monetary
System on 6 April 1992,



During this second phase, “the currency
composition of the ecu basket shall not
be changed’’ and the EMI “shall facili-
tate the use of the ecu and oversee its
development, including the smooth
functioning of the ecu clearing system”’.

Lastly, in the third phase of Economic
and Monetary Union, the value of the
ecu shall be irrevocably fixed and it
shall replace the national currencies.
The European Central Bank and the
European System of Central Banks will

become operational. The European
Council shall, octing by a qualified
majority, not later than 31 December
1996, set the date for the beginning of
the third stage. If by the end of 1997 the
date for the beginning of the third stage

THE EIB AND THE TREATY ON EUROPEAN UNION

The Treaty on European Union, signed on 7 February 1992
and still subject to ratification by the Member States, amends
the Treaty of Rome and establishes the European Community
in place of the European Economic Community.

The objectives of the “European Community” are spelt out in
Article 2:

“The Community shall have as its task, by establishing a com-
mon market and an economic and monetary union and by
implementing the common policies or activities referred to in
Articles 3 and 3q, to promote throughout the Community a
harmonious and balanced development of economic activi-
ties, sustainable and non-inflationary growth respecting the
environment, a high degree of convergence of economic per-
formance, a high level of employment and of social protec-
tion, the raising of the standard of living and quality of life,
and economic and social cohesion and solidarity among
Member States”.

Several articles relate directly to the EIB. Article 4b (former
Article 3 of the Treaty of Rome) makes express mention of
the EIB as an institution: “A European Investment Bank is
hereby established, which shall oct within the limits of the
powers conferred upon it by this Treaty and the Statute
annexed thereto”.

Article 129 of the Treaty of Rome, which defined fhe- EIB,
remains largely unchanged but becomes Article 198d.

Article 130 of the Treaty of Rome, which determines the EIB's
objectives, becomes Article 198e and is supplemented by o
new paragraph providing for the EIB to finance investment
programmes as well as projects:

“In carrying out its task, the Bank shall facilitate the
financing of investment programmes in conjunction with
assistance from the structural Funds and other Community
financial instruments”.

The EIB's contribution to Community policies emerges clearly
from the role entrusted to it in promoting economic and social
cohesion. In the protocol annexed to the Treaty, the contract-
ing parties:

“.. Noting that the EIB is lending large and increasing
amounts for the benefit of the poorer regions;...

Reaffirm their conviction that the structural Funds should con-
tinue to play a considerable part in the achievement of Com-
munity objectives in the field of cohesion;

Reaffirm their conviction that the European Investment Bank
should continue to devote the majority of its resources to the
promotion of economic and social cohesion, and declare their
willingness to review the capital needs of the Furopean
Investment Bank as soon as this is necessary for that purpose;

Reaffirm the need for a thorough evaluation of the operation
and effectiveness of the structural Funds in 1992, and the
need to review, on that occasion, the appropriate size of
these Funds in the light of the tasks of the Community in the
area of economic and social cohesion;...”.

As regards economic convergence, Article 104¢(11) provides
that the EIB may be invited “to reconsider its lending policy”
towards Member States which continue to run excessive
public deficits. '

Lastly, the section on development cooperation states that
the EIB “shall contribute, under the terms laid down in its Stat-
ute,” to attainment of the objectives set by the Council in this
area (Article 130w).
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has not been set, this stage shall start
on 1 January 1999 between the Mem-
ber States satisfying the necessary con-
ditions, the United Kingdom having the
right to decide whether, or not, to join.

The EIB's sustained efforts to promote
use of the ecu have thus assumed fresh
importance.

For the third year in a row and in a rap-
idly expanding market, the ecu again
headed the list of currencies borrowed
by the Bank (2.5 billion, or 18.3% of the
total).

The EIB continued to be the leading
issuer in this currency on international
markets, on which it has accounted for
approximately 10% of ecu issues since
1981. At the end of 1991, its outstand-
ing  ecu-denominated  borrowings
amounted to 9.3 billion or 15.7% of
aggregate outstanding  borrowings,
compared with 14.4% a year earlier. The
EIB is also the principal lender in this
currency; in 1991, loan disbursements in
ecus amounted to over 3 billion (19.7%
of the total), with outstanding ecu-
denominated loans of 11.5 billion at the
end of the year.

Currency variations in relation to the ecu from 1982 to 1991
(on the basis of statistical conversion rates — Tst quarter 1982 = 100)
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The Bank's role in launching the multi-
lateral clearing system managed by the
Ecu Banking Association also calls for
mention. The EIB is a founder member
and holder of one of the vice-presi-
dencies of this association which was
established in 1985.

As the Treaty approved at Maastricht
covers most of the major economic sec-
tors, it overlaps to a considerable extent
with the Bank's activities. This is the case
with support for the less-privileged
regions described earlier and with sev-
eral of the areas mentioned below.

Completion of the internal market and
strengthening of economic and social
cohesion call for the creation and devel-
opment of ““trans-European networks
in the areas of transport, telecommuni-

cations and energy infrastructures”

| wmsmaen JPY

1988 1989 1990 1991

(Title XIl) to enable both economic oper-
ators and the Community's citizens to
benefit from the setting up of an area
without internal frontiers.

The various measures envisaged to pro-
mote this objective include in particular
L i 3

feasibility studies, loan guarantees or
interest rate subsidies’”’ as well as assis-
tance under the aforementioned Co-
hesion Fund.

EIB backing for such projects has risen
considerably in recent years. In 1991,



INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FOR A BETTER ENVIRONMENT

The Treaty on European Union stresses the essential role of
the Community in “preserving, protecting and improving
the quality of the environment” and calls on it to promote
“measures at international level to deal with regional or
worldwide environmental problems”.

Environmental protection is a major EIB objective and sup-
port for projects designed to reduce or prevent pollution has
accounted for 15% of financing over the past five years.

Financing constraints are frequently cited as the main obsta-
cle to more rapid progress on investment in environmental
projects. Whilst such constraints are undoubtedly important,
shortcomings in project design and preparation procedures
can also be the root cause of significant problems.

For these reasons, the Bank has, for some years now, been
participating international cooperation pro-
grammes to foster projects promoting environmental protec-
tion and sustainable development.

in various

In 1988, the EIB and the World Bank jointly drew up an
Environmental Programme for the Mediterranean (see
1989 Annual Report, page 16). Following an analysis of the
problems, their causes and possible solutions, this initiative
led in 1990 to the introduction of a technical assistance pro-
gramme (METAP), which also involved the EC Commission
and the United Nations Development Programme.

The main aim of the programme is to prepare viable invest-
ment projects. To this end, some fifty studies, mainly pre-fea-
sibility, are under way and should lead to implementation of
environmental projects meeting Community policy priorities
or, in the case of non—member countries, those of the
Community's redirected Mediterranean policy.

Experience gained in the context of METAP has proven val-

vable in the organisation of other international cooperation
schemes supported by the EIB in conjunction with the EC
Commission and other multilateral financial institutions
(World Bank, European Bank for Reconstruction and Devel-
opment, Nordic Investment Bank).

Two major initiatives are currently under way:

— Environmental Rehabilitation of the Baltic. This action
was launched in September 1990 by an intergovernmental
conference of the countries bordering the Baltic Sea. A series
of studies is being conducted, essentially intended to spell out
a priority investment programme, dealing with the major river
basins and coastal regions. The EIB, in ligison with the EC
Commission, is supervising the study on the Oder basin,
which covers a third of Poland as well as parts of Czechoslo-
vakia and eastern Germany.

— Protection of the Elbe. Following signature of the Con-
vention on the Protection of the Elbe by Germany, Czecho-
slovakia and the EC Commission in December 1990, setting
up an International Commission, studies aimed at identifying
investment priorities in this river basin were initiated. Under
arrangements similar to those adopted for the Oder basin,
the EIB, together with the EC Commission and the Inter-
national Commission for the Protection of the Elbe, is super-
vising the study on the upper Elbe Basin. The purpose of this
research is to pinpoint suitable environmental improvement
projects of benefit not only to the basin itself but also to
downstream areas and the North Sea.

Lostly, the EIB is involved in establishing an environmental
programme for the Danube Basin. Following on from the
Prague Intergovernmental Conference in June 1991, this
initiative is being coordinated by the EC Commission. It, too,
should serve to identify suitable investment projects.
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the Bank provided approximately 4 bil-
lion for European infrastructural pro-
jects.

As regards the future, the Bank has
decided to step up its assistance for fos-
tering projects of particular interest.

This will involve support for feasibility
studies, in conjunction with the relevant
bodies, particularly the EC Commission.

The EIB has continued its activities ben-
efiting environmental protection and
the quality of life. Finance for projects
aimed at improving air and water qual-
ity, waste management and the urban
environment ran to 1.9 billion in 1991,
The Bank also plays an active part in
various initiatives in the field of inter-
national cooperation (see box article,
page 20). This action falls within the
framework defined by the Treaty (Title
XVI), which emphasises the international
dimension of Community environmental

policy.

In the Community itself, the Treaty calls
for “a high level of protection” taking
into account the diversity of situations
in the various regions of the Com-
munity. A number of important initia-
tives were launched in 1991, in particu-
lar those on urban water treatment,
reducing CO, emissions and introduc-
tion of a special new budget instrument,
LIFE.

*
E

The international competitiveness of
Community industry is crucial to its
future development. The Treaty on Euro-
pean Union underlines the need to
establish conditions conducive to this
development by action aimed at speed-
ing up adjustment to structural changes,
at creating an environment promoting
the growth of enterprises, particularly
SMEs, as well as cooperation between
them, and at fostering better exploita-
tion of the potential offered by innova-
tion, research and development.

The finance made available by the EIB
in the industrial sector is designed to
contribute towards these objectives. In
1991, almost 3.5 billion was advanced,
with around half going to projects in the
less-privileged regions.

In 1991, more countries expressed a
wish to strengthen their ties with the
Community as it pressed ahead with
integration.

The conclusions to the European Coun-
cil meeting in Maastricht state that
“negotiations on accession to the Euro-
pean Union on the basis of the Treaty
now agreed can start as soon as the
Community has terminated its nego-
tiations on Own Resources and related
issues in 1992”. Sweden submitted an
application for membership in 1991,

In addition, negotiations with the seven
EFTA countries led to an agreement on
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the creation of the European Eco-
nomic Area which is intended to pro-
mote the free movement of goods, per-
sons, services and capital between the
Community and the EFTA countries. This
agreement should provide for these
countries to fund a “financial mech-
anism” of 500 million in grants and in
amounts required for 3% interest sub-
sidies on loans from the EIB's own re-
sources totalling up to 1.5 billion. These
amounts will be intended for projects in
regions lagging behind in their develop-
ment: Greece, Portugal, the island of
Ireland and areas of Spain eligible
under Objective 1 of the structural Funds.
The EIB will be responsible for adminis-
tering this mechanism after a draft EIB-
EFTA cooperation agreement has been
submitted to the Board of Governors.

Following the upheavals in Central and
Eastern Europe, the Community has
seen its role in that region change. In
accordance with the decision of the
Board of Governors taken in April 1991,
the EIB's areo of activity has been
extended to Czechoslovakia, Bulgaria
and Romania. On 16 December 1991,
the Community signed European
Agreements with Poland, the Czech
and Slovak Federal Republic and Hun-
gary. In addition to the gradual estab-
lishment of free-trade relations, these
agreements cover different aspects of
cooperation and include a financial
component allowing these countries
continuing access to EIB financing.



The EBRD, of which the EIB is a founder
member and shareholder, also com-
menced operations in April 1991 (see
1990 Annual Report, pages 18-19).

In the non-Community countries in
which the EIB has long been involved,
the main event of 1991 was the entry
into force on 1 September of the Fourth
Lomé Convention signed with 69 Afri-

can, Caribbean and Pacific States and
the corresponding Council Decision on
the Overseas Countries and Territories.
The main provisions of the new Conven-
tion were outlined in the 1989 Annual
Report (page 43).

In the Mediterranean Countries, the
Bonk continued to commit the funds
available under the existing Financial
Protocols and to prepare the next
generation of protocols which should
enter into force in 1992. Under the
“redirected  Mediterranean  policy”,
development aid to these countries will
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henceforth include an additional “non-
protocol” component for financing
regional and environmental protection
projects.

The dramatic events in Yugoslavia in
1991 led to a complete suspension of
Community and EIB aid to that country
and postponement of the introduction
of the Third Financial Protocol.



FINANCING

Contracts signed:
In 1991 the Bank
signed finance con-
tracts for a total
of 14423 million:
14 384 million from its own resources
and 39 million from NCI resources. The
total breaks down as to 10 665 million
in individual loans and 3 758 million in
global loans concluded with financial

87 88 82 90 9l

Sectoral analysis

The breakdown by sector of individual
loans and allocations from current glo-
bal loans during the financial year high-
lights vigorous growth in funding for
energy, while operations in the other
sectors remained on a par with their

1990 levels.

In the field of infrastructure (5971 mil-
lion and 44% of activity, compared with
6 033 million in 1990), the transport sec-
tor attracted 2633 million, with the
emphasis on railways, for which the
amount of lending doubled, roads and
motorways and air transport, mostly for
regional centres. Loans totalling 1882
million were devoted to telephone net-
works and telecommunications by satel-
lite and international cable links.

THE EIB IN 1991:

PROVIDED WITHIN THE COMMUNITY

intermediaries to finance small and
medium-scale ventures (see box article,
page 24).

Financing provided: In order to give a
more operational overview of activity
during the financial year, the analysis of
Bank operations by sector and by objec-
tive presented below encompasses indi-
vidual loans (10 665 million) and alloca-

Funding for water and waste manage-
ment schemes amounted to 1140 mil-
lion, while 316 million went in support of
miscellaneous (urban
development and small-scale capital
equipment projects implemented by
local authorities).

infrastructure

The energy sector accounted for 3 102
million, or 23% of activity, almost twice
as much as in 1990 (1582 million).

Financing provided in 1991:
sectoral breakdown

million ecus
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tions from global loans under draw-
down (2 921 million, corresponding to
10 271 allocations). Financing within the
Community thus amounted to 13 656
million, compared with 12 246 million in
1990; lending from own resources
accounted for 13 585 million and from
NCI resources, 71 million.

Operations focused on the development
of oil and natural gas deposits and nat-
ural gas transmission and distribution
(1728 million), electricity generation

and the construction of high and
medium-voltage  transmission  grids
(1 084 million).

Financing for industry, the service
sector and agriculture totalled 4 582
million (33% of activity), compared with
4 631 million in 1990. Individual loans to
industry (1900 million) spanned a wide
range of investment, notably in the
motor vehicle industry, aeronautical
engineering, chemicals, especially phar-
maceuticals and petrochemicals, metal-
working, the paper industry, foodstuffs
and electronics. In the service sector
(166 million), most of the loans were for
tourism.



GLOBAL LOANS WITHIN THE COMMUNITY

Global loans enable the
Bank to channel credit to
small and medium-scale

Global loans as a proportion
of activity by country

(average annual amount, 1987-1991)
%

100 4 ventures  which, for
b3 reasons of operational
& efficiency, it would not be
w0t o possible  to  finance
. . through individual loans.
GR
W01 o . The scope of global
W B . loans, in operation since
W15 d
. 1968 to respond to the
IEGB
ope ; ' N— needs of SMEs, has grad-
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ually been extended in
order to adjust to chang-
ing needs and to brocder-based Community policies. Small
and medium-scale ventures ore supported on a decentra-
lised basis by opening such lines of credit with financial inter-
mediaries operating at national or regional level, who deploy
the proceeds in agreement with the Bank and in keeping with
its economic, technical and_.fincncicl criteria ().

million ecus

A broad spectrum of operations ...

Most global loans serve more than one Community
policy objective. They provide funding:

— in the less-favoured areas: for SMEs in industry, the ser-
vice sector (notably tourism) and agriculture and for small
infrastructure projects;

— outside these areas: for investment by SMEs in industry
and tourism;

— in addition, irrespective of location: for small and medi-
um-scale ventures helping to introduce or to develop
advanced technology; for investment according with Com-
munity energy policy and environmental protection objec-
tives; and, to a lesser extent, for investment in transport
infrastructure of Community relevance.

Cooperation with the banking system haos been steadily
extended and links are maintained with close on a hundred
financial institutions or commercial banks in 11 countries. In
1991, the EIB concluded global loans totalling 3 758 million,
including 39 million from NCI IV resources, as against 3 296
million in 1990.

... with priority going to SMEs

Altogether, 10271 allocations totalling 2 991 million were
advanced in 1991 (8 445 allocations totalling 2 861 million in
1990) from global loans already under drawdown. The major-
ity centred on SMEs: 9 548 allocations for 2 354 million. The
firms concerned were located in almost all of the Member
Countries and were very much present in the less developed
regions in particular (5 932 allocations totalling 1 362 million).
Bonk operations outside these areas have been funded from
own resources (3 305 allocations for 914 million in all) and
from NCl resources (311 allocations amounting to 71 million).
The sectoral breakdown of the recipient smaller businesses
shows é 153 allocations totalling 1 823 million given over to
industry, 3 241 to the service sector (502 million) and 154 to
agriculture and fisheries (22 million). The breakdown of SMEs
according to numbers employed shows a concentration
among firms with fewer than 50 workers (over half the
amount and almost three quarters of the number of alloca-
tions).

Since 1987, more than 32 000 SMEs have received allocations
totalling over 8.8 billion, representing 50% of aggregate
lending to industry and the service sector (2 794 allocations
amounting to 873.4 million in 1987 and 9 548 allocations
amounting to 2 354 million in 1991).

In addition, in 1991 allocations totalling 368 million helped
to implement small-scale infrastructure, chiefly transport and
water management schemes, while a further 107 million went
to fund smaller items of equipment for energy production and
distribution.

A breakdown of dllocations by country, region, sector and
objective is provided in Tables E, F, H, | and L {see page 97
et seq.).

(") As the period during which global loan proceeds are committed can

extend over several financial years, the total figure for new global loans
contracted in 1991 differs from that for allocations approved during the
year. Moreover, as many global loans relate to more than one sector and
serve more than one objective, a complete picture of the different sectors
and objectives covered can be gained only after analysis of loans allocat-

ed in full.
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Financing for the productive sector
included 9 793 allocations (2 516 million)
from global loans under drawdown for
small and medium-scale ventures in
industry (1 966 million) and the service
sector (528 million), and also for activi-
ties linked to agriculture or fisheries
(22 million).

Covering on average a quarter of total
costs, overall EIB financing provided for
projects within the Community helped

L
N

N
W

to support aggregate investment esti-
mated, on the basis of provisional
figures, at some 59 billion.

Capital investment part-financed by the
EIB — covering between 20% and 50%
of costs, depending on the project —
accounted for 5.7% of aggregate invest-
ment within the Community.

The private sector accounted for about
52% of investment financed in 1991. In
the energy and infrastructure fields,
30% of projects financed were within
the private sector, whereas only a few
years ago funding in these areas cen-
tred almost exclusively on public sector
projects.

Similarly, 88 % of financing for projects
in industry and services and all invest-
ment covered by global loan allocations
fell within the private sector.

Taken as a whole, industrial and service-
sector projects financed by the EIB
could, according to present indications,
conitribute directly to the creation of
53000 permanent jobs, nearly two
thirds of them in the less favoured
regions; three quarters of these jobs
should be created through investment in
SMEs.

Table 2: Financing provided within the Community in 1991
(individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans)

Breakdown by country and sector

{million ecus)
Sector

Industry,
Individual Global loan services, Communi- Cther infro-
Total loans allocations agriculture Energy cations structure
Belgium 237.3 210 2163 2163 — 210 —
Denmark 558.6 487.8 70.8 21.1 294.9 166.3 6.3
Germany 765.8 588.4 177 .4 3226 185.2 189.0 69.0
Greece 166.5 100.1 66.4 57.8 30.7 53.1 249
Spain 2 3865 20707 3158 658.3 3385 12261 163.6
France 18168 1011.4 805.4 699.5 36.6 978.4 102.4
Ireland 250.0 237.0 130 13.0 55.5 1227 588
ltaly 38242 2794 1 030.1 1 538.0 11664 690.8 429.0
Luxembourg 28.6 28.6 — — — 28.6 —
Netherlands 1943 125.4 68.9 109.4 171 65.0 2.8
Portugal 9623 809.2 153 38%2.0 113.5 4411 18.7
United Kingdom 21642 2 0905 737 487.5 765.4 330.6 580.6
Other {} 300.4 300.4 _ — 97.9 2025 —
Total 13 655.5 10 664.6 2 990.9 4 5825 3101.7 45152 1 456.1

(') Financing akin to operations within the Community (see note 5 1d), page 113)
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Breakdown by Community policy objective

As the Community’s financial institution,
the EIB has been given the task of
financing investment helping to fulfil
one or more of the objectives enshrined
in the Treaty of Rome, spelled out in the
Treaty on European Union or embodied
in Community policies drawn up over
the years.

This chapter highlights the EIB's contri-
bution to each of these objectives. As
illustrated by the diagram below, cer-
tain projects financed by the Bank
simultaneously serve various Com-
munity policy objectives. Consequently,
no meaningful totals can be had from
adding together the figures given here-
after, particularly those in the tables.

9000
6000 .

Regional develop-
3000 ment: individual

loans and global
loan allocations for
investment contrib-
uting to regional development totalled
8 492 million (7 440 million in 1990),
reflecting growth of 14%. They account-
ed for 63% of financing provided with-
in the Community.

87 88 89 90 91

A significant proportion of this funding
relates to projects also serving other
Community policies, especially in terms
of improving the environment, estab-

Table 3: Regional development

Individual Global loan
Total loans allocations
million million million

ecus ecus ecus number

Grand Total 8 491.6 6 671.0 1820.6 6415
Energy 13628 1302.1 60.7 61
Transport 19424 1760.2 182.2 175
Telecommunications 1592.0 15920 — —
Water, sewerage 660.8 542.7 118.1 163
Other infrastructure 209.1 517 574 39
Industry, agriculture 23161 1303.1 1013.0 4037
Services 408.4 19.2 389.2 1940

lishing EC transport, telecommuni-
cations and energy networks or rein-
forcing the international competitive-

ness of Community industry.

With a view to implementing structural
Fund measures and to securing a satis-
factory balance between loans and
grants, the EIB helped to draw up
indicative financing plans for the Com-
munity  Support  Frameworks and

Certain projects financed serve
several Community policy
objectives

(1991)

Environment

Community
infrastructure

Regional development

\.
N

Energy Industry
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to prepare several operational pro-
grammes.

The EIB lent 7 798 million in all (more
than nine tenths of Bank financing for
regional development) for projects in
regions targeted for support under the
Community's structural Funds: 4 300 mil-
lion for projects in Objective 1 regions,
3100 million for those in Objectives 2
and 5b regions and 391 million for pro-
jects tying in with various other specific
Community measures (notably the Inte-
grated Mediterranean Programmes).

In the less favoured regions, 52% of
funding centred on infrastructure (4 404
million), in particular projects to
improve telecommunications and inter-
regional transport links. Funding made
available for industry, services and agri-
culture amounted to 2 725 million (32%),
including 1 402 million for SMEs; oper-
ations in support of energy installations,



notably electricity transmission/distri-
bution facilities, totalled 1 363 million.

The EIB has provided financing totalling
23 billion for projects in regional devel-
opment areas since activation of the
reform of the structural Funds in 1989.

Lending under this heading as a pro-
portion of total activity varies according
to the sector and country concerned, as
can be seen from the graphs below.

The high proportion of regional invest-
ment in the transport and telecommuni-
| cations sector is explained by the rela-
tively underequipped level of regions
lagging behind in their development
and also by the fact that most Europe-

Regional development financing
as a proportion of overall activity
by sector

(1989-1991)

million ecus
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Table 4: Regional development and structural Fund action

1989 1990 1991 Total
Financing within the Community
from own resources
(million ecus) 11 020.0 12 1742 13 5845 367787
of which: regional development
(million ecus) 7 071.0 7 439.5 8 491.6 23 002.1
% 64 61 63 63
Breakdown of regional
development (%)
Areas targeted for Community action 89 89 92 90
under the structural Funds 84 84 87 86
in line with Objective 1 48 46 51 48
in line with Objectives 2 and 5b 36 38 36 38
under specific measures 5 5 5 4
Areas attracting additional national aid
and multi-regional projects n n 8 10

an communications networks serve
assisted and non-assisted areas alike.

Ireland, 2.3% in Spain, 2.1% in ltaly
(3.7% in the Mezzogiorno) and 1.5% in
Greece.

The country-by-country  breakdown
shows regional development financing
as a proportion of total activity ranging
from a quarter or a third in the Benelux
countries to 100% in countries qualify-
ing as a whole for operations conduc-
ted under Objective 1 of the structural
Funds.

These differences between countries are
apparent when overall EIB financing is
viewed in relation to aggregate capital
investment within the Community. It can
be reckoned that individual loans and
global loan allocations accounted in all
for about 1.3% of gross fixed capital
formation throughout the Community in
1991. This figure is far higher in the
less prosperous countries or regions:
approximately 6.7% in Portugal, 4% in
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Regional development financing
as a proportion of overall activity
by country
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4000
3000 .
European infra-
2000 .
[ structure: major
1000 ! . .
capital investment
9]
& 8 8 9 91 programmes under
way for several

years are helping steadily to build up
fully-fledged European communications
networks, thereby serving achievement
of the single market and the objective
of balanced regional development. They
have contributed much to sustaining
demand for funding to assist Com-
munity infrastructure projects. Loans in
this field have shown a steady increase

Table 5: Community

infrastructure "

million ecus
Grand Total () 38027
Transport 1778.9
Railways 10637
Roads and motorways 280.9
Airlines 3549
Other 79.4
Telecommunications 1 882.3
Conventional networks 14943
Satellites and international cables  388.0
Sundry infrastructure 1415

(") Of which global loan allocations: 3 million

from 1728 million in 1988 to 3117.1
million in 1990 and 3 803 million
1991, i.e. twice as much as in 1988.

in

Financing for the improvement of tele-
communications networks amounted to
1 882 million. Loans under this heading
contributed to the upgrading of inter-
national telephone installations
Spain, ltaly, Portugal, ireland, Denmark
and the United Kingdom; they also went
towards satellites relaying telecommuni-
cations and television signals, the con-
tinuation of the Eutelsat international

in

THE EiIB AND MAJOR RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE

The creation of an area without internal frontiers — an
objective restated by the Treaty on European Union —
should produce a further increase in passenger and goods
transport throughout the Community. This development
will affect neighbouring countries, with which agreements
aimed at promoting trade have been concluded (agree-
ments on the European Economic Area with the EFTA
countries, European Agreements with certain Central and
Eastern European Countries).

Two worrying aspects of the present situation are traffic
volumes and peak periods. The rapid growth in air traffic
has led to many air corridors reaching saturation point
and to flight backlogs. Certain sections of Europe’s road
and motorway network are increasingly subject to con-
gestion. Other factors are the adverse environmental
consequences and the absence of any  significant
improvement in road safety.

Analysis of these problems at Community level led to the
decision at the Maastricht European Council to promote
trans-European networks, especially in the transport sec-
tor, and to provide financial support for their establish-
ment (see page 19). These networks are intended to link
the Community's principal economic centres but should

also promote accessibility as a factor in regional devel-
opment, for example by reducing journey times to the
Community's peripheral areas. In addition to the provi-
sion of infrastructure, management and coordination
problems between the various modes of transport should
also be considered from o European standpoint.

Rail transport could have an important role to play in this
context. Thus, at the end of 1991, the Council of Trans-
port Ministers adopted a master plan for the introduction
by 2010 of a system of high-speed passenger trains, with
priority for certain key sections. The plan also stresses the
need to develop combined rail-road goods transport
facilities.

The Community rail network comprises some 150 000 km
of track, compared with nearly 3 million km of roads and
motorways, whilst on a fifth of the passenger network the
maximum speed is 70 km/h. Moreover, the railways were
planned on a national basis and the differences in track
gauge, clearance and rolling stock and signalling stan-
dards are well known. Major investment in infrastructure
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sotellite  communications programme
and the laying of an optical fibre cable
linking France, Portugal and Morocco.

Lending for transport infrastructure
totalled 1 779 million. It covered large-
ly trunk road/motorway and, to an
increasing extent, railway projects in
France, Greece, Spain, Portugal and
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Denmark. Major works financed includ-
ed the Great Belt bridge, the Channel
Tunnel and parts of the European
high-speed train network in France and
Spain. Funds were also advanced for
promoting combined rail/road transport
(intermodal freight terminals and asso-
ciated developments).

The EIB continued to support capital
investment by Community airlines with a
view to renewing their fleets through the
purchase of aircraft built in Europe,
often with EIB funding, or elsewhere.
The Bank also helped to uprate airport
capacity (Germany and the United King-
dom) and to improve air traffic control
and air safety.

(continued from page 28)

During this period, various loans were provided for
improving conventional network sections:
as well as action to harmonize rolling stock and stan-
dards, particularly signalling, are therefore called for if
the stated objectives are to be achieved.

— in Spain, the core network linking Madrid, Valencia
and Barcelona and Madrid, Galicia and Irdn and lines to
Portugal;

*
* %

— in Portugal, around and between Lisbon and Oporto
The EIB has gradually increased its funding for Com-  and lines to Spain;
munity rail networks, providing nearly 3 billion between
1986 and 1991, including 1.1 billion in 1991. Slightly more
than 1 billion of these loans relate to the Channel Tunnel
and the first phase of work on the Great Belt link in Den-

mark.

— in the United Kingdom, links to Cambridge and Nor-
wich;

— in Greece, the Athens-Thessaloniki-ldomeni route with
associated loans for renewal of rolling stock;

The majority of the other projects financed are designed
both to upgrade routes of Community interest and to pro-
vide support for assisted areas. Three high-speed rail lines
have benefited from Bank funding of nearly 700 million:

— in Denmark, electrification of the Nyborg-Odense line
and modernisation of various parts of the network.

— in France, the TGV-Atlantique line, which is to be
extended towards Spain via Bordeoux, and the TGV-
Nord line towards Brussels, which will also connect up
with the Channel Tunnel and from there the United King-
dom;

In close conjunction with its project financing operations,
the EIB is involved in the Commission's activities on devel-
opment of o European high-speed train network. Coop-
erating with the Commission and other partners, the EIB
will also be able to provide support for studies to be con-
ducted, at the pre-feasibility stage for example, aimed at
promoting development of an efficient network.

— in Spain, the first high-speed line between Madrid and
Seville via Cordoba.
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2500

2000
1500 Protection of the
1000 environment:

500 increasing concern
for the protection
of the environment
and management of natural resources
hos led the Bank to sustain investment
in these oreas. EIB funding totalled
1 888 million in 1991. Of this, 163 mil-
lion was provided for some 150 small
or medium-scale ventures mainly in
Germany, ltaly and France, funded from
global loans and promoted by local
authorities or private enterprise; the
less favoured areas of the Community
accounted for 52% of lending for the
environment.

[
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More than half of the total advanced
was given over to wastewater collection
and treatment schemes or projects to
improve the quality of water, particu-
larly in ltaly and the United Kingdom,
where major programmes often cover-
ing vast river systems attracted support.
Many loans, however, encompassed a
broad spectrum of operations, espec-
ially solid waste collection/disposal and
land conservation.

A number of operations helped to
finance equipment designed to reduce

3000
2000 Energy objectives:
000 financing for invest-

ment meeting the
Community's  en-
ergy objectives to-
talled 2 743 million in 1991, compared

0
87 @ 89 %0 9

atmospheric pollution from coal-fired
power stations, incineration plants,
refineries and industrial factories.
Others assisted industrial concerns in
processing effluent and solid waste.

Several loans centred on improvements
to the vurban environment, either
through urban renewal (Dublin’s Temple
Bar areq, historic buildings and centres
in Umbria, Liguria, Ferrara and Trento)
or, particularly, through investment
aimed at relieving traffic congestion,
notably by means of underground rail-

Table 6: Environment

way lines in Madrid or schemes to
develop road tunnels, bypasses and car
parks in Barcelona, Marseilles and
Lyons.

It should be pointed out that investment
furthering other objectives may also
contribute to environmental protection
and that, in general, the Bank's ap-
praisal of all projects submitted to it
for funding is designed to ensure that
they are in no way detrimental to the
environment.

and quality of life

(million ecus)

Individual Global loan

Total loans allocations

Grand Total 1 888.0 17248 163.2
Environment 1 686.2 1 540.7 145.5
Woater conservation and management 10708 1 006.7 64.1
Waste management 537 302 235
Measures to combat atmospheric pollution 384.6 353.0 31.6
Other measures 1771 150.8 26.3
Urban development 201.8 184.1 17.7

with 1 477 million in 1990 and 1 913 mil-
lion on average from 1986 to 1990.

With a view to supporting expansion of
the Community's indigenous resources
(1 406 million), the EIB funded develop-
ment of oil and natural gas deposits in
the North Sea (British, Danish and
Norwegian sectors) and in ltaly, as well
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as hydroelectric power stations and nu-
clear fuel enrichment and reprocessing
facilities.



Funds advanced to promote diversifica-
tion of imports totalled 504 million. They
covered mainly power stations able to
run on imported coal and natural gas
pipeline networks.

Finally, lending for projects aimed at
more efficient use of energy came to

833 million, given over to combined

heat and power generation, natural
gas, electricity and heat transmission
networks together with energy-saving
schemes in industry.

Industrial  com-
petitiveness:
recent years have

seen awareness of
the  approaching
single market resulting in sustained
demand for finance for projects
designed to make Community firms
more competitive internationally, to
increase their integration on a Europe-
an scale and to promote capital invest-
ment by SMEs. This was particulorly the

ok .
& 8 8 90 9

Table 7: Energy objectives

{million ecus)

Individual Global loan

Total loans allocations

Grand Total 27427 26286 1141
Indigenous resources 1 405.6 1405.6 —
Hydroelectric 54.1 54.1 —
Nuclear 135.4 135.4 —
Oil and natural gas deposits 12161 1216, —
Import diversification 503.8 503.8 —
Natural gas 369.3 369.3 —
Coal 1345 1345 —
Rational use of energy 833.2 719.2 114
Heat/power generation 198.5 185.2 133
Electricity transmission/distribution 3283 31546 127
Natural gas distribution 141.4 91.2 503
Waste processing/other 16.5 14.1 2.5
More efficient consumption 1484 1130 354

case in 1990, a year characterised by a
substantial  volume of investment.
Against a more difficult economic back-
drop, Bank financing in 1991 ran to
3332 million (as against 3736 million
the previous year and 3028 million in
1989). About half of this amount went to
capital projects in assisted areas.

Small and medium-sized enterprises
benefited considerably from EIB sup-
port. Despite their greater sensitivity to
cyclical difficulties, SMEs in the Com-
munity as a whole attracted credit, from
global loans already on tap, totalling
2 354 million; drawn down in the form
of 9548 allocations {1 976 million and
7 447 cliocations in 1990, 2 014 million
and 7 605 allocations in 1989); 1369
million (58%) supported 5932 ventures
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Table 8: Industrial objectives

(million ecus)

Grand Total

33316

International competitiveness

and European

integration of large firms
Small ventures developing

advanced technology
Investment by SMEs

assisted areas

non-assisted areas

9235

541

2 3540
1 369.0
985.0




Table 9: Financing provided for small and medium-sized enterprises

Allocations in 1991 from ongoing global loans

(million ecus)

Regional non-assisted

Total development areas

own own NCI

Country number amount resources resources resources
Total 9 548 2 3540 1 369.0 914.0 no
Be|gium 280 216.3 64.5 128.1 237
Denmark 292 69.0 320 37.0 —
Germany 223 85.5 47.0 385 —
Greece 39 46.6 46.6 - —
Spain 578 250.6 1753 66.4 8.9
France 5924 5340 290.0 2182 258
Ireland 8 13.0 13.0 - —
ltaly 1756 8749 502.8 3715 0.6
Netherlands 49 66.1 14.1 520 —
Portugal 299 1261 126.1 — -
United Kingdom 100 71.9 57.6 23 12.0

undertaken by SMEs located in assisted
areas.

Small and medium-sized enterprises
represent a key component of the pro-
ductive apparatus in every Member
Country. Their economic importance,
especially in the case of the smallest
among them, is particularly great in
numerous regions lagging behind in
their development, and there are many
links between support for SMEs and
regional development. In addition, the
dynamism of SMEs, their capacity for
rapid adjustment and, in many cases,
their export performance make them
vital cogs in the changing mechanisms

of the Community's productive struc-
tures.

With a view to broadening its support
for SMEs, in 1991 the EIB approved the
first batch of allocations under the
“European” global loan facility offer-
ing scope for the institutions and banks
concerned to provide sub-loans in other
Member Countries. Hence, a metallurgi-
cal firm in Portugal attracted credit from
a global loan concluded with a German
financial institution, while two small
firms in Greece received allocations

from a credit line opened with a British
bank.

Individual loans targeting projects
designed to strengthen the inter-
national competitiveness of larger
firms or to increase their integration
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on a European scale totalled 924 mil-
lion (concentrated in the motor vehicle
and ceronautical engineering, pharma-
ceuticals and electronics industries).
About one third of these projects were
located in assisted areas and more than
two thirds of the loans related to pro-
jects implemented under cooperative
arrangements between companies in
several Member States, sometimes in
associgtion with partners from non-
member countries. More often than not,
these loans centred on projects intro-
ducing or disseminating innovative
technology and processes for the sector
in question. About ten of them covered
R&D activities.



In addition, small-scale ventures devel-
oping advanced technology in a very
wide variety of sectors benefited from
global loan allocations totalling 54 mil-
lion.

Some projects are not only the fruit of
financial and industrial cooperation but
also comprise investment implemented
in several countries. This applies, in the
aeronautical engineering sector, to the
Airbus jetliners, the various components

Lending to industry from 1987 to 1991: regional breakdown

for which are being made in a number
of Member States, as well as to a com-
pany producing thrust reversers for
aero-engines at factories in lle-de-
France and in England.

million ecus
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Financing operations by country

(Individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans)

BELGIUM

Finance contracts signed 1991: 115.6 million (1990: 206.3 million).
Individual loans: 21.0 million — Global loans: 94.5 million.
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 216.3 million.

Lending in Belgium was largely directed
towards small and medium-sized
enterprises. 280 SMEs, located in all
nine provinces and engaged mainly in
the metalworking "aond  mechanical
engineering, transport services, wood-

DENMARK

working and textile sectors, were fun-
ded during the year through global
loans concluded in 1990 and 1991.

Individual loans covered upgrading,
near Brussels airport, of the national air

Finance contracts signed 1991: 538.6 million (1990: 564.7 million).
Individual loans: 487.8 million — Global loans: 50.8 million.
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 70.8 million.

The bulk of activity in Denmark took the
form of loans for communications
infrastructure (166 million) and projects
in the energy sector (295 million).

New loans contributed towards devel-
oping oil and natural gas resources in
the Danish sector of the North Seq,
centring on commissioning of drilling

equipment in the Dan oilfield and the’

ongoing natural gas transmission and
storage programme. Loans totalling 20

GERMANY

million were provided for the extension
of district heating systems, wastewater
collection and treatment and urban
waste incineration in Frederiksberg,
Arhus and Amager.

The Bank continued to finance modern-
isation of the telecommunications net-
work (115 million). It supported the
creation of transport links between
Scandinavia and continental Europe by
granting loans (51 million) for several

Finance contracts sfgned 1991: 1 300.1 miflion (1990: 863.5 million).
Individual loans: 588.4 million — Global loans: 7.7 million.
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 177.4 million.

Bank activity in the eastern Ldnder,
which commenced in the last quarter of
1990, increased substantially in 1991 to
account for nearly 60% of financing
during the year and, in particular, more

than two thirds of individual loans.

Loans were provided for linking certain
gaslines to the Community natural gas
transmission network and renovating

traffic control centre facilities and con-
struction of the operational centre for
Eurocontrol, the European Orgenisation
for the Safety of Air Navigation.

sections of the North-South motorway
(E45), the bridge over the Great Belt
and its connectien with Copenhagen. It
also funded purchose of a flight simu-
lator for pilot training.

Lastly, the Bank helped to finance a
pharmaceuticals R&D  centre near
Copenhagen as well as 292 industrial
SMEs through global loans (69 million).

the existing distribution system (146 mil-
lion) as well as for restructuring and
modernising the motor vehicle industry
(167 million) notably with construction
of a paint shop at a new car factory in



Zwickau, one of the most important
industrial projects undertaken in these
Lander. in addition, 33 million was made
available for 165 small ventures either
in industry or aimed at increasing hotel
capacity for business travellers and tou-
rists, representing the first series of allo-
cations under global loans granted since
unification.

In the infrastructure sector, two pro-
jects of particular interest for the
Eastern regions were financed (90 mil-
lion): the Kopernikus satellite system will
provide nationwide distribution of radio
and television programmes, while
modernisation of buildings housing the

GREECE

Berlin Trade Fair will foster the deve-
lopment of surrounding areas.

In addition to the motor vehicle sector,
industrial projects (323 million) in
Germany as a whole included a paper
mill in Lower Saxony, a refinery in the
Rubhr and some 378 small or medium-
scale ventures (134 million), mainly pro-
moted by SMEs and frequently involving
advanced-technology equipment for the
sectors concerned.

The Bank also supported infrastruc-
tural improvements at Munich and
Homburg airports (134 million) plus
various local road schemes through glo-

Finance contracts signed 1991: 366.9 million (1990: 176.3 million).
Individual loans: 100.1 million — Global loans: 266.8 million.
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 66.4 million.

Bank activity in Greece, the whole of
which quclifies for regional develop-
ment assistance (Objective 1), answers
the vital need to provide the country
with the. infrastructure, equipment ond
industrial base required to sustain its
development.

in the infrastructure sector, funding (78
million) was mainly directed towards
projects for improving road and rail
links between various parts of the
country and covered construction of the
Corinth-Tripoli motorway, upgrading
to motorway standard of the Varibobi-
Yliki section of the Athens-Katerini
highway and rolling stock replacement.
The Bank also supported agricultural

irrigation in Crete and continuing
reconstruction of sewerage systems,
public buildings and housing in the
Kalamata region stricken by an earth-
quake in 1986 (subsidised loans worth
22 million from the General Budget of
the European Communities).

In addition, an important framework
loan (150 million) was concluded at
the end of the year. This will allow
financing to be made available for
small-scale transport, water supply and
sewerage schemes as well as for tourist
amenities and technical and vocational
training establishments. The loan com-
plies with the objectives laid down in the
Community Support Framework for
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bal loans.

Further EIB funding contributed to
environmental protection (95 million)
in the context of sewerage projects in
Breisgau and 47 small drinking water
supply and sewerage schemes, waste
collection, storage and treatment facili-
ties and industrial equipment to combat
pollution.

In the energy sector, financing (185 mil-
lion) chiefly involved improving supplies
to the eastern regions, continuing devel-
opment of the Saar district heating
system and installation of a new boiler
at Mannheim power station.

Greece and supplements budgetary
assistance from the structural Funds.

In the energy sector, loans (16 million)
were provided for constructing a hydro-
electric plant on the main irrigation
canal in the Thessaloniki plain and for
the first phase of a scheme for supply-
ing natural gas to the Athens region.
The latter project, which involves laying
a line for conveying Russion gas, re-
gasification installations for Algerian
supplies and distribution networks,
should help to bring about a significant
reduction in the capital's atmospheric
pollution.

Two global loans worth 24 million



were concluded under the Integrated
Mediterranean Programmes for elec-
tricity generation and network moderni-
sation as well as for developing com-
puterisation of public services; in 1991,

SPAIN

N

N

15 million was drawn down in favour of
24 small-scale energy projects.

Lastly, the EIB continued to support the
creation of vocational training centres

Finance contracts signed 1991: 2 342.5 million (1990: 1 942 million).
Individual loans: 2 070.7 million — Global loans: 271.8 million,
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 315.8 million.

The fresh increase in lending in Spain
largely concerned regional develop-
ment projects, especially communicao-
tions infrastructure and energy installa-
tions. Some 1825 million, or 76% of
total funding {57% in 1990), was made
availoble for projects mainly located in
oreas benefiting from structural Fund
support, including 975 million in regions
targeted by Obijective 1.

Infrastructure financing (1 390 million)
encompassed:

— ongoing modernisation of the tele-
phone network and commissioning of
communications and television satellites
(577 million);

— improvements to intercity rail links,
particularly the Madrid-Seville high-
speed line, and strengthening of sub-
urban networks around Madrid, Barce-

FRANCE

lona, Valencia, Sontander and Bilbao
(408 million);

— renewal of aircraft fleets providing
domestic services and links with the
Canaries (128 million);

— urban transport in Madrid (replace-

ment of underground railway rolling
stock) and traffic improvements in Bar-
celona (113 million);

— construction of a new trade fair centre
in Madrid and improvements to sewer-
age systems in Malaga (124 million).

Furthermore, 17 global loan allocations
(40 million) covered road and sewerage
schemes implemented by local authori-
ties,

In the industrial sector, individual loans
(406 million) centred on motor vehicle
factories in Catalonia and near Pam-

Finance contracts signed 1991: 1 924.4 million (1990: 1 684.6 million).
Individual loans: 10N.4 million — Global loans: 213.0 million.
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 805.4 million.

More than two thirds of financing pro-
vided in France related to projects

fostering the development of assisted
areas {1234 million). These centred

{11 million} and ventures undertaken by
SMEs in the industrial and tourism sec-
tors (40 allocations totalling 47 million).

plona, upgrading of o petrochemicals
complex near Cadiz and its conversion
to lead-free petrol production, and fac-
tories manufacturing telecommunica-
tions equipment, domestic electrical

“appliances and pharmaceuticals in the

Madrid, Barcelona and Rioja areas.
Some 580 SMEs in industry, tourism and
agriculture also received 253 million in
allocations under ongoing global loans.
Loans for upgroding ond modernising
various electricity transmission and
distribution systems rose substantially to
316 million. In addition, 10 allocations
(23 million) were provided for small
hydroelectric plants.

A considerable number of projects
financed, accounting for a total of 209
million, helped to protect the environ-
ment, particularly in urban areas.

mainly on transport infrastructure and
investment in industry and services.



Several projects, attracting a total of
108 million, contributed towards protec-
ting the environment either generally
or in urban areas.

Loans for transport infrastructure (978
million) focused primarily on two major
projects, the Channel Tunnel and the
“TGV-Nord” linking Paris to the Tunnel
and Belgium (410 million). The EIB again
supported construction of motorways
expanding both regional links and the
European network (209 million): the
A26, a new route from the Channel Tun-
nel to the South of France via Troyes,
the A43 and A49 Alpine links to
Grenoble and Albertville, site of the
Winter Olympics, and the A57 in the

IRELAND

south. It also funded works which will
significantly improve traffic conditions
and, consequently, the urbon environ-
ment, with the construction of a road
tunnel in Marseilles and, in Lyons, the
provision of nearly 6 000 parking spaces
plus road improvements at some twenty
locations (57 million). A further loan for
the heat and power-generating dome-
stic waste incineration plant in the Lyons
conurbation will also enhance the envi-
ronment.

Loans in the air transport sector cover-
ed extension of Fort-de-France airport
in Martinique, in conjunction with the
structural Funds, and fleet renewal for
two companies mainly operating dom-
estic services (133 million).

Finance contracts signed 1991: 237 million (1990: 217.7 million).

Individual loans: 237 million.

Allocations from ongoing global loans: 13 million.

Financing in Ireland, the whole of which
is eligible for regional development
assistance (Objective 1), was largely
devoted to infrastructure (182 million):
additions to airline fleets providing
intra-Community services, extension of
overhaul facilities at Dublin Airport and
improvements to the road network, par-

ticularly through the Dublin and Athlone
by-passes. Other loans related to
ongoing development of domestic and
international telecommunications
vices, drinking water supplies to Great-
er Dublin and renovation of Dublin's
Temple Bar area. The EIB also funded
small schemes centred on

ser-

numerous
road, harbour and airport improve-
ments, upgrading of water supplies and
wastewater collection and treatment.
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In addition, 242 road, rail and sewerage
schemes implemented by local author-
ities or enterprises were financed under
various global loans (267 million).

Loans to the industrial and service
sectors (162 million) embraced the pro-
duction of carbon fibres in the south-
west, newsprint in the Vosges, chemicals
in Isére, aeronautical equipment in lle-
de-France and ongoing work on the
Euro Disneyland theme park. A large
number of SMEs (5 947) also benefited
from global loan allocations totalling
537 million.

In the energy sector, a loan of 37 mil-
lion went towards modernising the
Eurodif uranium enrichment plant.

In the energy sector, two loons bene-
fited electricity and natural gas trans-
mission/supply grids throughout the
country {56 million).

Lastly, 8 SMEs in the industrial and
tourism sectors received 13 million in
allocations under ongoing global loans.
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ITALY

Finance contracts signed 1991: 4 000.7 million (1990: 3 855.7 million).
Individual loans: 2 794.1 million — Global loans: 1 206.6 million.
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 1 030.1 million.

In Italy, two thirds of financing in the
form of individual loans and global loan
allocations supported capital investment
in regional development areas (2 558
million). The breakdown shows 995 mil-
lion (including 52% for SMEs) provided
for industry, 889 million for infrastruc-

ture and 674 million for energy installa-
tions.

Nearly 80% of this funding went to pro-
jects in the mainland Mezzogiorno and
islands (2 010 million). It comprised 333
million in Campania, 246 million in Sici-

ly, 242 million in Apulia, 238 million in
Sardinia, 199 million in Abruzzi, 183 mil-
lion in Calabria, 156 million in Basilica-
ta and 142 million in Latium; 130 million
was divided between Molise, The Mar-
ches and the islands off Tuscany, while
141 million centred on air transport,

ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION

Electricity now accounts for nearly one fifth of total
Community energy consumption compared with just under
a seventh in 1980. This significant and growing share over
a period when overall energy consumption showed only a
very slight increase justifies the attention paid to
electricity transmission and distribution both within the
Community and with neighbouring countries.

The EC Commission is working on the future development
of transmission and distribution grids and, with comple-
tion of the internal market in prospect, has proposed to
liberalise access to the major transmission networks tra-
ditionally operating on a national basis. Recent European
Councils have also stressed the value of trans-European
energy-exchange networks (see page 19).

Rising consumption, security of supply, the different bias
of production systems, with the growing prominence of
nuclear power in some countries and increased reliance
on coal in others, and variations in national peak demand
times have all prompted the development of intercon-
necting lines.

Transmission and distribution grid investment can re-
present as much as 30% and even 50% of aggregate capi-
tal expenditure in the electricity sector. It is designed to
ensure not only the transmission of power generated by
all stations but also reliable supplies through the inter-

connection of a country's various networks with those of
its neighbours. Although such exchanges have steadily
increased, they remain limited, accounting for a little more
than 10% of Community consumption and principally
involving France as an exporter and ltaly and the United
Kingdom as importers.

The Community is likely to witness sustained investment
in transmission and distribution as several countries
are already engaged in major installation programmes,
while others are concerned to improve the standard of
electricity services and to protect the enviroanment.

The probable increase in exchange capacity in the Com-
munity and between the EC and its neighbours in respon-
se to the development of the internal market and a desire
to enhance flexibility and security of supply should also
ensure ongoing investment in transmission and distribu-
tion facilities.

Over the past five years, the EIB has provided more than
2 billion ecus for upgrading and modernising electricity
networks in most of southern ltaly and Spain as well as in
Portugal, Ireland and Greece. It has also continued to
finance a major project involving interconnection of the
French and British high-voltage grids via four pairs of
cables under the Channel.
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telecommunications and gas ond elec-
tricity supply-line projects benefiting
the Mezzogiorno as a whole.

Lending targeted at the less favoured
regions of central and northern ltaly
totalled 548 million, earmarked princi-
pally for projects in Tuscany {123 mil-
lion), Friuli-Venezia Giulia (93 million),
Veneto (67 million) and Trentino-Alto
Adige (52 million).

Financing in pursuit of Community
energy policy objectives (874 million}
focused on development of oil and
natural gas resources, natural gas
transmission and distribution, electricity
generation and supply and efficient use
of energy in various enterprises.

Funding for projects designed to pro-
tect or improve the environment and
enhance the quality of life totolled
697 million, with the emphasis on waste-
water collection and treatment, solid
waste management, facilities to reduce
atmospheric pollution, urban redevelop-
ment schemes and renovation of his-
toric buildings and districts.

The EIB also supported projects aimed
at upgrading transport links and, in par-
ticular, telecommunications with other
Member States (591
increasing the international competi-
tiveness of industry and its integra-
tion on a European scale (155 million,
including 42 million for smaller ven-
tures).

million}) or at

The sectoral breakdown of Bank lending
reveals a fairly even spread between
industry (1 538 million), infrastructure
(1 120 million) and energy (1 166 million).

In the industrial and service sectors,
individual loans {557 million) mainly
concerned the chemicals and petroche-
micals industries, a number of laborato-
ries, reseorch centres and factories for
pharmaceuticals, cosmetics and hygiene
products and modernisation of a chemi-
cals complex, an industrial gas plont
and refineries, in the latter case with @
view to conversion to the production of
lead-free, low-sulphur petrol.-

Cther loans related to electronics, with
factories and development centres for
telecommunications equipment, domes-
tic electrical appliances, papermaking,
aircraft construction, production of two-
wheeled vehicles, cementworks and
plants producing glass and foodstuffs.

In addition, the Bank extended credit
from ongoing global loans to some
1800 smaller ventures (981 million),
mostly undertaken by SMEs.

The EIB continved to finance infra-
structure projects mainly implemented
within the ambit of FIO (Investment and
Job-Creation Fund) and designed to
improve drinking water supplies as well
as, more especially, to develop waste-
water collection and treatment systems.
These schemes often involved such other
works as solid, urban and industrial
waste management and protection
against erosion and flooding. Loans
totalling 393 million chiefly benefited
major river basins, the Po for example,
vast tracts of regions such as Basilicata,
Apulic and Sardinia and large urban
areas, including Milan, Genoa, Rome,
Udine and Taranto. :

Loans for telecommunications again
helped to expand the Mezzogiorno
telephone network and the satellite
communications system (577 million).
Several loans {150 million) were made

available in the transport sector for
enlarging regional airline fleets, devel-
oping harbour areas and intermodal
freight terminals and implementing
various urban infrastructure works.

A significant rise was recorded in len-
ding to the energy sector where funds
were given over to uprating several
power plants and improving electricity
transmission and distribution  grids.
Some of these plants tap hydro or geo-
thermal resources, while simultaneocus
steam production is a feature of others
(Porto Morghera, Milan, Brescia), which
are sometimes connected to district
heating systems. It should be stressed
that the majority of plants funded, par-

- ticularly  Fusina, incorporate all the

facilities required for reducing atmos-
pheric pollution associated with energy
production.

Lostly, several loans went towards
development of oil and natural gas
deposits, both onshore and offshore,
and continuing construction of the
transmission and distribution system for
natural gas from Algeria and Russia.



LUXEMBOURG

Finance contract signed 1991: 28.6 million (1990: 11.8 million).

A loan of 28.6 million was provided for
the launch of a broadcasting satellite

NETHERLANDS

whose channels are to be used by
several European television companies.

Finance contracts signed 1991: 175.4 million (1990: 245.3 million).
Individual loans: 125.4 million — Global loans: 50 million.
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 68.9 million.

The Bank financed construction of an
automated container terminal in the
port of Rotterdam and ¢ coal-gasifica-

PORTUGAL

tion power plant at Buggenum. In the
industrial sector, a loan was made avail-
able for modernising papermills in Nij-

Finance contracts signed 1991: 1 002.1 million (1990: 794.7 million).
Individual loans: 809.2 million — Global loans: 192.9 million.
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 153.1 million.

Lending in Portugal, the whole of which
quadlifies for regional development
assistance (Obijective 1), demonstrated
further growth and benefited a wide
range of projects.

Almost half of aggregate funding
concerned transport and telecommuni-
cations infrastructure (441 million)
designed mainly to improve links with
the rest of the Community. Loans were
provided for sections of the Al (Lis-
bon—Oporto—Braga) motorway and
the A4 (linking Oporto to Vila Real), rail-
way renovation and upgrading {around
Oporto, towards Lisbon and Spain via
Vilar Formoso) and rolling stock renew-
al. They also contributed to various
infrastructure developments in the Azo-

res and improvements to the Sines oil
ond petrochemicals terminal. A total of
82 schemes, mainly concerned with
water management and roads, received
allocations from ongoing global loans
(15 million ecus).

The EIB continued to finance expansion
of the telephone system, especially in
the Lisbon and Oporto areas; it also
contributed to the laying of a submarine
cable providing links not only with
Madeira but also with France and
Morocco.

Loans for industrial projects (389 mil-
lion) focused largely on the motor ve-
hicle sector and included the important
new multipurpose passenger vehicle
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megen and Maastricht, while 49 SMEs
attracted allocations from global loans.

project at Palmela near Sétubal imple-
mented in partnership by two major
manufacturers, an audio equipment
plant plus factories near Oporto pro-
ducing electronic ignition systems and
tyres. Other projects concerned paper
production from forestry resources, a
foodstuffs factory, modernisation of
imitation leather and textile factories
ond a high-grade alloy parts plant. In
addition, 300 SMEs ottracted alloce-
tions under ongoing global loans (126
million).

In the energy sector, loans (114 million)
went towards upgrading the electricity
transmission and distribution grid and
constructing small hydroelectric plants
in the centre and north of the country.
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Finance contracts signed 1991: 2 090.5 million (1990: 1 892.8 million).

Individval loans: 2 090.5 million.

Allocations from ongoing global loans: 73.7 million.

Financing in the United Kingdom cov-
ered oll sectors of Bank activity,
with particuler emphasis on  water,
energy and industry; roughly one third
of operations were located in areas
confronted with conversion prob-
lems.

Loans for infrastructure (911 million)
primarily benefited the water sector
{572 million) where the EIB continued to
finance projects forming part of major
programmes drawn up by the water
companies with a view to improving
their networks and adhering more close-
ly to Community quality standards.
The schemes concerned were situated
mainly in Wales, Yorkshire and the
Thames basin and, more generdlly, in
the South and West of England.

Ovutside the territory of the Member
States, under the second parograph of
Article 18 (1) of its Statute, the EIB
supported international telecommuni-
cations and oil extraction projects of
interest to the Community with loans
totalling 300 million.

Funding for transport and telecommuni-
cations (331 million) was devoted to
ongoing work on constructing the Chan-
nel Tunnel, extending Birmingham air-
port and modernising telecommunica-
tions systems in Northern Ireland.

There was a marked revival in lending
for energy projects (765 million) in
1991. Geared mainly to developing
North Sea oil and natural gas resources,
financing centred on the Alba, Bruce,
Ravenspurn and Scott fields and infro-
structure for gasline transmission from
the Beryl and Brae complexes to St.
Fergus in Scotland. Further funds were
provided for nuclear fuel reprocessing
facilities.

In the industrial and service sectors,
488 million was made available, largely

In the telecommunications sector, 202
million went towards continuation of
programmes developed by the Eutelsat
international organisation for deploying
a new generation of satellites as well as
towards laying a submarine fibre-optics
cable linking Portugal to France, Madei-

in the form of individual loans {416 mil-
lion) spanning a variety of activities:
construction of parts for Airbus jetliners,
motor vehicle components, research and
production centres for pharmaceuticals
and cosmetics plus manufacture of
silicon wafers, industrial gases and zir-
conium-based products. The Bank also
financed production of foodstuffs, op-
tical fibres and texiiles as well as a
printing works. Several projects contri-
buted towards environmental protec-
tion: titanium dioxide processing plants,
factories producing CFC-free aerosols,
aluminium can recycling facilities, etc.

In the absence of any new global loans
in 1991, 60 million was allocated to
70 SMEs under credit lines concluded
previously.

ra and Morocco.

The Bank also funded tapping of the
Snorre and Veslefrikk oilfields in the
Norwegian sector of the North Sea (98
million).



THE EIB IN 1991

OPERATIONS OUTSIDE THE COMMUNITY

1000

0 Financing outside
® the Community:
250

totalling 916 mil-
lion, this comprised
781.5 million in
loans from EIB own resources, all of
which are guaranteed by the Member
States or the Community budget, and
134.5 million in operations using risk
capital drawn from Community or
Member States' budgetary funds.

0
g7 8 & 90 91

In the African, Caribbean and Pacific
(ACP) States and in the Overseas Coun-
tries and Territories (OCT), the year her-
alded entry into force, on 1 September,
of the Fourth Lomé Convention which

ACP STATES AND OCT

The EIB provided backing for projects in
24 ACP States and 4 OCT as well as for
a scheme involving several countries.
Funds were advanced partly under the
Fourth Lomé Convention (217.5 million
from own resources and 63.4 million in
risk capital), partly under the Third Con-
vention (52 million from own resources
and 55 million in risk capital), a sum-
mary review of which appears on page

led to a significant revival in activity,
particularly in the case of risk capital
operations. Financing came fo 3895
million (153 million in 1990} and broke
down as to 269.5 million in loans from
own resources carrying inferest subsi-
dies and 120 million in risk capital from
Member States’ budgetary resources
through the European Development

Fund (EDF).

Financing in the Mediterranean Coun-
tries ran to 241.5 million (162 million in
1990), consisting of 227 million from
own resources and 14.5 million from
Community budgetary resources in the
form of risk capital used mainly for fund-

46, and partly under the Second Con-
vention (1.6 million from risk capital).

Three countries, Zimbabwe, Trinidad
and Tobago and the Cayman lIslands,
received loans solely from the Bank's
own resources (58 million, or 15% of the
total). All other countries attracted risk
capital assistance, either exclusively in
15 cases (63.8 million, or 16%) or in con-
junction with loans from own resources
in 10 others (267.7 million, or 69%).

Of aggregate financing provided, 52%
went to the industrial and service sec-
tors, especially SMEs which claimed 100
allocations (57.7 million) from global
loans deployed by the EiB in conjunction
with national or regional development
banks. Loans for energy installations (oil

44

ing private-sector equity capital needs.

The Bank made available a total of 285
million (215 million in 1990) in the Cen-
tral and Eastern European Countries.

Most of the projects in question were
covered by co-financing arrangements
concluded with Member States’ bilateral
financing institutions, the Commission,
the World Bank and other development
aid agencies; very close cooperation
has been set in train with the EBRD in
order to coordinate financing activities
in the Central and Eastern European
Countries concerned.

and gas extraction, electricity genera-
tion/distribution) represented 30% of
the total, while air and maritime trans-
port and water supply and sewerage
infrastructure accounted for 18%.

Almost two thirds of funding related to
private-sector projects, which have
played an increasing role in the deve-
lopment process in recent years. The EIB
also continued to support rehabilitation
of existing industries and infrastructure.



In Africa, financing involved 17 coun-
tries and amounted to 314.4 million
{203.5 million from own resources and
110.9 millien in risk capital), including
36 million advanced to ASECNA, a
regional agency responsible for the

safety of air navigation in 16 ACP
countries.

Nearly two thirds of this went to West
Africa {190.3 million). In Nigeria (103
million), the Bank funded uprating of

palm oil production and refining capa-
city and development of an offshore con-
densate field. Financing in Mauritania
{30 million) focused on working of an
iron ore deposit, while in Ghana it cov-
ered modernisation of aluminium foun-

Table 10: Conventions, financial protocols and decisions in force or under negotiation at 1 June 1992

{million ecus)

Cperations
from budgetary resources
Loans from
own Risk capital Gront
Agreement Duration resources {') cperctions {7 aid ) Total
ACP States-OCT
ACP Fourth Lomé Convention 1990—1995 1200 825 9975 (9 12 000
OCT Council Decision 1990—1995 25 25 115 (4 165
Mediterranean Countries (%)
Yugoslavia p-m.
Turkey } Fourth lfmcmcml Protocol 225 o 50 600 9
not yet in force
Algeria 280 18 52 350
Morocco Fourth Finarcial Protocols 1991—1996 220 25 193 438
Tunisia 168 15 101 284
Egypt 310 16 242 568
Jordan L 80 2 44 126
Lebanon Fourth Financial Protocols 1991—19%96 45 . 9 27 s
Syria 15 2 4 158
Israel Fourth Financial Protocol 1991—1996 82 — — 82
Malta Third Financial Protocel 1988—1993 23 25 125 38
Cyprus Third Financial Protocel 1988—1993 44 5 13 62
“Non-Protocol” horizontal
financial cooperation not yet in force 1992—1996 1800 25 205 (1) 2 030
Central and Eastern European Countries ()
Poland — Hungary 1990—1993 1000
Czechoslovakia — Bulgaria — Romania 19911993 700

{"} Loans attracting interest subsidies from the European Development Fund in
the case of projects in the ACP States and the OCT and from the General
Budget of the European Communities in the case of projects in certain
Mediterranean Countries. Amounts required for interest subsidies are
financed from grant aid.

{*) Granted and managed by the EIB.

*) Grented and managed by the Commission of the EC.

(*} Including amounts reserved for interest subsidies on EIB loans.

{*] Batances remaining under earlier financial protocols or, in the case of
Lebanen and Syrig, the entire amounts originally provided for may be drawn
on concomitantly. !

{*) Including 325 million in loans on special conditions from budgetary
resources.

) Including obeout 100 million in interest subsidies for EIB locns for the
environment.

{*} Budget appropriations previded by the Commission of the EC (PHARE] for
a total of 2 270 million for the peried 1990-1992.




FROM LOME Ill TO LOME IV

During the period covered by the Third Lomé Convention
(May 1986 — August 1991), funds advanced to the ACP
States and the OCT totalled 1 347.5 million, compared with
969 million under the Second Lomé Convention. Loans from
own resources, subsidised through the EDF, amounted to 761
million or é8% of the ceiling set (1 120 million). Risk capital
assistance provided on very concessionary terms came to
586.5 million or 94% of the package planned (615 million);
the remainder will progressively be committed in full.

As regards financing from own resources, the economic
climate continued to be very unfavourable, particularly in
Africa, largely because of a deterioration in borrowing
capacity coupled with a slowdown, and in some countries
even a halt, in investment. In these circumstances, the flexible
attaching capital operations
particularly well suited to the situation prevailing in the ACP
States, almost all of which benefited from this type of funding.
Conditions were significantly better in the Caribbean and
Pacific States and the OCT where more often than not oper-
ations involved a combination of both forms of financing.

conditions to risk were

In the 43 least developed countries (Art. 257 of the Conven-
tion), risk capital financing amounted to 350.8 million, with a
further 55.5 million committed in loans from own resources
for development projects.

Overall, industry accounted for 55% of funding (see also
Table N, page 109), most of which went to firms in the food-
stuffs, textile, ore winning and metal-processing sectors and
to tourism ventures. Approximately one third of finance for
industry was made available to development banks and
financial institutions, principally in the form of global loans
which have already been drawn on to support more than 350
small businesses. These largely private-sector operations help
to increase or maintain the manufacturing capacity of many
countries in fields particularly crucial for the well-being of the
local population.

The remaining funding contributed to the construction of
water supply and sewerage infrastructure in several towns
(12%), transport and telecommunications projects {12%) and
the upgrading of energy production and transmission facili-

ties (21%).

The Fourth Lomé Convention, which came into force on
1 September 1991, was concluded between the Member
States and the European Community, on the one hand, and
the 66 African, Caribbean and Pacific (ACP) States which
signed the Third Convention, plus Haiti, the Dominican
Republic and Namibia, on the other. A parallel Council
Decision covers relations with the OCT.

The new Convention gives even greater emphasis than before
to the private sector and its role in stimulating the growth and
diversification of the ACP economies.

Total financial assistance for the first five years of Lomé IV
amounts to 12 billion (see Table 10, page 45). Community aid
has been made more concessionary. Loans from the Bank’s
own resources (ceiling of 1.2 billion) carry an interest subsidy
from EDF resources which has been raised to 4%; the interest
rate borne by the borrower cannot normally amount to less
than 3% or to more than 6%. Risk capital (825 million) can
take the form of equity participations or “soft” loans, on
which the rate of interest is not to exceed 3%. Recourse to
new intermediaries (particularly European financial institu-
tions) is now possible.

Financing will primarily be directed to industrial, agricultural
processing, tourism, mining, energy, transport and telecom-
munications projects.
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dries and continuing rehabilitation of plant and the Conakry water supply (5.6 million), improved water supplies to
Akosombo hydroelectric power station  system (23 million). Other operations Banjul in The Gambia (4.3 million),
(22.8 million). In Guinea, the EIB sup- concerned: a power line between Bobo- modernisation of warehouses at the
ported improvements to an alumina Dioulasso and Banfora in Burkina Faso  port of Dakar in Senegal (1.5 million)
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and a fecsibility study on a soluble
coffee plant in Cate d'lvoire (52 000).

Financing in Southern Africa (38.1
million) was channelled mainly to Zim-

babwe — 18 million for modernising
and expanding the power grid — and
Malawi — 14.8 million for extending

the Blantyre drinking water supply
system and support for small-scale
investment through a global loan and
equity participation. In Mauritivs, 2.5
million was provided for a textile mill,
while a globol loan for 2 million will
assist ventures undertaken by SMEs in
the Comoros. Lastly, 800 000 was made
available in Madagascar in the form of
an equity participation in an investment
finance company and for a study
concerning a pilot aquaculture farm.

SOUTHERN MEDITERRANEAN
COUNTRIES

Financing in this area focused on two
fronts: improved management of
Maghreb water resources through the
introduction of sewerage systems and

In East Africa, funds (28.5 million) were
advanced for an oil pipeline feasibility
study in Kenya (20.5 million) and, as in
Tanzania (8 million), in the form of glo-
bal loans to finance SMEs.

Lending in Central Africa (21.5 million)
contributed towards modernising and
upgrading the electricity system in
eastern Zaire (19 million) and rehabili-
tating ‘banana plantations in Cam-
eroon (2.5 million).

In the Caribbean (56.1 million), finan-
cing covered the modernisation of an oil
refinery in Trinidad and Tobago (38
million), support for ventures under-
taken by SMEs in Jamaica (16 million),
a tourist hotel in Grenada (1.5 million)
and studies on harnessing geothermal
resources in Saint Lucia (400 000) and
exporting construction materials from
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines to
Guyana (200 000).

irrigation programmes and greater
support for private undertakings in the
countries  concerned, particularly
through the development of joint ven-
tures with Community enterprises. In
1991, 42.6 million was provided in the
form of 166 allocations from ongoing
global loans, chiefly in the textile and
foodstuffs sectors, but also for tourism
and ogriculture.
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In the Pacific (11.4 million), the EIB con-
cluded global loans in support of invest-
ment by SMEs in Papua New Guinea
(6 million) and helped to fund construc-
tion of an aircraft maintenance centre
and a sawmill on two islands in Fiji
(5.4 million).

Lastly, four OCT attracted financing (7.7
million) for small and medium-scale
ventures in  Aruba (2.5 million),
improvements to the drinking water
supply system in the Cayman Islands
(2" million}, reconstruction of the hurri-
cane-damaged port of Montserrat (2
million} and, for the first time on
Mayotte, upgrading of ferry services
(1.15 million).

Algeria

A total of 71 million (including 3 million
in risk capital) covered ongoing work on
building the East-West motorway, the
provision of wastewater collection
facilities and the construction of purifi-



Table 11: Financing provided outside the Community

(million ecus)

Individuo! loans

Transport, Industry,
Own Budgetary telecommuni- agriculture, Global
Total resources resources Energy cations Water services loans
ACP-OCT 389.5 269.5 120.0 117.6 45.6 248 140.5 61.0
Africa 3144 203.5 110.9 117.6 375 22.8 100.0 36.5
Caribbean 56.1 53.0 3.1 — — — 40.1 16.0
Pacific 1.4 9.0 2.4 — 50 — 0.4 6.0
OCT 7.6 4.0 3.6 — 3.1 20 — 25
Mediterranean 241.5 227.0 145 250 310 138.0 19.8 277
Algeria 71.0 68.0 3.0 — 31.0 37.0 0.8 2.2
Morocco 60.0 60.0 — — — 60.0 — —
Tunisia 35.0 35.0 — — — 35.0 — —
Egypt 43.0 40.0 3.0 25.0 — — 18.0 —
Jordan 10.0 9.0 1.0 — — 6.0 — 40
Cyprus 20.0 15.0 50 — — 1.0 19.0
Malta 25 — 2.5 — — — — 2.5
Central and
Eastern Europe 285.0 285.0 - 60.0 700 — - 155.0
Hungary 115.0 115.0 — 35.0 — — — 80.0
Poland 145.0 1450 — — 70.0 — — 75.0
Romania 25.0 250 — 25.0 — — — -
Total 916.0 7815 134.5 202.6 146.6 162.8 160.3 243.7

cation plants in several coastal cities
east of Algiers, rehabilitation of the
drainage and irrigation systems in the
R'hir Valley oases south of Algiers and
the promotion of private SME ventures,
particularly through risk capital equity
participations.

Morocco

A loan of 60 million was granted for irri-
gation drawing on the Im Fout dam and

for agricultural development in the
Abda Doukkala plain south-west of
Casablanca. This represents the first
phase of a 64 000 ha project involving
a population of 100 000.

Tunisia

Two loans totalling 35 million will con-
tribute to more efficient use of water
resources intended for agriculture
through improvements to irrigation sys-
tems and to environmental protection
by the construction of sewers and puri-
fication plants at Gabes for water cur-
rently discharged untreated into the
Mediterranean.
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Egypt

EiB activity (43 million, including 3
million in risk capital) centred on con-
struction of o compressor plant for
refrigerators and freezers and exten-
sion of the natural gas supply network
in Cairo. This project forms part of a
programme targeting the entire Greot-
er Cairo area with a view to reserving
oil resources for export and limiting
atmospheric pollution.



Jordan

Financing (10 million, including 1 million
in risk capital) centred on extension of
the wastewater collection system in the
Zarqa area and global loans for SMEs.

CENTRAL AND
EASTERN EUROPEAN COUNTRIES

In the wake of initial operations in
Poland and Hungary in 1990, 1991 saw
the EIB widening its activity in this area
to Romania. Lending amounted to 285
million, bringing total commitments to
500 million or nearly a third of sums
provided for under current agreements.
In the course of the year, credit was

Cyprus and Malta

The Bank increased its support for
investment by industrial SMEs by con-
cluding global loans from own and risk
capital resources: Cyprus received 20

drawn for the first time from two global
loans concluded with banks in 1990: in
Poland, é firms attracted allocations
totalling 14.7 million, while, in Hungary,
3 other firms claimed 14.35 million.

Polalnd

Two loans totalling 145 million were
advanced, one for upgrading and mod-
ernising the telephone network, particu-
larly long-distance communications, and
the other for financing mainly small and
medium-scale ventures under a global
loan.

Hungary

A total of 115 million contributed to
uprating electricity supplies through
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million, including 5 million in risk capital
and Malta, 2.5 million in risk capital. In
both these countries, operations may
take the form of equity participations
and priority is accorded to joint ven-
tures with partners in the Community.

rehabilitation of the Kelenfsld combined
heat and power plant and to financing
mainly small and medium-scale ventures
under a global loan.

Romania

Financing (25 million) was made avail-
able for rehabilitating two power plants
and for studies on lignite-based elec-
tricity production.



- RESOURCES RAISED IN 1991

15000
10000 Resources raised:
5000 ; In 1991,  these
totalled 13672
o - million, compared

with 10 996 million
in 1990, a rise of 24%. The EIB's active
presence on the markets and its swap
operations enabled it to cater for dis-
bursements amounting to 15 361 million

EVOLUTION OF CAPITAL
MARKETS

Interest rate trends in the principal
OECD countries diverged widely in
1991, in response to very different econ-
omic situations. At the start of the year,
the rapid end to the Gulf
sparked off a general fall in yields on
the capital markets. Slock economic
activity in the United States provoked a
gradual easing in monetary policy in
1991 and the interest rate reductions
during the first half deepened during
the second part of the year. In Japan,
monetary policy was steadily relaxed,
particularly during the third and fourth
quarters. In the Community, the German
monetary authorities, mindful in parti-
cular of inflationary pressures and the
economic constraints stemming from
unification, kept interest rates at a high
level and this had a knock-on effect on
other Community markets. A tendency

crisis

(11 811 million in 1990).

The bulk of the funds raised were
drawn, after swaps, from medium and
long-term operations (12 540 million),
mainly fixed rate (10 225 million). The
volume of resources obtained at float-
ing rates caome to 3 447 million (includ-
ing 1 133 million under short-term oper-

for rates on currencies in the EMS to
converge was apparent,

After the slight decline recorded the
previous year, 1991 witnessed a strong
recovery in bond-issuing activity. The
total volume of funds raised through
public issues, straight bonds and float-
ing-rate notes climbed by 30% to reach
298 billion dollars. Following continued
liberalisation of the financial markets,
the recovery in activity was focused on
the international market with an
increase of 37%, whilst the foreign bond
segment did not show any significant
change. Amongst borrowers, those res-
ident in the OECD countries accounted
for the major share of issues. Nonethe-
less, 1991 saw the return of Latin-
American borrowers confirmed, whilst
certain Eastern European countries also
launched bonds on the international
capital market.

International bank lending activity
recorded a marked contraction, with the
volume of new bank loans shrinking by
10% in 1991. The main factors behind

- this development could be ascribed to

the banks’ concern to control the growth
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ations in the form of commercial paper),
accounting for 25% of the fotal.

The breakdown by currency of funds
tapped illustrates the predominance of
Community currencies with 73% of the
total after swaps. The ecu continues to
hold first place among currencies bor-
rowed.

in their balance sheets so as to comply
with the solvency ratios recently
adopted and the wish on the part of
borrowers to obtain the most advan-
tageous terms and conditions. Borrow-
ers from the OECD countries cut down
their recourse to bank loans radically,
whilst non-OECD borrowers increased
theirs by 40%, mainly as a result of
contracts with Kuwait and Saudi Arabic.

There was considerable movement bet-
ween the various compartments of the
bond market. Floating-rate issues, which
expanded strongly in 1990, fell back
more than 50% in 1991. Relaxation of
monetary policy in several countries and
the expectation of interest-rate falls in
Europe in the near future buoyed up
demand for fixed-rate issues at the
expense of floating-rate instruments.

The growth in fixed-rate issues was con-
centrated principally on European cur-



Gross yields on bonds

issued mainly by public-sector issuers and quoted on the
various financial markets in the Community. For the
United Kingdom and Ireland, yields have been calcu-
lated, for purposes of comparability, on the basis of an
annual rather than a semi-annual compounding of
interest.
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rencies. The US dollar retained its pos-
ition as the main currency of issue but
its relative share slipped once more, to
30%. The ecu again attracted growing
interest and the volume of international
issues in this currency rose by 77% to
reach 27 billion ecus, more than 12.5%
of the international market and 10.6%
of total bond issues. The ecu has there-
fore become the third most important
currency on the international bond mar-
kets (and the leading European cur-
rency), behind the dollar (30.1%) and the
yen (13.7%).

Amongst the other European currencies,
the pound sterling and Deutsche Mark,
which have traditionally been the chief
currencies for bond issues, registered a
downturn in their shares of international
bond issuance, whilst bonds in other
European currencies advanced strongly.
The ltalian lira, in particular, doubled its
share of the market to 4.8% whilst that
of the French franc expanded by nearly
50%.

EIB ACTIVITY ON THE CAPITAL
MARKETS

In 1991, the EIB again stepped up its
presence on the capital markets, col-
lecting 13.7 billion ecus compared with
11 billion in 1990, Community currencies
accounting for nearly three quarters of
the funds obtained. This dominance can
be explained by EC Member States’
policy of economic convergence, ensur-
ing considerably greater stability for
Community currencies than the dollar,
yen or even the Swiss franc.
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The growing appeal of the European
currencies is attributable both to the
progress achieved on liberalising the
various markets and to the positive
impact of converging economic per-
formance amongst Community Member
Countries. Greater market transparency
resulted in increasingly strong interest
on the part of major investors in cur-
rencies previously regarded as margi-
nal. A palpable sign of this trend is the
ever more frequent appearance of high-
volume, extremely liquid bonds and the
very substantial growth in the volume of
transactions on the secondary markets.

Following the deteriorating solvency of
numerous borrowers and signs of fra-
gility displayed by quite a number of
financial institutions, the attraction of
borrowers with better credit-ratings
grew considerably and induced signifi-
cant changes in the swaps market.

The bulk of medium and long-term funds
continues to be raised through fixed-
rate operations, reaching 10.2 billion
(against 9.1 billion the previous year)
and accounting for 75% of the total.
Nonetheless, 1991 again saw the vol-
ume of floating-rate borrowings
virtually double, the Bank arranging
new commercial paper programmes,
increasing those already issued, launch-



ing floating-rate notes and conducting
swap operations. These floating-rate
resources amounted to 3.5 billion,
compared with 1.8 billion in 1990.

The funds were basically drawn on to
cover disbursements on loans. A sum of
676 million (417 million in 1990) was
tapped to refinance early redemptions
of the Bank's borrowings.

To achieve a closer match between its
borrowers' requirements and the type of
funds available on the market, the EIB
made use, as in previous years, of the
swaps market. These operations, at
1 334 million in all (628.7 million in 1990)
and accounting for nearly 10% of the
Bank's bond issues, served three pur-
poses. The first was to obtain resources
on attractive conditions, such as the
Australian dollar issue which, swapped
for floating-rate US dollars, trimmed the

Official rates for the main

currencies
(1987 to 1991)
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cost of raising floating-rate funds in this
currency; secondly, to acquire a curren-
cy which, in view of market conditions,
was not at the time available on attrac-
tive terms - this was particularly the
case with a fixed-rate dollar-denomi-
nated issue swapped against fixed-rate
Swiss francs; thirdly, to offer variable-
rate funds drawing on fixed-rate issues,
for example in Deutsche Mark (DEM
300 million) and ltalian lire (ITL 400 bil-

lion).

In 1991, the EIB made much more sys-
tematic use of hedging instruments
enabling it to guard against the risk of
fluctuations in long-term interest rates.
The instrument used most frequently is
the deferred rate-setting contract allow-
ing, in line with yields on one or several
reference issues - generally government
borrowings, for the interest rate on an
issue launched by the EIB on the capital
market to be reset.

This technique, which had previously
been employed primarily for the pound
sterling, French franc, dollar and
guilder, was extended to four other
currencies : the ecu, Italian lira, peseta
and yen.

Another hedging instrument is that of
swapping a fixed-rate borrowing issued
by the EIB on the market against float-
ing-rate funds with the possibility of
reversing the swap and thereby return-
ing to a fixed rate when disbursements
are required. This swap formula has
been used predominantly for issues in
Italian lire and yen.

When market conditions permit, the EIB
endeavours to establish very large
issues, known as benchmarks, by
issuing tranches fungible with an earlier
borrowing. In 1991, this practice was
extended to a broader range of cur-
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rencies (ecu, ltalian lira, peseta, Swiss
franc).

For the third year running, the ecu
headed the list of Community currencies
raised by the EIB with 2500 million
(18.2% of the total) as against 1765
million in 1990. This 42% rise occurred
against the backdrop of a strongly
expanding market at the start of the
year for fixed-rate funds. Although mar-
ket conditions then deteriorated, the EIB
floated an initial issue of 500 million,
which was well received, followed short-
ly afterwards by a further 650 million
issue enabling the Bank, by means of
the fungibility clause, to go to the mar-
ket with a 1 150 million issue in all which
was accepted for futures operations on
the LIFFE in London as deliverable stock.
In the first half, the EIB, taking advan-
tage of a favourable market, sustained
by a large number of long-term issues,

Trends in exchange rates for the
dollar and yen against the ecu
(1987 to 1991)
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Table 12: Resources raised

{million ecus)

Before swaps

After swaps

Swaps

Amount % amount Amount %
1. MEDIUM AND LONG-TERM OPERATIONS
Fixed-rate borrowings 10 459.63 76.51 — 583.57 9 876.06 2.3
Community 6 923.38 50.64 — 111.08 6 81230 49.83
ECU 1 550.00 11.34 — 1 550.00 11.34
GBP 112214 8.21 361.30 1 483.44 10.85
FRF 129210 9.45 129210 9.45
ITL 1239.11 9.06 — 325.46 913.65 6.68
ESP 813.24 5.95 — 813.24. 595
PTE 250.43 1.83 — 25043 1.83
NLG 173.23 1.27 — 173.23 1.27
BEF 165.94 1.21 — 165.94 1.2
DEM 293.47 215 — 146.92 146.55 1.07
LUF 23.71 0.17 — 23.71 0.17
Non-Community 3 536.25 25.87 — 472.49 306376 22.47
usb 1 898.63 13.89 — 243.60 1655.03 12.11
CHF 539.57 3.95 242.64 782.21 572
JPY 838.31 6.13 — 211.79 626.52 4.58
AUD 25974 1.90 — 25974 — —
Floating-rate borrowings 1729.20 12.65 585.11 2 314.30 1693
DEM 904.20 6.61 146.92 105111 7.69
ECU 450.00 3.29 — 450.00 —
ITL — — 325.46 325.46 2.38
usb — —_ 257.25 257.25 —
GBP 289.04 2.1 — 144.52 144.52 —
FRF 85.96 0.63 — 85.96 0.63
Medium-term USD-denominated notes 349.33 2.56 — 349.33 256
TOTAL 12 53815 9172 1.54 () 12 539.69 91.72
2. SHORT-TERM OPERATIONS
Commercial paper
ECU 500.00 3.66 — 500.00 3.66
ITL 226.92 1.66 —_ 22692 1.66
GBP 209.46 1.53 _— 209.46 1.53
NLG 196.21 1.44 — 196.21 1.44
TOTAL 1132.59 8.28 — 113259 8.28
Total (1+2) 13 670.74 100.00 1.54 13 672.28 100.00

(') Exchange odjustments
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Table 13: Pattern

of resources raised

{million ecus)

1987 1988 1989 1990 1991
Medium and long-term operations (after swaps) 55725 74136 8764.9 9 804.3 12 539.7
Public issues 37684 57720 77913 82177 11 614.9
Private borrowings 996.1 12749 9734 1230.3 575.5
Interbank operations 4559 311.2 — — —
Medium-term notes 3521 55.5 — 356.3 3493
Short-term operations — - 200.0 1145.7 11326
(Commercial paper)
Third-party participations in Bank loans 20.2 - 321 356 —
Total 55927 7 666.1 7 666.1 10 995.6 13 672.3
of which certificates of deposit — 2525 37.5 100 —

such as the ltalian Republic's 20-year
borrowing, continued with its policy of
launching fungible tranches. It set up
benchmark offering various
maturities, targeting external markets,
particularly Japan with two issues, one
for 50 million and the other 300 million.

issues

In the second half, with the exception of
one fixed-rate private placing for 50
million, the EIB concentrated on float-
ing-rate resources, in response to the
preferences of its own borrowers
seeking variable-rate loans and the
state of the markets for fixed-rate funds
beset by the uncertainties, raised at the

Maastricht summit, overhanging the
future of the ecu. The EIB first of all
brought the volume of its commercial
paper up to 1 600 million, floating a new
500 million tranche accompanied by a
back-up line. It subsequently launched a
10-year floating-rate bond issue for 400
million, boosting its pool of floating-
rate resources with funds obtained on
attractive conditions.

The volume of funds raised in pounds
sterling remained high, reaching 1 837
million ecus, gathered mainly on the
international Eurosterling market where
the EIB was able to tap the equivalent
of 1 411 million.

In the fixed-rate segment of the sterling
market, the EIB continued its policy of
adding to the amounts issued through
tranches fungible with an existing stock:
of the six public borrowings in pounds
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sterling, five took the form of fungible
tranches. This policy has enabled the
Bank to take advantage of market
conditions when the time is right, whilst
keeping down the number of its issues
to those of a sufficient volume to offer
significant liquidity on the secondary
market. Fixed-rate resources were
topped up through a private placing
as well as interest-rate and currency
swaps totalling 433 million. To meet de-
mand for variable-rate loans, the Bank
boosted the amount outstanding under
its commercial paper programme by 210
million and launched a public floating-
rate issue.



The growth in resources raised in
ltalian lire continued, reaching a total
of 1 466 million ecus, a rise of more than
70% over 1990. The EIB was active
chiefly on the international market,
where it floated three public issues, two
with maturities increased to 10 years, in
step with trends on the domestic market.
The technique of adding fungible
tranches served to bring in 1 000 billion
lire under a single issue, the largest on
the Eurolire market. On the domestic
market, EIB activity was limited to a
single borrowing.

Variable-rate lending was resourced by
boosting the amount outstanding under
the commercial paper programme by
227 million and by swapping fixed-rate
funds for floating rate.

The volume of resources collected in
French francs reached 1378 million
ecus, slightly up on the previous year.
Issues, almost all directed at the fixed-
rate sector, were launched on both the
domestic and international markets. By
adding fungible tranches, the EIB
increased the size of its operations so as
to boost liquidity on the secondary mar-
ket and limit the number of times it had
to go to the market. It also obtained
floating-rate funds through a private
borrowing in Eurofrancs.
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With a surplus of funds in Deutsche
Mark, service payments on its loans
exceeding the cost of servicing its bor-
rowings in that currency, the EIB raised
the equivalent of 1198 million ecus, a
volume on a par with that of the pre-
vious year. In view of the particularly
attractive conditions the EIB was able to
command on the market, most of these
funds were at floating rates. Four bor-
rowings were contracted totalling 904
million, serving to feed the pool of float-
ing-rate resources or to arrange back-
to-back loans with its borrowers. Ad-

DISBURSEMENTS AND LOANS
OUTSTANDING

The total amount disbursed in 1991
on loans from the Bank's own resour-
ces came to 15316 million, com-
prising 15002 million made avai-
lable within the Member States and
314 million outside the Community.

The aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of loans from own resour-
ces and guarantees climbed from
61 945 million at 31 December 1990
to 72713 million at 31 December
1991.

Disbursements made in 1991 on
financing operations from Communi-
ty or Member States' resources ran
to 193 million, consisting of 75
million in loans provided under the
NCI facility and 118 million for
operations in the African, Caribbean
and Pacific States and a number of
non-member Mediterranean Coun-
tries. The omount outstanding on
Special Section operations dipped
from the previous year's figure of
7 059 million to 6 338 million at the
end of 1991.
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ditional floating-rate  finance  was
acquired by swapping against fixed
rate. At the close of the year, having
obtained rates significantly lower than
those on government borrowings, the
EIB floated a fixed-rate issue for 147
million.

With the Spanish capital market offer-
ing investors relatively high yields com-
pared with a good number of other cur-
rencies, the EIB tapped this market for
fairly substantial amounts. Resources
obtained in pesetas climbed by 32% to
reach 813 million ecus. As usual, it
approached the “matador” market, the
domestic peseta market for non-resi-
dents, where it launched six issues
throughout the year offering maturities
of five or ten years. It once again
arranged a benchmark issue {50 billion
pesetas), although for a shorter term
than the previous year, by successively
adding tranches fungible with previous
stock.

The volume of funds collected on the
capital markets in the Benelux countries
was relatively modest. In the Nether-
lands, two borrowings were arranged
for a total of 173 million ecus, one in the
form of a private placing and the other
by means of a public issue. The amount
outstanding under the commercial
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Table 14: Breakdown by currency of resources raised

{million ecus)
ECU GBP ITL FRF DEM ESP NLG PTE BEF LUF usD CHF JPY Total
1991
“amount 2500 1837 1466 1378 1198 813 369 250 166 24 2262 782 627 13672
% 18.3 13.4 107 10.1 8.8 59 27 1.8 1.2 0.2 16.5 57 446 100.0
1990
amount 1765 1331 851 1114 1123 614 528 124 330 52 1574 818 771 10996
% 16.0 12.1 77 10.1 10.2 5.6 438 1.1 3.0 0.5 143 7.4 7.0 100.0

paper programme was bolstered by 196
million, bringing the total roised in
guilders to 369 million. The only oper-
otion offered on the Belgian capital
market consisted of a public issue for
166 million ecus, with competitive bid-
ding employed to select the lead man-
ager. Similarly, the Luxembourg mar-
ket saw only one EIB borrowing, a pub-
lic issue for 24 million ecus floated at the
beginning of the year when market con-
ditions were favourable.

In Portugal, the Bank was present on the
“navegador” market, the domestic mar-
ket for escudo-denominated foreign
bonds, with three public issues for
amounts of 10, 15 and 20 billion escu-
dos, the latter being the largest on the
market. The total amount tapped there-

by came to 250 million ecus, equivalent
to nearly half of aggregate issues on
this market in 1991.

Borrowings in dollars recorded a
marked upturn with the equivalent of
2262 million ecus raised, placing this
currency in second position after the
ecu. This renewed growth can be attri-
buted to substantial demand for this
currency on the part of the EIB's clien-
tele - particularly towards the end of the
year - when the substantial fall in long-
term dollar rates coincided with a con-
siderable narrowing in the gap between
yields on EIB paper and those on US
Treasury issues serving as a reference.
Furthermore, the interest-rate reduc-
tions enabled the EIB to make use of
early redemption clauses attached to a
number of its dollar issues, obliging it to
find resources for refinancing, princi-
pally through issuing medium-term
notes on the United States capital mar-
ket.

Given the particularly generous condi-
tions it offered, the Eurodollar market
was drawn on to provide resources for
financing loans. In line with the now cus-
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tomary practice of selecting lead man-
agers through competitive bidding, five
issues were launched for amounts
ranging from 300 to 500 million dollars,
carrying maturities of between five and
ten years. The proceeds of one of these
operations were swapped for a non-
Community currency. These issues were
floated using the habitual fixed reoffer-
ed price technique with substantial
amounts being placed with a limited
number of financial institutions, making
for considerably reduced banking com-
mission. Whenever market conditions
permitted, the EIB established bench-
mark operatons by supplementing
existing issues with fungible tranches.

On the US market, after having used up
the full amount of its second, 500 mil-



lion dollar medium-term note program-
me, the EIB embarked on a third such
programme for 750 million dollars. Over
the year, note issues totalled 428 million
dollars, with maturities between one
and eight years to match those
required for financing early redemp-
tions.

Although interesting opportunities on
the markets were few and far between,
the Bank was able to raise the equiv-
alent of 838 million ecus in all in Japa-
nese yen. This was mostly drawn from
the Euromarket which, as for other cur-
rencies, offered the best conditions.
Three issues were launched on this mar-
ket for 20 or 50 billion yen, responding
to investors’ preferences for operations
with  increasingly  large  nominal
amounts. Early in the year, the addition
of fungible tranches helped to set up a
100 billion yen issue, one of the most

Trends in total ecu-denominated
public issues on the various
markets from 1981 to 1991
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substantial on the market. Finally, a fur-
ther 20 billion yen was raised through a
private placing.

Patchy demand and a weak market led
to a reduction in the amounts raised in
Swiss francs (782 million ecus). Funds
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were obtained through currency swaps
when demand on the part of the EIB's
borrowers made itself felt in the face of
tension on the capital market. The bulk
of EIB borrowing activity in this currency
took the form of four public issues for
amounts between 150 and 400 million
Swiss francs; two of these, fungible
operations, represented a benchmark
issue. Lead managers were generally
appointed on the basis of competitive

bidding.

In 1991, the Bank was also the first
foreign borrower able to make use of
the Australian domestic market with a
programme for 750 million Australian
dollars, of which 400 million was laun-
ched simultaneously on the London and
Sydney stock exchanges. The funds so
collected were used in currency and
interest-rate swaps for floating-rate

US dollars.




With application of the Council’s direc-
tive of 8 December 1986, the direct fink
which existed in previous yeors between
the figures presented in this chapter ond
those given in the financial statements
(profif and loss account) no longer
obtains. To aflow for comparison bet-
ween these and figures for preceding
years and to make the accounts more
trensparent, it seemed appropriate, in
presenfing the results for the year, fo
extract from the various items in the
profif and loss accounts those which
best illustrate the Bank's activity.

In 1991, as in the past, own funds
remained the principal source of EIB
revenue. Receipts of interest and com-
mission on loans ran to 5724 million
compared with 4775 million in 1990,
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Results for the Year

whilst interest and charges on bor-
rowings totalled 5 020 million as against
4130 million the previous year. Man-
agement commission rose from 15 mil-
lion in 1990 to 16 million in 1991.

Investment income (interest and com-
mission) climbed from 409 million in
1990 to 496 million in 1991, as a result
of the increased volume of funds
employed.

Financial income, once again, showed a
surplus over financial charges of 346 mil-
lion compared with 6 million in 1990.

Taking into account exchange differ-
ences and after providing for amortis-
ation of issuing charges and redemption
premiums (102 million), admijnistrative
expenses and charges plus depreciation
of buildings, furniture and equipment,
the profit on the Bank's ordinary activi-
ties amounted to 1059 million. After
due allowance for the effect of changes

in conversion rates vis-d-vis the ecu,
i.e. + 24 million, the balance of the
profit and loss account amounted to
1 083 million in 1991 as against 894
million in 19%90.

The Board of Directors has decided to
recommend that the Governors appro-
priate the balance of the profit and loss
account, 1083 million, as follows:

— 124 million to the Reserve Fund
which thereby amounts to 10% of sub-
scribed capital;

— 959 million to the Additional Re-
serves.

At 31 December 1991, the balance sheet
total stood at 74 290 million compared
with 62 342 million at 31 December
1990, a rise of more than 19%.



DECISION-MAKING BODIES
Board of Governors:

Mr Pierre BEREGOVOY held the office
of Chairman of the Board of Governors
until the Annual Meeting in June 1991,
after which, in accordance with the
system of annual rotation, he was suc-
ceeded by Mr Albert REYNOLDS,

Governor for Ireland.

Having reploced Mr Albert REYNOLDS
as Governor for Ireland, Mr Bertie
AHERN succeeded him as Chairman of
the Board of Governors as from 14
November 1991.

Board of Directors:

Since publication of the Annual Report
for the financial year 1990, Mr Yves
LYON-CAEN has been appointed
Director to replace Mr Paul MENTRE,
who left the Board in November 1990,
and Mr Eberhard KURTH has been
appointed Alternate Director replacing
Mr Horst MOLTRECHT.

The Board of Directors wishes to thank
all outgoing members for their highly
valued contributions towards Bank
activity.

Management Committee:
The Board of Governors appointed

Mr José de OLIVEIRA COSTA, former
Portuguese Secretary of State for Fiscal

MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

Affairs, Vice-President as from 1 Janu-
ary 1992. He succeeds Mr Miguel A.
ARNEDO ORBANANOS, Vice-Presi-
dent since February 1986 following the
accession of Spain and Portugal, who
has been appointed Honorary Vice-
President.

Audit Committee:

At its Annual Meeting, the Board of
Governors renewed the appointment of
the member of the Audit Committee
whose term of office was coming to an
end. Hence, Mr THANOPOULQOS, out-
going Chairman, was reappointed a
member of the Audit Committee for the
1991, 1992 and 1993 financial years. In
accordance with the customary system
of rotation, Mr HANSEN has taken over
chairmanship of the Committee until the
Bank's end-of-year accounts are appro-
ved at the 1992 Annual Meeting.

In 1991, the Committee continued its
customary work of auditing the Bank's
books and accounts, with the support of
the Bank's own monitoring staff, in par-
ticular the analysts in the Internal Audit
Division, and the external auditors,
Price Waterhouse. As part of its inves-
tigations, the Committee conducted on-
the-spot visits to projects financed in
Germany, Senegal and ltaly. Represen-
tatives of the Court of Auditors took
part in the visit to Italy, under the
arrangements agreed in 1989 between
the EC Commission, the Court and the
Bank.

Consultative Group:

The Management Committee has de-
cided to group the main functions of the
Bank into four areas which will be coor-
dinated by a Head of Directorate. These
areas are: lending {Mr Eugenio GREPPI),
finance (Mr Philippe MARCHAT), econ-

60

omic and technical support (Mr Herbert
CHRISTIE) and general affairs and ad-
ministration (Mr Dieter HARTWICH). This
group will in particular address oper-
ational issues involving cross-directorate
coordination and have regular meetings
with the Management Committee.

MANAGEMENT. OF HUMAN
RESOURCES

During the course of 1991, the Bank
commissioned management consultants
to conduct a series of studies on mana-
gement procedures, policies relating to
management of human resources,
updating of management information
systems and ex-post evaluation of EIB
activities. In the light of these studies
and after consultations at all levels of
the Bank, it was decided to embark
upon a number of reforms in all these
areas.

Personnel Policy:

In-depth and constructive discussions
with the Stoff Representatives have
served to define certain adjustments
which can be made to the merit-based
remuneration and promotion system
introduced in 1988. The purpose of
these discussions is to build on the role
of the appraisal as an active career
management tool. Particular emphasis is
being placed on measures to match
career profiles to each individual's pro-
fessional aptitudes and qualities.



Training:

In 1991, some 4350 days were given
over to training, an average of six days
per employee. Apart from language
courses and tuition in data processing,
of particular importance in 1991, trai-
ning was geared to acquiring and up-
dating  professional  expertise and
equipping the staff with the skills nee-
ded to meet the Bank's future require-
ments. During the next few years, addi-
tional resources will be made available
to ensure, notably by enhancing the
level of professional qualifications, that
staff gain wide-ranging experience
through internal mobility, an important
factor in successful staff management
and individual career development.

Management information and
Ex-post evaluation:

The process of analysing evolving needs
in the field of management information
and ex-post evaluation of activities has
continued, with the aim of achieving
management and
monitoring of the EIB's performance.

improvements in

Staff Secretarial,

comple- Executive  Clerical and

Year ment Staff  Support staff
1987 699 344 355
1988 710 357 353
1989 718 366 352
1990 724 368 356
1991 731 400 351

Staff:

At 31 December 1991, the EIB's staff
complement totalled 751, with the pro-
portion in executive positions (400
employees) rising. This trend is partly
the outcome of a personnel policy
directed, as in the past, towards con-
tained growth in staff numbers coupled
with updating of working methods
through increased use of advanced
office and computer systems.

Since publication of the Annual Report
for the financial year 1990, Mr John
VAN SCHIL, Head of the Treasury
Department, has taken his retirement
and since August 1991 been replaced by
Mr Luc WINAND.

GENERAL
EIB Prize and Scholarships:

In 1991, the EIB Prize was awarded to
Mr Benoit Mulkay for his doctoral the-
sis at the Catholic University of Louvain,
entitled “Investment and Business Sur-
vey, a study on a Panel of French Indu-
strial Firms”.

Staff complement related to total
Bank activity

Activity (million ecus! Workforce
16000 I
=== Amounts at 1991 prices
14000 T -
= Amounts at current prices /
12000 -
Workforce /

10000

8 000

6000

4000

2000
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The EIB prize, for an amount of 12 000
ecus, is awarded every two years to
encourage the study of all aspects of
investment and its financing at univer-
sities in the Community Member States.

Since 1978, with a view to fostering
research on European matters, the EIB
has also awarded three scholarships
each year to students preparing their
doctoral theses at the European Univer-
sity Institute in Florence.

In addition, the Institutes of Economics
and Statistics at the University of
Copenhagen administer the “Erling
Jorgensen” European Investment Bank
Scholarship. This scholarship, estab-
lished in 1990 in commemoration of the
former Vice-President of the EIB, is
awarded each year to a student prepar-
ing a thesis on political and economic
matters relating to the Community.

The Board of Directors wishes to
express its satisfaction with the consis-
tently high level of productivity attained
and to thank all of the staff for the qual-
ity of their work. It would like to encour-
age continuance of such achievements.

Luxembourg,
7 April 1992

The Chairman
of the Board of Directors
Ernst-Ginther Bréder



Growth in the balance sheet of the Bank
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 1991

In ecus — see notes to the financial statements

'31.12.19%0
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" ASSETS 31. 12, 1991
1. Cash in hand, balances with central banks and post ;Z“/ Vhemegt o
office banks e e e e e e e e e 72139050 & 24059 948
2 Treasury bills eligible for refinancing with central -
banks (Note B) .. . .. 584 582 489 434561 514
3. Loans and advances to credit institutions »
{a) repayable on demand . 230 160 840 : 210114121
(b} other loans and advances {Note C) 2665 819 898 37252080152
(c) loans: aggregate outstanding (') 27 715 581 211 24 245507 613
less undisbursed portion 2879 684 704 2698615596
24 835 896 507 " 21 546 892017
27 731 877 245 ... 25009 086 290
4. Loans and advances to customers
loans: aggregate outstanding (') 44 627 157 601 37 305 445373
less undisbursed portion 3748 624 562 4190:571 645 .
40 878 533 039 .~ 33114873728
5. Debt securities including fixed-income securities :
{(Note B} o
(a) issued by public bodies 898111 571 . 646050317 7
{b) issued by other borrowers 679 630753 332008745 -
1577 74234 s 978 059 062
6. Shares and other variable-yield securities (Note M) . 18 000 000 —
7. Intangible assets S
unamortised issuing charges and redemption premiums 460 475 440 470890 606
8. Tangible assets (Note D) . 37 626 019 © 34527199
9. Other assets
(a) receivable from Member States for adjustment of capital
" contributions (Note E) . e e 624797
...(b) receivable in respect of EMS interest subsidies paid in
-+ .advance (Note F) 17 734 89N
{c) .sundry debtors (Note G) 71 604 290 IR
ERLA ‘ 189963978 .
(Sgl;s'cri’beav capital, called but not paid (%) 828 87§ ooo
11. Prepayments and accrued income 1 910879819
bl 74 290 694 403
APPENDED SUMMARY STATEMENTS:
(') Loans and guarantees, page 70.
(%) Debts evidenced by certificates, page 73.
(®) Subscriptions to the capital of the Bank, page 73.
VRN
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- ASSETS

STATEMENT OF SPECIAL SECTION (') AS AT 31 DECEMBER 19

In ecus — see notes to the financiol statements

31. 12, 1991

_ Member States
From resources of the European Atomic Energy Community
Loans outstanding

— disbursed (3) .

From resources of the European Economic Community (New
Community Instrument for borrowing and lending)

Loans outstanding

— undisbursed .

— disbursed e
Total (3)

Turkey

From resources of Member States

Loans outstanding

— undisbursed .

— disbursed e
Total {*)

Mediterranean Countries

From resources of the European Economic Community

Loans outstanding

— undisbursed .

— disbursed

Risk capital operations
—= amounts to be disbursed
— amounts disbursed

Total (%)

Africun, Caribbean and Pacific States and Overseas
" Countries and Territories

+ From resources of the European Economic Community

: First and Second Yaoundé Conventions

| Loans disbursed . .

4 onmbuhons to the formation of nsk ccplta|

amounts disbursed -

st ' Total {¢)

First, Second, Third and Fourth Lomé Conventions

i-Risk capital.operations

*“~ amounts fo be disbursed

i=- amounts disbursed e
Total (%)

Grand Total

1 558 849 764 1683493948

94 926 97
3128791 84

136 543 416
3737 037 084"

3223718795 3 873 580 500

29 434 437
214 982 106

18592626
207 981 236

226 573 862 244 416 543

10203 972

6 550 804 ;
290964 167 -

285 772 856

292 323 660 301 168 139

22377 746
10995128

23099 707
2723114 . :
.. 33372874

* 334541 013

45822 821
338 146 481

73181 999

1222427 o
74404426

338 669 590
577 235 317
915 904 907

6337 598 235 7058 785 515

For information:

Total amounts disbursed and not yet repaid on loans on special conditions made available by the Commission in’ respect of whuch the Bank has

accepted an EEC mandate for recovering principal and interest:

(a) Under the First, Second and Third Lomé Conventions: ot 31 December 1991: 1 107 352 302; ot 31 December 1990: 1:033 911 567.
(b} Under Financial Protocols signed with the Mediterranean countries: at 31 December 1991: 133 502 076; at 31 December 1990 121 707 368.

(') The Special Section was set up by the Board of Governors
on 27 May 1963: under a Decision taken on 4 August 1977 its
purpose was redefined as being that of recording operations
carried out by the European Investment Bonk for the account
of and under mandate from third parties.

(3 Initial amount of contracts signed under Council Decisions
77/271/Buratom of 29 March 1977, 82/170/Euratom of
15 March 1982 and 85/537/Euratom of 5 December 1985 pro-

viding for an amount of three billion as a contnbuhon towards
financing commercially-rated nuclear power stations within the
Community under mandate, for the account and: at the risk of
the European Atomic Energy Community: 12773167139
add:  exchange adjustments o 105 478 232
=1 319795 607

1558849764

less:  repayments

=)
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3 128791 824
308495970'
74404426 -,

94926971
18592626
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o 338669590
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246247 . — 19062519 ©  — exchange ad|ustments
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In ecus — see notes to the financial statements

31.12.1990.

31. 12. 1991
1. Interest receivable and similar income (Note l) . . . . 6 221 537 252 5922 140 988
2. Interest payable and similar charges . . . . — 5031397497 : 4136929 819
3. Commissions receivable (Note J) . . . . e 16 119 506 15 407 552
4, Commissionspayable . . . . . . . e — 4749 467 -~ 6302376
5. Net profit/loss on financial operations . . 60 450 325 — 20247726
6. Other operating income . . . . . . .o 198627 T 464509
7. General administrative expenses: (Note K) o — 94242745 — 85214345
(@) staffcosts . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 77 91 920 71931858,
(b) other administrative expenses . . . 16 950 825 13.282 487
8. Value adjustments in respectof: . . . e — 108934 203 — 96302355
{a) issuing charges and redemption premiums . . 102017 382 90539 366
(b} buvldmgs and net purchases of' furniture and equipment sl
(NoteD) . . . . . . .o v . .o 6916 821 5762989
. 9. Profit on ordinary activities . . . . . R 1058 981 798 : 893016 428
.+ 10, Net gain arismg from revaluation of net Bank assets ;-
not subject to a |ustmenf under Article 7 of the Statute PO e
(Note A8T) . . . e . e + 24 479 300 +:1,0917468
. 11. Profit for the financial year (Note L) . . . .o 1083 461 098

.%D
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES AS AT 31 DECEMBER 1991

In ecus — see notes to the financial statements

1. Aggregate loans outstanding (*)

(*

—

Aggregate historical amount of loans
calculated on the basis of the parities

applied on the date of signature 103 204 697 157
Add:
exchange adjustments . . . . . . + _ 637009287

103 841 706 444
Loans outstanding comprise both the disbursed portion of |oons and

Less:
terminations and cancellations 1251338 145

principal repayments 30121 864 208

third party participations 125765 279

— 31498967 632

the portion still to be disbursed. Aggregate loans outstanding 72342738812
2. Statutory ceiling on lending and guarantee operations — aggregate loans outstanding 72342738812

Under the terms of Article 18 (5) of

— oggregate guarantees outstanding

the S’rotufe, the aggregate amount f? balance-sheet items):

outstanding at any time of loans and

guarantees granted by the Bank must in respect of loans grcnted by third

not exceed 250% of its subscribed parties . 244 804 996

capital. o in respect of third party pornmpo-

The present level Of _CC‘P”GI implies a tions in Bank loans 125765279

ceiling of 144 billion in relation

to ‘aggregate loans and guarantees 370570275

outstanding currently totalling

72713309087 and broken down as Aggregate loans and guarantees out- .

follows: standing . 72713309087

Loans granted

to intérmediary directly to
credit final
institutions beneficiaries Total
3. Analysis of aggregate loans outstanding
Loans disbursed 24 835 896 507 40 878 533 039 65714 429 546
Undisbursed portion 2879 684704 3748 624 562 6628 309 266
Aggregate loans outstanding: 27 715 581 21 44 627 157 601 72342738812
4. Breakdown of undisbursed portion by type of
interest rate
Fixed rate of interest and standard currency mix, as
specified in the finance contract .. . 57 461 648 204 276 329 261737 977
Fixed rate of interest, as specified in the fmonce confroc'f
with the Bank selechng the currency mix 600514 390 791 41310 1391 927 491
Open rate, with the Bank selecting the rate of mteresf cnd
currency mix .o 2165 088 857 2291 631 286 4456720143
Variable rate 37 046 047 167 655 960 204 702 007
Revisable rate 19573762 293 647 886 313221 648
Undisbursed portion: . 2879684 704 3748624 562 6628 309 266

. Scheduled repayments on loans disbursed
Period remaining until final maturity .

* Not more than three months . . .. 400607 141 416 619.877 817 227 018
More than three months but not more fhon one year A 789760128 2632111766 4421 871 894,
More than one year but not more than five years .12 479°567 535 16868 542 493 29348 110028"
More than five years . 10165961 703 20 961 258 903 31127 220 606
Loans disbursed: " 24 835 896 507 40 878 533 039 65714429546
Breakdown of loans disbursed by currency of
repayment
Member States' currencies and the ecu 20 662 447 236 30 592 986 830 51 255 434 066
Other currencies 4173 449 271 10 285 546 209 14 458 995 480
Loans disbursed: 24 835 896 507 40 878 533 039 65714429 546

D
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78~.‘ Breakdown of loans by principal form of guaranteé (a)

8.1 Logns for projects within the Community and related
ans (b)

ans  granted to,6F guaranteed’ by, i e
MemberStates . .* . . . . . .. 34377103 968 (c-d)
Léans granted to, or guaranteed by,
public institutions of Member States .
Loans granted to, or guaranteed by,
financiol institutions (banks, long-term
redi iinstitutions, insyrance companigf] 19914 479 42
oans . guaranteed ' by companies’
{excluding financial« institutions) under
majority control of Member States or
public institutions in the Community

Loans secured by fixed charge on readl

4 409 413716

921725381 (c)
237173224

non-bank

. 7024 900068 3

6ans secured by fixed charge on assets
other than real estate, or other security . 1 549 293 28]

Sub-total 68 434 089 063

. In.keeping with Council Directive 89/647/EEC of 18 December

i1989 0n a solvency, ratio for credit institutions and pursuont-to-
the change in legal status of certaintbanking clients hitherto
fecturing among public institutions, the Bang has transferred
the aggregate amount outstanding as at 31 December 1991 in
respect o? loans to all public bodies engaged in banking acti-
vities (7.6 billion) from “loans granted to, or guaranteed by,
public institutions in the Community” and reclassified it under
"Loa/?s lgranfed to, or guaranteed by; financial institutions

s, Jo

2,

ng-termm:credit institutions, instrance companiés)t:

82 Loans for projects outside the Community

8.2.1 Loans granted under the First Lomé
Convention :

;zor. guaranteed. by,
i to cthe

69567770
4764996
74332766 (e)

“. Convention Gl
Loans secured by other guarantees

8.:2.2 Loans granted: under the Second
Lome Convention .,

sans; granted  to; gucronte‘ed"‘l))y;
ACP ' States signatories to the :
" Convention oo . 294 444 213
Loans secured by other guarantees 10510817
Loans granted for mining and energy
' 9635104

elopment projects (Article 59) . .
. L 314590 2347 {e)

8.2.3 Loans granted under the Third
Lomé Convention

Loansigranted to, or g ’ ranteed by«,(‘ ,
ACP -States signatories to  the o
Convention e e 699 494 067
Loans secured by other guarantees 39 811 209

739305276 ()"

8.2.4 Loans granted un gr the Fourt
Lomé:Convention T
Loans ‘granted to, or guaranteed by,

ACP States signatories to the .
Convention e e 198 000 000
Loans secured by other guarantees 19 471 325

DT ATT325 (o) -

EC financigl’

8.2.5 Loans granted under
‘Mediterranean

agreements with
Countries

Loans gronted to, or guaranteed or
counter-guaranteed by, Mediterranean
Countries  signatories’ . to  these
agreements ‘

8.2.6 Loans granted as part of financial:
cooperation with Central -and Eastern
European Countries

499496219 ()

Sub-total 3908 649 749

Aggregate loans outstanding . 72342738 812

{a) Ceriain loans are covered by several types of guarantee or security,

(b} Loans authorised under the second paragraph: of Article 18 (1) of -
the Statute for projects. located outside the territory of Member
States but offering benefits for the Community are considered as
related to loans within the Community. i L

{c) The .blanket guarantee provided by the EEC amounted fto
3 312 030 500 ot 31 December 1991 compared;to 2 953 656 204.of
31 December 1990. Thisguarantee is provided:to i A
attaching to financial commitments in the Med)
as well as in Greece, Spain and Portugal arising from loans granted
prior fo these countries’ accession to the EEC, totalling 721 982 080
at 31 December 199].

(d) Aggregate loans outstanding guaranteed by the EEC omounted to. .-
7 378 280 ot 31 December 1991. s

(e} Gudrantees provided by. Member States to c
to'financial commitments entered into unde,
amount respectively to: '+ . o
— First Convention: 73593740
— Second Convention: 312 662 450
— Third Convention: 565 286 500
— Fourth Convention: 163 125 000. )

(f) Loons granted in Central and Eastern European; Countries are fully
guaranteed by the EEC, .

iy
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 December 1991 — in ecus

Note A — Significant accounting policies

1. Conversion of currencies

In accordance with Article 4 (1) of its Statute, the EIB uses the
ecu adopted by the European Communities as the unit of mea-
sure for the capital accounts of Member States and for pre-
senting its financial statements.

The value of the ecu is equal to the sum of the followmg
amounts of the Member States’ currencies: :

DEM 0.6242 NLG 02198 |EP 0.008552
GBP 0.08784 BEF 3301 . GRD 1.44
FRF 1.332 LUF 013 ESP 6.885

LM 151.8 DKK 01976 PTE1.393.
The conversion rates between Member Sfo rrencies: and
the ecu, which are determined on the basis of. mcrkef rates, are
pubhshed daily in the Official Journal of fhe European ‘Com-
munities.

The Bank applies these rates in calculating the rates oppllccble
to other currencies used for its operations.

The Bank conducts its operations in the currencies of its
Member States, in ecus and in non-Community currencies.

Its resources are derived from its capital, borrowings and accu-
mulated earnings in various currencies ond are held, invested
or lent in the same currencies.

The following conversion rates were used for drawing up the

balance sheets at 31 December 1991 and 31 December 1990:

lecw = 31.12.1991 31,12, 1990

2.04195
69501

2.03553

695338

071 61 17
15424 54026

Deutsche Mark
French francs

. Pounds sterling
" Italion fire

Spanish pesetas 129.668 130,604
Belgian francs 419308 - 42.1839
Dutch guilders 2.29352 12.30384
Danish kroner 7.92945 - 7.8826
Drachmas 235.065 214.065
Portuguese escudos 179.886 182.818

. lrish pounds 0.766332 076784
Luxembourg francs 41.9308 42,1839
United States dollars 1.34093 1.3633
Swiss francs 1.81763 174162
Lebanese pounds 1179.35 1147.9
Japanese yen 167.549 184.932
Austrion Schillinge 14.3238 143665
Canadian dollars 1.55078 . 1.58143
Australian dollars 176345 o 176822

. CFA francs 347.669

% The Bank's assets and liabilities are conver’red ntoh ecus: The
gain or loss arising from such conversion is credﬂed or chorged
to the profit and loss account. :

I

070784 -

Excluded from such calculations are the assets 'fépresen’ring the
portion of capital paid in by the Member: States in their
national currency which is adjusted penodlcolly in accordonce
with Article 7 of the Bank’s Statute.

2. Treasury bills and other bills eligible: for, refinancing with
central banks and debt securities mc/ud/ng fixed-income
securities .

Treasury bonds, notes and bonds are normally included ot cost,
or at the lower of nominal or market value where these are less
than the original cost. , 2

3. Lloans and advances to credit instituti ’.Ld ‘ustomers

Loans are included in the assets. of the B t:their: net dis-
bursed amounts. S L
4, Tangible assefs

‘initial write-
cumulated  de-

Land and bwldmgs are stated at' cost fe
down of the Kirchberg heodquor’rers a
preciation. Depreciation is calculated - fo - off the value
of the Bank's Luxembourg-Kirchberg headquarters and its
office in Lisbon on the straight-line basis over 30 and 25 years
respectively. Office furniture and equnpment ore depreciated
in full in the year of acquisition.

5. Intangible assets

Issuing charges and redemption premiums are amortised over
the lives of the borrowings based on the principal amounts out-
standing.

6. Staff pension fund

The Bank has a contributory pension scheme. for its staff. All
contributions to the scheme by the Bank nd its staff are
invested in the assets of the Bank. The a s set aside are
based on actuarial valuations perfgrmed three years.

7. Taxation

The Protocol on the Privileges. an
Communities, appended to the Treaty..
Jishing a Single Council and & Single’' Com
pean Communities, stipulates that the as
other property of the Bank are exempt

‘of the Euro-
évenues and
Il direct taxes.

8. Interest rate and currency swaps

The EIB enters into currency swaps in which the proceeds of a
borrowing may be converted into a different currency. Simulta-
neously, a forward exchange operation is conducted in order
to obtain the amounts needed to service the borrowing in the
original currency. The EIB also undertakes interest rate swaps,
which transform a fixed-rate bond into a Hloating-rate bond in
the same currency or vice versa.

9. Financial futures operations

Used solely by the Bank as a means of hedgmg" the value of its
bondholdings, at the year end open futures:contracts con-
cluded on organised markets are re- -valued: the closing date.
Following on from this and as o depar
standard portfolio valuation principles,:
the Bank's porffolio is marked to,rif\qu{

profit and loss account with the gains cnd
the portfolio hedged.
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S 'recewed i

Note F — Interest subsidies received in advadnce

{a) Part of the amounts received through EMS arrangements
has been made available as a long-term advance. The corre-
sponding contra account is entered on the assets side under
item 9.(b) as “Receivable in respect of EMS interest subsidies
paid in odvcnce

(b} On the | hes side (item 3(b))

! comprise:

— amounts ‘espécf of interest subsidies fo oans granted
for projects outside the Community, under Conventions signed
with the ACP States and Protocols concluded with the Mediter-
ranean countries, as well as interest subsidies, concerning cer-

tain lending operations mounted within the Community from
the Bank’s own resources, made available in conjunction with
the European Monetary System under Council Regulation (EEC)
No 1736/79 of 3 August 1979;

1983 and under Council Regulation (EE )
3 August 1979 as amended by Council Regulohon (EEC)
No 2790/82 of 18 October 1982.

Note G — 'O:t;he‘r balance sheet accounts

" Sundry &ébt 31.12.19910 31,12, 1990

staff housmg loans and

advances . 44 546767 - 40980 059
other . . . . . . . . 27057523 26872015
71 604 290 67 852 074

European Economic Com-
munity accounts:

for Special Section opera-
tions and related unsettled

839854889 825162715

amounts
deposit accounts .. 47845230 43911013
other . . . . . . . . 50416774 - 45156 881

938 116893 914 230 609

Sundry |IObI|IerS FIE
97 242 435

currency swcp opercmons 21 242, ‘
other . . . . . . . 1893372 17 849 711
40176 48 115092 146

Note H — Prowslons for liabilities and churges (staff pension fund)

The pens:on fund balance of 154 641 051 at 31 December 1991
e ie actuarial
. scheme in
accordance 'lwct_h;(the Pension Scheme Regulqtions,«,ym‘creosed by
the contributions of the Bank and its employees plus the
remuneration of the fund less withdrawals since the actuarial
valuation.

The cost of the staff pension scheme, mclud
by the Bank. for the financial year end
was 20017142 compared with 17'515
year 1990, -« :

ecember 1991
rthe: financial

Note | — Geographical analysis of “Interest receivable and similar income’ {item 1 of the profit and loss ‘account):

:.31.12. 1990

321 408 613"

GerrhcmyJ
‘ 787 67869

. France

Italy *. & 2055 4971151896 185 194
United ngdo .. 709 486003 - 524 037 642
Spain . ..o L 601 140 524 394 392 310
Belgium 53799 131 51514725
Netherlands 72 977 048 59 314 908
Denmark 250 678 477 207 452 154
Greece . 182 251 984 183749115
Portugal 269 646 273 184 678 238
Ireland 209 047 431 - 202510212
Luxembourg 4093500 - 3830181

Other c.ountvries 206 '|30 i 188 473 108

lncome"hotan&lyﬁs‘ed "

('} Income not analysed:

Interest and commissions

on funds placed 496349619 - 411574811
Other revenue from port- e
folio securities. . . 35771 531

447 346 342

*[)
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Assets
31.12. 199 31.12. 1990 31.12. 1991

60191 097 962 51 336 109 991 53 442 907 785

" Note P — Special deposits for service of borrowings

This item represents the amount of coupons and bonds due but
not yet presented for payment.

Note Q — The risk associated with swap contracts has 89/647/EEC of 18 December ]989 on'a solvency ratio for
been measured in accordance with Council Directive credlt institutions.

Note R — Statement of futures position at 31 December 1991

the Bank on the MATIF for the purpose of hedging its FRF port-
The amount of 153 881 997 represents 2 140 contracts sold by folio securities against fluctuations in interest rates.

REPORT BY THE EXTERNAL AUDITORS

< The President
- European Investment Bank
* Luxembourg

‘We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The financial stotemen’rs ~covere
‘the European Investment Bank at December 31, 1991 and 1990 following: , Ao

R . . o RRETRE RPN ¢
r ‘occ;k?rdom’:e with International Standards on Auditing. Balance sheet ,’

Profit and loss account’,

In ouriopinion these financial statements, which have been pre- Statement of special secﬂon
‘pared in dccordance with International Accounting Standards
“consistently applied, give a true and fair view of the financial
. position of the European Investment Bank at December 31, Summary statement of loans and guuran
% 1991 dnd 1990, the results of its operations and the changes in
its financial position for the years then ended. Accounting prin- ;
. ciples which are of particular significance to the preparation of - Statement of subscriptions to the capital Of the: Bonk
these financial statements are described in Note A of the Notes to the financial statements’ S
Notes to the financial statements. ‘

Statement of cash flows .

Summary statement of debts evidénced by )erhﬁcates S

Luxembourg, 7 February 1992 PRICE WATERHOUSE
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] |ducl loans fhrough the mtermednory of institutions and bonks, whose names appear at the head of the list of operations for each country.
umty policy ob|echves with which individual loans comply are highlighted by symbols in the righthand columns, Unless otherwise indicated,
globol loans cover a number of sectors and ob]ectwes (see box article on page 24). The symbols are as follows:

cl development

ndusfrlal competitiveness ‘and Europecn integration

: Commumfy infrastructure
s energy
4 protection of the environment and urban development

G L : million million

) ! _ ecus . ecus
BELGIUM (4.886.4 million Belgian francs) 115.6 Design, construction and operation in North Sea of
ey two jock-up drilling rigs
* Individual loans 21.0) Tankers and Liners in Portnership
e : DKK 800.0 million 1013 ¢
Intermediary:

. Bonque Indosuez Belgique S.A. Gas storage facility at Stenlille, near Copenhagen,

and pipeline from Torslunde

" National air traffic control centre Dansk Naturgas A/S

7' Reégie des voies aériennes/Regie der Luchtwegen A
. BEF 5700 million 135 o DKK 258.0 million 327 &
i( . Construction of headquarters of organisation respon- Extension of district heating system in Frederiksberg
) sible for air traffic safety in Europe and connection to Greater Copenhagen district heat-
i .Eurocontrol ing grid
BEF 316.3 million 75 @ Frederiksberg Kommune
DKK 52.2 million 66 @
- Global loans (94.6
For financing small and medium-scale ventures Motorway sections: Arhus - Alborg, Vejle - Horsens
Bank van Roeselare {Nordjylland) ond Ringsted - Skovse (Sjzlland) on
_ BEF 1.0 billion 23.6 motorway linking Copenhagen with Great Belt
. Crédit Général S.A. de Banque g;; ?'ggsé( e fﬁ?f fKingdom of Denmark) 127
'BEF 1.0 billion 236 ~ miion /Some
Kredietbank N.V.
. BEF 2.0:billion 47.3 Motorway suspension bridge on eastern section of
Great Belt fixed link
A/S Storebeltsforbindelsen
DKK 245.6 million 312 me
;» DENMARK (4 260.8 million Danish kroner) 538.8
. Flight simulator at Copenhagen Airport
. Individual loans 487.8) Flight Training Center A/S

DKK 54.0 million 69 @
Intermediaries:

1/8 ELSAM, KommuneKredit
Expansion and modernisation of telephone network in

Construction of coal-fired combined heat and power counties of Ribe, Veile, Arhus, Ringkebing, Viborg and
plant in Odense Nordjylland
1/S Fynsvaerket Jydsk Telefon A/S
' DKK 504.0 million 638 o DKK 421.4 million 535 me

Modernisation of urban waste incineration and com-

bined heat and power plant in Copenhagen Development of digital switching and fibre-optic

transmission system:

"~ 1/S Amager Forbreending )
DKK 50.0 million 63 e«
- . . . W — in Sjeelland and Bornholm
f’umpmg station at Filse for oil plpeh'ne hnkmg fields KTAS — Kjobenhavns Telefon AsS
in DOfn‘sh sector of North Sea with terminal ot DKK 4281 million 541 me
- Fredericia .
Donsk Olierer A/S
- DKK 39.8 million 50 ¢ — in Senderjylland
. : Tele Sonderjylland A/S
" Development of “Dan” oilfield in Danish sector of DKK 63.0 million 80 me
"North Sea
" Oif and Gas Activity in Partnership
: DKK 628.1 million 792 o Upgrading and extension of sewage collection and
treatment installations, construction and modern-
e isation of sewage treatment plants
50 Finance contracts are generally denominated in the equwolent of the national Arhus Kommune

- currency concerned - : DKK 50.0 million 63 «
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Renewal and modernisation of rolling stock on
Athens-Thessaloniki line

OSE — Orgonismos Sidirodromon Ellados (Hellenic
Railways Organisation)

GRD 3.3 billion

Corinth-Tripoli motorway and Megalopoli by-pass
{Peloponnese)

Hellenic Republic

GRD 3.0 billion

Upgrading to motorway specification of Varibobi-
Yliki section of Athens-Thessaloniki highway

Hellenic Republic

GRD 5.0 billion

Reconstruction of public and industrial buildings,
housing and road and sewerage networks in Kalo-
mata area domoged by September 1986 earthquake
Hellenic Republic

GRD 5.0 billion

- ‘Construction and/or fitting out of eighteen secondary
- level technical schools and five technological institutes
i ~Hellenic Republic

- :GRD 2.4 billion

!
- Globdl loans

For financing small and medium-scale ventures
* Banque Nationale de Paris
~ GRD 5.0 billion

Elliniki Trapeza Viomihanikis Anaptixeos A.E. (Hellenic
Industrial Development Bank S.A.)
GRD 5.0 billion

Ethniki Trapeza Ependiseon Viomihanikis Anaptixeos
A.E. (National Investment Bank for Industrial Develop-
ment S.A.)

GRD 5.0 billion

National Westminster Bank plc, Athens
GRD 2.0 billion

Ergobank S.A.
GRD 2.0 billion

Midland Bank plc
GRD 1.5 billion

. For financing small infrastructure projects under Com-
»-»munity Support Framework (regional)
»... Hellenic Republic

.. GRD 34.2 billion

For fingncing. small energy projects under Integrated
‘Mediterranean Programmes — IMPs

v Dimosia Epihirisi llektrismou (Public Power Corpor-
etion)

# ‘GRD 3.3 billion

For financing small projects to develop data pro-
cessing applications under information technology
IMP

Hellenic Republic

GRD 2.2 billion

million:
ecus

146 me

135 m

219 we

219 =

10.5°

{266.8)

23.4
222
219

93

9.0

67

150.0

146

9.7

million
ecus

2342.5

"SPAIN (301 225 million pesetas)
Individual loans

Intermediaries:

Banco Central S.A., Banco Hispano Americano S.A.,
Banco Espaiol de Crédito S.A., Banco Bilbao Viz-
caya S.A., Caja de Madrid, Banco Exterior de
Espafia S.A., Bankinter S.A., Banco Herrero S.A.,
Midland Bank ple Sucursal de Espafia

Expansion and modernisation of power transmission
and distribution network:

— nationwide
Red Flécirica de Espofia S.A.
ESP 10.0 billion

— in Madrid, Castilla-La Mancha and Castilla y Leon
. regions

Unién Eléctrica Fenosa S.A.

ESP 6.5 billion

.~ inValencia, Murcia and Castilla y Ledn regions
. Hidroeléctrica Espariola $.A.
< ESP24.0 billion

“ “:ments t6 metropolitan rail networks in Madrid, Bar-
“celond’and Valencia
_RENFE — Red Nacional de los Ferrocorriles Espafioles
“ESP 40.0 billion

Upgrading of railway network in Santander {Canta-
bria) and Bilbao (Vizcoya) areas

* FEVE — Ferrocarriles de Via Fstrecha
ESP 2.5 billion

Construction of high-speed rail link between Madrid
and Seville

RENFE — Red Nacional de los Ferrocarriles Espafioles
ESP 10.0 billion

Easing troffic flows in Greater Barcelona: sections of
road and motorway and toll tunnel

Tabasa — Tuneles y Accesos de Barcelona S.A.

ESP 5.0 billion

Replacement of rolling stock on Madrid underground

rail network
Metro de Madrid S.A.
ESP 9.5 billion

Improvement of air links between Canary Islands
Binter Conarias S.A.

.ESP 4.0 billion

I;Rer{ewq'| of short and medium-haul aircraft fleets for
‘domestic. routes

“Aviaco — Aviacién y.Comercio S.A.

SP112:5 billion k

Modernisation and extension of telephone network
 Telefonica de Espaiia S.A.
" <ESP 63 750.0 million
Acquisition, launch and operation of two telecommu-
nications and television satellites to cover Iberian
Peninsula and Canary and Balearic Islands
HISPASAT S.A.
ESP 9 975.0 million

TN\
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Installation throughout ltaly of terminals and anténnce
for transmission of data by satellite and national
control centre in Fucino plain (Abruzzi)

Telespozio — Societd per Azioni per le Comunicazioni

Spaziali
ITL 25.0 billion

Improvement and rationclisation of drinking water
supply:
— in Alessandria, Asti, Cuneo and Turln Provmces

Regione Piemonte
ITL 15.0 biflion

— in Apulia and Basilicata
Ente Autonomo per ! Acquedoﬁo Pug/
ITL 74. 0 billion 3

Sewerage and sewage treafment sct emes

— in Rome-North and construction of main sewer
Regione lazio
ITL 15.0 billion

— in Po Valley and along Adriatic coast
Regione Emilia-Romagna
ITL 72.0 billion

Regione Lombardia
ITL 45.0 billion

Regione Piemonte :
ITL 60.0 billion

— around Lakes Garda and Moggioré
Regione Piemonte
ITL 5.0 billion

 — dlong the Ligurion Riviera: in ‘Sa Remo Venh-

2. 1TL 10.0 billion

“ITL 7.0 billion

ITL 2.0 billion

miglio and Genoa
Regione Ligurio

— in Tortora-Diamante [Cosenzc Pro nce)
Regione Calabria i EE
ITL 9.0 billion

— in Cagliori and Oristano Provincés
Regione Sardegno
ITL 4.0 billion

Sewerage and sewage treatment and drinking water
supply schemes:

— in Marsala
Regione Sicilia
ITL 7.5 billion

— in North-East Sardinia (Costa Smeralda and Lo
Maddalena) and Serramanna areq, near: Cogllcm
Regione Sardegna

— in Colleferro/Segni area
Regione Lazio

— in Rome, Ariccia and Aprilia
Regione Lazio

ITL 12.0 billion

Erosion and flood protection schemes:

— throughout Veneto Region
Regione Veneto
ITL 15.0 billion

— in Matera and Potenza Provinces
Ministero dei Lavori Pubblici
ITL 4.0 billion

Regione Basilicata
ITL 40.0 billion
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~— in Castellino del Biferno and Trivento areas
(Campobasso Province}; coastal protection works
Regione Molise

ITL 10.0 billion

Solid and liquid urban waste collection and treotment
works:

— in Modena and Ravenna
Regione Emifio-Romagna
ITL 5.0 billion

ITL 200 billion

— in Sulmona ond Tercmo
Regione Abruzzo
ITL 5.0 billion

— in Genoaq, along Ligurian coost and inland
Regione Liguria
ITL 20.0 billion

~ in Marano and Grado lagoons and in Udine
Province

Regione Friuli-Venezia Givlia

ITL 9.0 billion

— in Matera and Pofenzo Provinces
Regione Basilicata
ITL 8.0 billion ‘

— in Taranto .urb
infrastructure- . in’,
municipalities
Regione Puglia
ITL 34.0 billion

including renewal of basic

— in Naples and Salerno Provinces
Regione Componia
ITL 20.0 billion

Improvements to drinking water supplies to Rome and
surroundings, construction of sewerage and sewage
treatment works in. Lake Bolsena tourist area and pro-
tection against cocsfol erosion

Regione lozio
ITL 10.0 biltion

treatment works; protection
land ¢onsolidation :

Sewerage and se
against coastal
Regione Abruzzo;
ITL 20.0 billion

Solid waste incineration ot Sesto S. Giovanni, near
Milen; erosion and flood prevention works in Oltrepd
Pavese; improvement of drinking water supplies in
Bergamo area .

Regione lombardia -

ITL 20.0 billion

Drinking water supplies in Asti and Vercelli, reaffore-
station in mountainous areas of Turin Province, solid
waste disposal in Scrivia Valley

Regione Piemonte

ITL 9.0 billion

oric centre) and neighbouring
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Provincia Auténomic
ITL 6.0.billion, -

g quckes i 4 (Abn
pIy and,‘seweroge’ls“y
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Modermsohon o
‘Romagna)
Unicem Sp.A."
ITL 40.0 bllllon

materials at Besana
Vetrotex ltalia S.p.
ITL 20.0 billion» A

emissions . I L Modernlsohon of
ESSO IlallanaS : conan (Ccmpomo)
: : Unilever Ifa//a S p A

Modernisati
i (Tuscony)
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Biotechnology research centre in Genoa
Ministero della Sanita
ITL 8.3 billion

Pharmaceutical R&D cénfre in Nerviano (Lombardy)
Farmitalia Carlo Erba S p A.
ITL 20.0 billion

Refurbishment ond sion of felecommunications
R&D centre in Turin
Centro Studi e Laborafgri Telecomunicazioni S.p.A.

ITL 20.0 billion
Global loans

For financing small and medium-scale ventures

Mt
ITL 454.2 billion

Mediocredito Cehff
ITL: 453.0 billion

Medfocreé’ifé Lom &
ITL 120.0 billion

Bonco di Napoli
ITL 95.0 billion

Isveimer

ITL 90.0 billion

Venefondiario

ITL 90.0 billion -

Istitute Bancario San Paolo di Torino
ITL.90.0 billion

Interbanca
ITL 90.0 billion*
Ef/banca '
ITL 80.0 b:lhon

Cls
ITL 50.0 billion

Monte dei Paschi di Siena
ITL 40.0 billion

IRFIS
ITL 38.0 billion

Centrobanca
ITL 25.0 billion

BNL
2ITL 21:1 billion

" Crediop
ITL 20.0 billion

ICLE
ITL 20.0 billion

Banco Ambrosiano Veneto
ITL 20.0 billion

Istituto Federale di Credito Agrario per il Piemonte, lo
Liguria e la Valle a’Aosfa
ITL 15.0 billion

Istituto Regionale c/l Credito Agrario per I'Emilia-
Romagna
+ TL15.0 billion

Artigiancassa ”
ITL 12.0 billion

Consorzio Nazionale per il Credito Agrario di Miglio-
" ramento

ITL 10.0 billion

ecus
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130
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58.8
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326
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249 .

131

13.1
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ecus

LUXEMBOURG (1 205.1 ﬁi'lion Luxembourg francs)  28.6

Individual loan

Acquisition and launch of broadeasting satellite
SES — Société Européenne a’es Satellites S.A.
LUF 1 205.1 million

NETHERLANDS (4048 million Dutch guilders)

Individual loans

Power station fired by manufactured or natural gas at
Buggenum (Limburg)
Demkolec B.V.

NLG 39.5 million

Terminal for container ve
Europe Container. Term/n
NLG 150.0 million: -

Por,tf(:f Rotterdam

Expansion and modernisation: of fine coated paper
production plants in Nijmegen (Gelderland) and
Maastricht (Limburg)

Koninklijke Nederlandse Papierfabrieken N.V.

NLG 100.0 million

Global loans

For financing small and medlum scale ventures
ABN AMRO Bank N.V. :
NLG 115.4 million

PORTUGAL (179 214.0 million escudos)

Individual loans

(809.2)

Extension of electricity transmission and supply grid
Electricidade de Porfuga/ EP.
PTE 18.3 billion

Improvement of facilities o Oporfo rcnlwoy junction .
(North)
Gobinete do Né Ferrowdr
Portuguesa — Ministério de
PTE 6 142:0 million

6. Porto — Republica.'-
inancas

Improvement and modernisation of railway system on
Lisbon — Oporto lines, on lines to Spain and on com-
muter lines serving Sintra and Pévoa do Varzim;
renewal of rolling stock

Caminhos-de-Ferro Portugueses, E.F. — Republica
Portuguesa — Ministério das Flnangas

PTE 12.0 billion .

Construction of Torres Novas:=— Condeixa section of
Al Lisbon — Oporto motorway. ‘
BRISA — Auto-Estradas. de P rtugol,;S:A
PTE 13.0 billion i )

Construction of Campo (Oporto) — Pénafiel section
of A4 Oporto — Amarante motorway

BRISA — Auto-Estradas de' Portugal, S.A.

PTE 4.3 billion

5[
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million
ecus

New passenger terminal at Birmingham International
Airport
Euro-Hub (Birmingham) Ltd .

GBP 16.0 million 27

Extension of telephone system in Northern Ireland
British Te/ecommun/cahons plc b
GBP 90.0 fillion”

127

Improvements to drinking water supply and sewerage
systems in:

— Thames Valley (South East)
Thames Wafter Utilities Ltd

GBP 25.0 million 356

—Edst
Anglian Water: Services Ltd
GBP 10:0 million

14.2

— Wessex (South West)
Wessex Water Services Ltd

GBP 58.2 million 829

— Eost and West Midlands
Severn Trent Water Ltd
GBP 47.0 million

66.9

Yorkshire Water Services Ltd
GBP 20.0 million

285

— North West
North West Water Lid

GBP 50.0 million 723

— Wales
DWR Cymru Cyfyngedig

GBP 25.0-million 36.1

e Co{'nw[qII nd Devon
‘Southern Water Services Ltd
GBP 40.0 million

56.5

— South East
Southern Water Services Ltd

GBP 90.0 million 1293

— North East
Northumbrian Water Ltd

GBP 40.0 million 56.8

Developmen f aluminium drinks can recycling
facility at Warrington; expansion of zirconium chemi-
cals plant at Swinton (North West)

BA Aluminium Ltd

GBP 24.0 million 347

Production of silicon wafers for integrated circuits at
Livingston (Scotland)
Shin-Etsu Handotai Europe Limited

GBP 6.3 million... 2.0

Construction &f titanium dioxide plant at Greatham
(North East)
Tioxide Group pic

GBP 25.0 million 353

New effluent treatment facilities at titanium dioxide
plant in Grimsby .
Tioxide Group plc

GBP 12.0 milliokh; ~ 17.1

[ B ]

B«
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“Deeside (Wales)
+.Optical Fibres
»GBP 14.0 million

:.Expansion of plant monufc:cfurmg vehlcle drlve axles
*:,{‘Gf anfon
\GKN Axles Limited, B/rmlngham

million
ecus

Construction of pharmaceutical research laboratory
(East Midlands)

Fisons plc

GBP 15.0 million

Modernisation of pharmaceutical R&D centre and
enlargement of factory for cancer drugs {North)

IC! — Imperial Chemical Industries plc

GBP 50.0 million

Plant to produce CFC-free aerosols for cosmetics ot

Llantrisant (Wales); beouty products dlstnbuhon
centre near Manchester

L'Oréal (UK) Lid
GBP 14.0 million

GBP 7.0 million

Design, development and manufacture of wings for
Airbus A330 and A340 aircraft

British Aerospace plc

GBP 100.0 million

Expansion of optical fibre produchon facility on

Construction of new dairy to replace existing build-

ings at Nairn

North of Scotland Milk Marketing Board

GBP 1.5 million 2.1

Biscuit factory in Manchester and expansion of frozen
food plant in Grimsby {(Humberside)

United Biscuits (UK} Ltd
+GBP 13.0 million

New textile weaving mill in Bradford and modernis-
ation of dyeing and finishing plant in Huddersfield
(Yorkshire)

Parklond Textile (Holdings) plc

GBP 1.8 million 26

Modernisation and extension of printing facilities at
various locations in West Midlands
Midland News Association

GBP 9.0 million

OTHER (%) 300.4
Development of Snorre and Veslefrikk oilfields in

Norwegian sector of North. Sea .
Deminex (Norge) A/S 979 @

Undersea fibre-optic felecohmpnicotféhs cable linking
mainland Portugel, Madeira, France and Morocco
Companhia Portuguesa Rédio Marconi, S.A.

Acquisition and launch of two telecommunications
satellites
EUTELSAT — European Telecommunications Satellite

Organisation 2000 o

(1) -Akin to financing for projects withit the'Community (see Note 5(d), pag
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SENEGAL

CAMEROON PR 25 15
Modernisation and rehacbilitation of banane plantations Modernisation of plant and storage facilities of enterprise
and packing facilities north-west of Douala operating in commercial port of Dakar
Société des Bananeraies de la M'Bomé — SBM 15 Conditional loon to Crédit Lyonnais Sénégal for Delmas
: Sénégal SA 1.5
Conditional Ioons to SBM through nega 0
— Société Financiére de Production 0670 o
— Société Bananiére de Participation 0330 o
. MAYOTTE 115
MAURITIUS 2.5 Acquisition of passenger and vehicle ferry
= Conditional loan to collectivité territoriale de Mayotte 115
Capacity expansion at weaving and finishing: mill :
Subordinated loan to Socota Textile Mills Ltd . : 25 n
Q MADAGASCAR 0780

ARUBA 25 3 .

Study on esfcbhshm

Conditional loan to Pé her/es de Nossi-Bé 0.600
pre-project studies L Y
Aruban Investment Bank = AIB '“( : 2.0 * Equity participation on behalf of Community in Financiére
Conditional loan to A/8 : 0.500 o dinvestissement ARQ 0.180
COMOROS 20

COTE D'IVOIRE 0.052
Global loan to finance SMEs
Conditional loan to Banque de Développement des Feasibility study for soluble coffee plant at Abidjan
Comores 20 o Conditional loan to Société Nouvelle SIFCA 0052 o

More than half of aggregate financing provided under the Third Lomé Convention (May 1986-August 1991} focused on capital investment
promofing the growth of industry {photo: Fria alumina plant in Guinea and rehabilitation of the railway line to Conakry). The Fourth Lomé

Convention entered into force on 1 September 1991,




Modernisation of oil refmeryrcf Pointe-&-Pierre
Republic of Tnmdad ond: Tobago

- ‘ e ] S Conditional loans " to Soctéfé .Financiére Algéro-
Reconstruction of po : : ; . Européenne de Patticipation: =~ F/NALEP in form of:
Hugo in 1989 : ; g

Conditional loan 10 Governmenl of Montserrat for - o7 Global loan to finance’ equcty parhcnpoﬂons in SMEs and
feasibility studies

munity in FINALEP 085

Condlhoncl ; Ioc
leerfy Club Lfc{

‘tc;nsfruction of i
Doukkala plain
grlco/e des Douk/(a/a 60, 0

o - 4 Construchon of refrlg

Febiibility sﬂ)d); i i s ;-on outskirts of Cairo.

Conditional loan 't o " Bank of Alexandria for Mis
" , g ; Compony

Conditional loan to-Suez C




JORDAN

CYPRUS 20.0
Global loan to finance SMEs

Cyprus Development Bank — CDB 150
Direct equity participation on behalf of Community in

cDB 1.0

APEX conditional loan to Republic of Cyprus to finance
equity participations

Extension of wastewater: collection system in six districts
on outskirts of Zarqa .

Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan for Water Authority of
Jordan

Global loan to finance SMEs
Industrial Development Bank — IDB

Conditional loan to /DB for provision of quasi-equity to
small enterprises o

MALTA

CENTRAL AND EASTERN EUROPEAN COUNTRIES

million ecus

POLAND

145.0

Extension and modernisation of telephone system, par-
ticularly for long-distance communicotions
Polska Poczta Telegraf i Telefon

APEX global loan to Polski Bank Rozwoju S.A. to findnce
enterprises by means.of secondary globcl loans or dnrect
loans .

HUNGARY

Modernisation of ‘combined Keat and power station -of
Kelenfsld on outskirts of Budapest
Magyar Villamos Mivek Trészt

APEX global loan to Nationol Bank of Hungary to finance
enterprises and projects concerned with environment and
energy saving

ROMANIA

350 w

800 % -

Reconditioning of lignite=fi ower stchons ot Rovinari
and Turceni; study ‘on-rehabil chon of electricity gener-
ating system based on ||gn e
Romanian State for Regia Au onoma de Electricitate




Table A: Financing provided (contracts signed) from 1959 to 1991

(million ecus)

Within the Community Outside the Community
Loans from EIB Loans under mandate Loans from Loans from EIB Operations from
Years . . Jotel own resources _ and guarantees  NCl resources __own resources budgetary resources
1959-1972 28367 123401 ’ 1101 - ' 1857 230.8
1973-1980 14 340.6 11.739.1 132.4 4747 1381.5 613.0
1981 35314 25238 . — 539.9 377.9 89.8
1982 ~ 46835 3460 . 7911 i 4052 41.2
1983 . 59918 ; 41459 976 . 11996 . 426.0 527
1984 6 885.9 5007.0 S 1181.8 6107 86.4
1985 7177.6 5 640.7 e 883.7 577.4 799
]986 , 75139 66781 o . 393.0 . 356.5 86.3
1987 ‘ 77608 69671 . — - 4252 . 184.4 184.1
1988 10081.1 88439 185.0 ‘ 356.5 520.1 175.6
1989 12196.8 11 506.6 — 783 4859 126.0
1990 13393.4 12 604.4 325 '\ 236 ; 669.0 439
1991 . 1sooBe 143836 = . e . r8ls e
Total 111 662.2 95 826.3 5775 6386.3 6931.8 1940.1

Table B: Financing provided (contracts signed) from 1987 to 1991 and from 1959 to 1991

Defolled breakdown by origin of resources and project locahon {million ecus)
. . ' 1987—1991 e L . 19591991
EIB own Other - EIB own | Other
Total resources (%) resources Total resources (%) resources
Member Countries L 55 465.9 54 543.2 9228 102 790.2’ 96 403.9 6386.3
Belgiow . g | i 234 . io70 12234 236
Denmark . . . . . 2 458.3 23951 63.2 4 4555 39220 5335
Germcny - 38996 3899.6 — 5641.1 5641.1 —
Groges . . 11659 e 46 3050 29331 306.1
Spain < - 753803 . 733 "‘]530 . 79396 17173 ‘ 2003
Franee .. . . . . . 7 364.9 7181.5 183.4 14 356.6 13 106.6 1250.0
kéland ... ... 974.8 9748 — 3698.0 32740 424.0
Hcly e 18 063.3 177241 339.2 | 375889 36 480.9 3108.0
luxembourg . . . . | . 419 . 48 L= 856 . g .
MNetherlands . . . . . . . 10188 10156 32 . 192913 1288.1 32
Portugol . Ll 3502.8 34929 99 3693.0 36532 39.8
United Klngdom S 7 898.7 77561 1426 16:171.1 15 695.3 475.8
Ofherll L 108 Cjesly 0 L 13838 1333 i
AcP.0ctT 14354 . im0 607.5 33184 2113 11841
Mediterranean . . 1369.6 13130 56.6 5053.6 ; 4297.6 756.0
| Cee¢ . .. 500.0 5000 . g 5000 —
]

Jotol . . . . 58 770.9 57 184.1 1586.8 111 662.2 103335.8 83264

L { ) Financing akin to operchons within the Community (see note 5(d Gulde fo Readers, page 113)
{?) Including loans under mandate and guarantees. '
Financing provided in Spain and Portugal up to the end of 1985 and in Greece up to the end of 1980 is recorded under operations outside the Community.

 Europe — from Six to the Twelve
~ laverage annual amount)

EUR & EUR @ EUR 10 EUR 12
1958— 1972 - 1973—1980 19811985 19861991
175 milllon o 1 544 million . L bl mﬂﬁon: . . 10 423 million

Dﬁﬁkté k D‘k ' 5 . :"fly"_*]‘sure o
| B
|

s




Table C: Financing provided within the Community from 1987 to 1991
(individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans)

Breakdown by country and objective

(million ecus)

Environment

Industrial objectives

Regional Community and quality International

development infrastructure of life Energy competitiveness SMEs
Belgium 172.9 27.0 10.4 — 371 351.1
Denmark 10180 1070.6 99.8 1 030.5 28.5 203.3
Germany 1506.3 289.6 1143.6 460.9 499.8 3753
Greece . 959.5 95.5 217.3 3285 — 182.4
Spain 4 888.1 30145 851.6 911.0 870.8 1092.1
France 42450 2089.7 274.2 298.2 508.0 1676.1
Ireland . 9405 368.1 152.2 61.6 34 28.2
Italy . 111774 16928 31850 40138 17867 38129
Luxembourg 11.8 302 - e — —
Netherlands 399.6 420.7 31 203 276.1 183.3
Pon‘ugol / 3296.1 5141 752 448.2 426.1 527.6
United Kingdom . 3230.0 1604.0 23330 1818.1 815.5 167.1
Other ; — 788.3 — 296.4 — —
Total 31 845.2 12 005.0 8345.2 96874 52520 8599.5

As certain financing meets two or more obijectives, the totals for the various headings cannot be meaningfully added together.

Regional
development:

31 845 milion

. Energy
D Transport
Telecommunications

Sundry infrastructure

Industry, agriculture,
services

Industry:

13 850 milion

Community
infrastructure:

12005 milion

Industrial

competitveness and

integration

[ SMEs in non-assisted areas [] Other
. SMEs in assisted areas

Telecommunications

D Land-based transport

D Air trasport

Enrgy policy
objectives:

9 687 milion

D Rational use of energy

E Import diversification

! Development of indigenous
resources

Environment,
quality of life:

8 345 million

D Air

D Water

. Waste

D Other

. Urban development

Table D: Financing provided within the Community from 1987 to 1991
(individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans)

Breakdown by country and sector

(million ecus)
Sector
Industry,

services, Other
Total Loans Allocations agriculture Energy Communications infrastructure
BeIgium 4256 745 351.1 388.2 . 27.0 104
Denmark . 2 405.8 2168.5 2373 233.5 10158 10777 789
Germany . 3054.9 1848.0 1206.9 14341 604.2 4725 5441
Greece 963.7 693.7 270.0 2739 289.6 219.1 181.1
Spain 7108.4 58104 1298.0 2 1339 768.9 35254 680.3
France 61638 37843 23795 2 473.1 255.8 31994 2353
Ireland 970.6 942.4 28.2 50.7 1579 484.4 277.6
Italy 17 889.4 12941.2 49482 73533 4377.3 4094.0 2 064.8
Luxembourg . 419 419 — 11.8 e 30.2 .
Netherlands . 957.9 7718 186.1 505.8 20.3 429.0 2.8
Portugcl ! 33324 27694 563.0 1293.4 687.1 1.271.7 80.2
United Kingdom 7 6793 7 508.6 170.7 1767.1 17848 2 056.0 20713
Other . i 1084.7 1084.7 — = 296.4 788.3 -
Total 520784 404394 11 639.0 17 918.8 10 258.1 17 674.7 6226.8
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Table F: Financing provided within the Coﬁ;muﬁity from 1987 to 1991
(individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans)

Sectoral bregkdown ' (amounts in million ecus)
Total Loans Allocations
Amount % EIB +NCI Total EIB NCI

* Energy and infrastructure . . . . . . . . . . 341596 65.6 322939 1865.7 1856.1 9.6
Energy . . . . . . . . 10258.1 197 9830.8 473 ar7 9.6
Production . . e e e 5084.3 98 4 968.1 116.3 1089 - 74
Conventional thermal, power stations . . . . . . . 1366.0 26 13583 77 77 —

Nuclear power stations . . . . . . . . . . . . 60.0 0.1 60.0 — —_ —
Hydroelectric power stations . . . e 7319 1.4 656.5 754 886 é.8
Geothermal energy & alternative sources . . . . . . 104.2 02 100.1 4.1 4.7 —
Heat generating plant . . e 4067 0.8 394.6 12.1 1.5 0.6
Development of oil and natural gas depos/fs e 2341.3 45 23254 15.8 15.8 —
Solid fuel extraction . . . e e 744 o1 731 12 1.2 —
Transmission, storcge reprocessung e e e 20703 40 20408 295 29.5 ——
Electricity . . . P 574.3 1.7 570.8 3.6 3.6 —_
Oil and natural gas e e e e e e 817.8 1.6 791.8 259 259 e
Nuclear fuel . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 678.1 1.3 678.1 -— e
Supply . . . . . . L L ..o 31035 6.0 28219 2816 279‘4 2.2
Electricity . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... 15159 29 1478.9 37.0 7.0 —
Naturalgas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 12514 24 1046.5 204.9 2027 22
Heat . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . .. 336.2 . 06 296.6 397 397 e

s Transport . . L . L L L L L L 0oL 11 166.6 214 10 551.0 615.6 615.6 —_

© Railways . . . e e e e 26450 26003 447 447 —
< Roads, motorwoys e e e e e e e e 37671 3 466.8 300.4 3004 —

DSRIPPING . . . e e e 5669 5335 33.4 334 s

o Urbantransport . . . . . . ... L oL L L. 894.7 671.6 223.1 223.1 —

" Airlines. . . e 3077.2 3073.0 4.2 42 —

: Intermodol Fre|ght 1erm|nc|s ond other e e o 2187 205.9 98 - 98 =
Telecommumcuhons e e e e e e e 6508.1 6:508.1 - o T
Conventional equipment . . . . . . .. . . . 15360.9 53609 e e P
Specialisednetworks . . . . . . . . . L, BRREY T R . 58 — = e e
Satellites, ground stations. . . . . . . . . . . . 8200 i '820.0 — e . P
Internationaleables . . . . . . . . . . 0 L. 3214 c 3214 - - —

" Water, sewerage, solidwaste . . .. . . . . 4980.4 .96 43880 5924 5924 -
Drinkingwater supplies . . . . . . . . . . . . 4659 - .09 C3ns 94.3 94.3 —

Waste water treatment . . . . . . . . . . . . 16334 : 31 1265.6 3677 367.7 —
Supply and sewerage . . e e e e 19523 .. 37 1917.8 34.5 345 —

' Solid and liquid waste treatment . . . . . . . . . 461.9 09 383.2 786 786 -
Multi-purpose schemes . . . . . . . . . . . . 467.0 09 4498 17.2 17.2 —

Urban infrastructure . . . . . . . . . . . . 300.1 06 256.4 437 a7 —_—
Urban renewal . . e 21.3 . 203 10 10 —
Exhibition, trade fair & conference centres e 234 0.4 216.4 177 177 —_—
Public and administrative buildings . . . . . . . . 21.2 . 19.6 1.5 1.5 —
Urban development schemes . . . . . . . . . . 235 . — 235 23.5 —
Other infrastructure . . . . . . . . . . . . 9463 1.8 - 7597 186.6 186.6 —
Composite infrastructure . . e e 747. 1.4 564.8 182.3 1823 —
Agriculturol and forestry developmenf e e e 199.2 0.4 194.9 43 43 —
Industry, services, agriculture . . . . . . . . . 179188 344 8145.5 97733 8853.2 920.2
 Industry . . . e e e e e 15187.6 73982 77894 69563 833.1 -

Mining and quorrymg .. e e 265.6 180.0 8546 768 8.8

Metal producnon and semi- processmg e e 2420 725 169.5 156.4 131

Metalwobrking and mechanical engineering . . . . . 17027 257.2 14456 1301.4 1442

Transport equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30155 2806.3 209.2 176.8 324

Electrical engineering . . . . . . . . . . .. 5336 2510 282.6 259.6 23.0

Electronics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 906.2 7507 155.4 138.2 17.2

. Chemicals . . e e e 19688 1395.2 573.6 5248 48.8

- Rubber and plcsncs processung e e e 6382 170.2 468.1 4157 523

. Glassand ceramics . . . . . . . . . . . .. 4744 169.5 304.9 256.6 48.4
T Constructionmaterials . . . . . . . . . . . . 556.8 92.5 4643 4445 19.8 (;,

SEC G Woedworking L. L 0 L L 0 L o L L 496.2 87.0 409.2 352.0 57.2

© S Poodstuffs .. . L . L oL L L0 1 693.1 380.5 13125 11705 142.1

“Textllesandleather . . . . . . . L L L 6439 144 6293 531.2 98.0

. Paperand pulp, printing . . . . . . . . . .. 1.521.5 761.3 760.2 680.3 800 . i

v Other manufacturing industries . . . . . . . . . 161.2 9.5 151.7 128.0 237 L

; Cnvnl engineering—building . . . . . . . . . | 367.8; e - 3678 3436 24.2

 Services . . e 25wy - 7416 17862 17075 787 0

-+ Tourism, leisure, heolth e e 10624" . 279.1 783.5 7777 .58 Tl

. Research and development . . . . . . . . . . .133.8 104.8 29.0 28.8 02

. Private and public-sector services . . . . . . . . 908.0 55.4 852.6 7863 © 663 - 0
Waste recovery andrecycling . . . . . . . L . 55.2. - 552 49.4 58 e

* Trairing ond education centres . . . . . , . . . 533 523 1.0 0.8 02 .
Advanced information services . . . . . . . . . 2500 2500 — - L=
Wholesaling . . . . . . . . . . . oL L. 649 — 64.9 645 0.3 -

. Agriculture, fisheries, forestry . . . . . . . . . 203.6 57 197.8 189.4 84

GrandTotal . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 520784 © 1000 404394 11 639.0 107093 929.8
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‘f financing by region in 1991 and from 1989 to 1991 (continued)
- {individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans)

{omounts in million ecus)

g

GDP Popu- 1991 19891991
peér cap, lotion Total Loans Allocations Total Loans Allocations
77 38688 2386.5 20707 3158 5 806.1 48820 9241
104 677 257 168 89 553 44.8 105
97 519 60.0 56.8 32 1312 119.4 118
94 2120 67.6 50.8 168 1687 1286 402
o4 4827 538.1 513.4 247 11145 10103 104.2
94 5975 4532 4151 38.1 10629 937.9 125.0
88 260 ny 100 19 229 163 66
84 . 1214 317 21.4 103 795 506 289
78 3759 2232 196.5 267 3929 304.7 88.2
78 1461 65.1 58.8 62 129.7 104.0 25.8
75 7129 155 137 18 51.0 38.8 12.2
73 525 382 344 39 126.6 116.4 102
, 73 1012 54.4 38.4 16.0 108.4 63.4 449
~Castilla-Leon 71 2625 107.8 722 356 2649 169.4 95.5
< Castilla-La Mancha 65 1705 1297 163 135 2915 2356 55.8
: ' 63 123 0.2 0.2 — 0.2 0.2 —
59 2804 767 442 324 239.8 1721 67.6
" Andalucia 59 6830 292.2 225.1 67.1 7649 597.1 167.8
* Extremadura 49 1121 18.1 9.6 8.5 56.1 27.2 289
. Multiregional . . — - 177.1 177.1 — 7452 7452 -
.- France 109 57620 1816.8 10114 8054 47539 28282 19257
- Tle-de-France 162 10422 195.8 1041 917 359.4 150.5 208.9
"+ Alsace . 113 1624 314 —_ 314 1438 185 1253
+. Haute-Normandie 110 1710 10.4 — 10.4 28.2 — 28.2
~ Rhéne-Alpes 107 525 252.8 191.0 618 677.3 4729 204.4
~Champagne-Ardenne 103 1369 98.9 862 128 1697 1422 27.5
" . Centre . 100 2367 19.4 — 19.4 60.1 141 46.0
Franche-Comté 100 1095 545 — 545 735 — 735
© Aquitgine . . . . 100 2754 99.6 150 84.5 194.4 50.8 143.7
- - Provence-Céte d'Azur 99 4174 949 65.4 29.5 4132 287.5 1257
" Bourgogne 97 1621 17.4 — 17.4 27.8 1.0 268
" Picardie 95 1793 387 23.0 157 88.2 638 245
" Basse-Normandie . 93 1395 425 - 425 581 — 58.1
" Pays de la Loire 93 309 355 — 355 153.6 153 138.3
~ Lorraine 91 2345 50.0 7.2 428 120.6 7.2 113.4
" Midi-Pyrénées 97 2391, 19.9 — 199 3043 235.1 693
“ Bretagne . 0 2785 69.6 —_ 69.6 1865 10 175.5
‘Poitou-Charentes 89 1606 216 — 216 30.1 - 30.1
" Auvergne . . . . 89 7333 26.5 — 26.5 57 .4 22.4 35.1
Nord — Pas-de-Calais 87 395 4261 386.9 39.2 10199 894.6 125.4
- Languedoc-Roussillon 86 2089 60.0 — 60.0 145.6 28.7 116.9
Limousin 84 736 141 — 141 18.1 —_ 18.1
i Corse . . 79 248 04 — 0.4 14 — -1.4
- Overseas Departments - 1 460 22,1 18.0 42 279 18.0 9.9
Multiregional — —— 1147 1147 — 3949 3949 -
" 'Greece 54 9992 1665 100.1 664 586.7 4183 1684
Atk 57 351 133 — 133 68.5 325 36.0
~ Kentriki Ellada 54 2292 56.2 35.4 20.8 201.7 159.0 427
:Voreia Ellada 53 3242 472 307 165 1430 1027 403
Nisia " 50 946 150 15 135 526 194 . 332
" Miltiregional - - 348 325 23 1209 1047 16.2
67  35i5 250.0 237.0 130 6344 6155 189
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Table I: Allocahons from ongoing global Iocms in 1991 ‘
B e Genercl sum mcry \( (am‘oju\\nis in millon ecus) )
Total EIB own résources NCI resources
‘ Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
; Toiq[é}:lloccﬁogs 1991 (N . L 10271 L 292@,9 #9960 291§:;9 ;

Regi6n0| development e 6415 182046 6415 182046
— Infrastructure . . . . . . . 438 4184 438 4184
—— SMEs in assisted areas .- . . . R A 14022 I A 14022
Energy policy objectives . . . % | g6 1141 g 11471
Advanced technology . . . . . 141 541 141 541
SMEs in non-assisted areas . . . 3621 9929 3310 921.9
Environment .. . . . oo L L0152 1632 o 182 163.2
Commumfy |nfrcs’rrucfure U 30 ’ 12 30

(*) As some allocations meet two or more objectives, the totals for the different headings cannot be meaningfully added together.

o i v K ¢
= i i £ g
Table'J:i Allocations from ongoing global loans in 1991
Breakdown by region and objective
Regional Non-assisted
. - o Total ‘ ’deveiopmenf o areas Advanced i
k2% e Infras" % “ElBown - NCI * tech- ’
Number Amount structure Industry  resources  resources nology J
Belgiom . . . . . . . 280 2163 — 645 1282 846 — - - -
WestVlaanderer . . . 567t 1 69.0 b ==l 126 o 509 85 R — e ;
Oost Vlaanderen . . . . . 34 425 —_ — 36.7 58 — e —
Limburg . . . . . . . . 26 30.6 —_ 30.6 — — — — — —
Antwerpen . ... . . . . 46 299 — 68 17.5 56 . = o — e
BrabantB. . it . . oac 18 122 b —i — 00 R 2D e — o B WL £
BrabantV. . . . . . .. 10 = 93 — 17 6.6 L — e e -
Liege:. . . . . . . . . 31 87 — 6.0 13 14 — — — -
Haingut . . . . . . . . 29 8.2 —~ 5.1 15 L S — :
Namuk . . oin . . 3e 30 i 0.8 -# 19 f .04 — #
Brabant W. 718 - — 6 01 L — :
Luxembourg . . . . . . 10 1.0 — 10 — — —_ — —_— —_
Denmark 2980 708 o 320 i 370 i — o —
Vest for Storebaelt . . . . 222 59.4 — 301 285 = — S — 0.8 —
Hovedsfodsregoonen R 51 8.4 — — 76 —_
25 .30 . —. 19 . 09 5. — g
Germany . . . . . . . 40 177.4 321 60.4 38.5 — 12.5 17.2 60.7 =
Niedersachsen . . . . .. 32 440 272 16.6 0.2 — .-

i Nordrhein-Westfalen . . 397t 325 - =700 167 Y — HE0
Baden-Wairttemberg . . . 135 260 — — 69 — 116 .
Bayern . . . . . . . . n 227 — — 72 — — —
Sachsen . . . . . . . . 48 .92 e 9.2 - —

Hessen . . Jiu . . .o 8 o 83 — 06 = 76 n  —
Brandenburg .". . . . . 31 ©6 — 6.1 — —
Thiringen . . . . . . . 23 56 —_ 56 — —_
Berlin. . . o é 54 — 5.4 - . -

- Schleswig- Holsfem SR 450 49 i 2.4 10 @ — CEL e #
Mecklenburg-Vorpommern . 36 | 37 — 37 — — ‘
Sachsen-Anhalt . . . . . 23 35 —_ 35 — — — — — —
Bremeén e e e 1 2.5 25 - — —_ e —_ :
Hambirg . .iv . . . 250 20 - —il 1) e — U — e — 2
Saarland . 1 0.6 — 0.6 - = — _ —

Rheinland-Pfalz 1 0.6 - — — — — — 0.6 —
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Table J: Allocations from ongoing g,)OBdlzloans m 1991 (continuved)

(amounts in miltion ecus)

Breakdown by region and objective

Regional Non-assisted
Total development oreas 4 anced Community
Infra- : EIB own NCI tech- Environ- infra-
Number Amount structure Industry  resources  resources nology Energy ment structure
Ireland . 8 13.0 - 130 ¢ - —_ - — — -
ltaly . 1850 1030.1 134 5183 3716 0.6 416 758 50.1 —
Lombardia . 179 1935 0.6 20.6 131 22.1 —
Piemonte 9 95.9 — 9.8 7.1 10.2 —
Emilia-Romagna 112 90.5 — 73 148 51 —
Marche 163 83.3 — 39 — — —
Veneto 92 81.6 — — 101 2.3 —
Lazio . 50 69.6 — — 4.1 — —
Campania 169 64.4 — —_ — —_ —
Toscana . 119 62.0 — —_ 5.4 31 —_
Puglia . . . . . 239 480 — — 7.2 —_— —
. Trentino-Alto Adige . 53 46.4 — — 46 — _
Sicilia . 122 410 —_ — 32 4.0 —
Abruzzi 95 386 — — 0.8 — —
Sardegna 119 26.1 e — — . —
: -Umbria 52 248 e o — — e
~liguria . . . L. 55 215 —_— — 25 — —
# Frivli-Venezia Giulia 37 137 — —_ 29 3.4 —
Basilicata 47 13.2 — — — - -
-Calabria 37 84 = - -— - s,
Malise 14 7.8 -~ — — — =
. Netherlands 51 689 — —_ - — -
“Gelderland . 12 19.8 = s7 4 — — — —_ -
Noord-Holland 9 154 - ., 154 _— — — . —
‘Noord-Brabant 6 10.2 — 0.3 ;99 — - — —_ —
Overijssel é 6.8 — 1.4 5.4 — — — — —
. Zuid-Holland 8 65 - —_ 65 —_ — — — —_
Groningen . 3 35 —- 35 — — _ — — —_—
Limburg . 3 32 - 1.9 13 — — —_ —_ —
Friesland 2 2.4 1.1 13 — _— — — — —
Flevoland 1 07 — —_ 07 —_ — — —_ —
Utrecht 1 0.5 — —_— 05 — — e — —
Portugal 399 153.1 26.9 126.2 — —_ — 65 0.1 —_
Norte P 155 529 11.8 41.1 — —_— —_ 56 —_ —
Lisboa e Vale do Tejo 92 50.8 28 48.0 — — — — _— —
Centre 102 36.2 59 303 — — — 0.8 0.1 e
* Algarve . n 45 27 18 - — — — — — —
Alentejo 25 35 09 26 - — — — — —
. Acores 12 29 27 02 . — — — — — —
; Madeira 2 23 - 23 — - — - - -
- United Kingdom 101 73.7 s 576 41 120 —_ — - =
North West 22 229 — —_ . - —=
- Wales 12 1.7 - — — — —
North = . 9 © 9.7 - - —_ — -
ast Midlands 14 9.4 34 - — - -
‘West Midlands 13 8.0 2.1 — — — —
Yorkshire and Humberside 9 39 1.2 — — — —
“East Anglia 9 37 2.0 — — - —
‘South East 10 3.4 34 —_— — —_ —
. Scotland 2 08 - —_ — — —_
" South West ] 03 — — — — e
. Grand Total . 10271 2990.9 4184 14022 921.9 no 54.1 11441 163.2 30
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Table L: Allocations from ongoing global loans from 1987 to 1991 (continued)

Breakdown by region and objective (amounts in million ecus)
Regional Non-assisted
Total development areas 4 4 onced Community
Infra- EIB own NCI tech- Environ- infra-
Number Arnount structure Industry  resources  resources nology Energy ment structure
Greece . 87.0 178.8 — 42 07
Multiregion 7.8 41.2° — — —
Attiki . oL L L L L 9.4 308 — 26 - ) — -
Sterea Ellodo e 38 42 28.6 — 0.8 —_ — -— =
Kriti . . . 103 139 17.8 — 0.1 —_ 30 — Ve
Anatoliki Mokedonlo Throku . 23 133 107 — — — — —_ —
Kentriki Makedonia . . . . 70 36 19.2 — 0.1 —_ 0.3 0.7 —
Thessalia . . . . . . . 23 67 68 — —_ — 1.4 —_ -
Kentriki Ellada . . . . . 2 55 47 — — — — — —
Nisig . . . . . . . . . 8 10.1 — — —_
Peloponnisos - . . . . . . 33 2.6 69 — 0.3
6 78 R S —
: 16 09 340 — o
Dytiki Elladay . . . . . 13 0.03 36 — 0.03 - .
loniaNisia .. . . . . . . 14 0.4 24 — 0.04 — - — -
Ipeiros . e 12 0.2 2.0 — — - — — =
Dytiki Makedomc e 6 03 0.6 — — — — — —
Voreio Aigaio . . . . . . 7 0.3 0.1 — 0.1 -— — — —
Spain . . . . . . . . 308 196.5 668.8 265.8 164.8 —_ —— 35 —
Andalucia -, 539 327 1955 17 49 — -
Catalufia: 397 — 38:2: " 957 428 - =
Madrid: Co . 288 19 94 92.2 413 — 2.1
Comunidad Valenciana . . 311 8.3 748 189 27.0 B — -
Castilla-leén . . . . . . 324 343 66.4 59 7.4 e —
Galicia . .~ oe .. 124 61.2 267 0.1 25 — — — -
Castilla-La Moncho S V] 219 39.2 31 8.1 —_ — — o
Canarias . . . . . . . 129 05 612 — 18 — — — —
Murcia . . . . . . . . 143 135 44.7 1.5 22 — . 1.3 —
PaisVasco .- . . . . . . 109 0.9 402 49 79 — —_— — -
Aragén . . . . . . . . 107 0.9 14.6 19.6 6.1 — — — o
Extremadura::. . . . . . 126 138 218 — 0.4 ~ — —
Navarra. - 60 — 09 141 69 - —
Asfuriqs . 60 5.6 144 ° 0.2 0.1 — -
Cantabria I 4 0 12 ol ool — -
LaRioja . . v . . . . . 43 — 10 62 4 A — R
Baleares . .0 . . . . . 14 — 87 15 0.4 - = — e
France . . . . . . . .16412 23795 675.2 962.6 5455 179.9 25 13.1 66.0 9.5
lle-de-France . . . . . . 2857 260.3 — — 223.6 337 0.9 — 1.2 =
Rhéne-Alpes e . ... 2278 2357 65.7 547 84.9 30.0 - 03 . — 77 Q.
Bretagne .o . . . . . 938 . 2340 503 164.5 0.1 9.2 : ’ 9.8 15
Nord — Pas-de-Calais . . . 719 ] 112 810, . . — 3.0 —_— -—
Aquitaine.’ 715 1021 65.4:. 03 43 2.0 “60
Pays de la Loire:’ .. . 948 427 970 125 88 09
Provence- Cote dAzur . . . 1005 X 59.4 88.8 0.1 67 —— 1.3
Alsace . . . . . . 1085 150.6 9.8 69.6 66.4 47 — 135 i
Languedoc- Roussillon . . . 420 1313 834 440 — 40 -— — — 07
lorrgine . . . . . . . . 906 128.0 221 937 0.5 nz — — 21.0 13
Midi-Pyrénées .. . . . 509 80.4 368 40.1 1.6 1.9 — — 2.2 8.1
Franche-Comté . . . . . 385 77.2 2.6 9.0 59.0 6.5 — — 33 —
Basse-Normandie . . . . 466 70.1 358 202 8.4 56 — — — —
Centre . . L. .. 626 . 575 0.5 33 321 21.4 e 0.3 — B
Haute- Normondle A Y4 . 44.6 2.5 168 17.5 7.9 —_ — —
Auvergne - iiti . . . . . 282 16.4 187 27 48 e —
Poitou-Charentes. . . . . 299 119 276" — 20 01— 50
Bourgogne ... . . . . 449 30 - 149 150 39 01 - — 24
Picardie . .: . . . 405 ; 7.0 11.2 15.6 2.2 —_— e -— e
Champagne- Ardenne ... 422 344 05 22.5 53 6.0 0.1 10 — .05
Limousin . . e .. 147 21.2 1.5 9.0 — 0.8 —_ — — —
Réunion . . . . . . . . 37 56 — 56 — — —- — — —
Maortinique . . . . . . . 26 43 — 40 — 03 — — — -—
Corse . . . . . . . . 24 15 —_ 1.0 — 0.5 s — — —_
Guyane . . . . . . . . 1 0.05 — — 0.05 — e — — :
Guadeloupe . . . . . . 1 - 0.04 — 0.04 — — el = -
TN
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Table M: Financing provided from 1976 to 1991 in the ACP States under the Lomé Conventions and in the OCT
Geographical breakdown {million ecus)

Total EIB own resources ' Budgetary resources

Lomé Lomé - Lomé
Totel 1+ 0+ 11 Lomé. IV Total L 1L + I +

Lomé IV

24859 - 22678 281, 15721 59.6
8.6 ' 9683 3.4 7847 253,
306.0 358.0
191.6 gt 1857
e e e 1 781 200 . 570
Senegal - . . . . . . 69.0 69.0 — 33.0
Regional . . . . . . 3137 313 —_ 15.0
Mauritania . . . . . 78.5 53.5 25.0 40.0
Togo .~ . . . . . . . 378 378 — 207
Guinea - . . . . . . 57.7 347 23.0 26.9
BurkinaFaso . . . . . 383" 353 . 8.0
Benin: Coe 319 319 135
Niger ar2y 31.2 16.0
Mali - . 303 303 i —
Liberia e e e e 1407 140 - 109
CapeVerde . . . . . 8.4 8.4 — —
Gambia= . . . . . . 12.4 8.1 43 —
Guinea-Bissau . . . . 73 73 — —
Cent. & Equat. Africa 247.5
Cameroon . 129.8
Zaire 50.0
Congo 28.
Gabo 320
Burund —
Chad — —
Rwanda - . . —_
Central African Repubhc — —_
Regional . — 7.6
Equatorial Guinea — —
S&o Tomé:and Principe — —
199.4
186.9
5.0
Seychelles — 15
Regional — 6.0
Djibouti — —
326.5
123.0
420
59.5
325
Madagascar — —
Mauritius: * 25 445
Swaziland 250
Mozambique . — —
Lesotho . — —
370 14.0
CARIBBEAN . .o 2587 - 2072 200.7
Trinidad and Tobogo . 949 569 92.0
Jamaica . . .o 57.3 453 50.3
Barbados . . . . . . 254 254 —_ 243
Bahomas . . . . . . 176 17.6 — 17.6
Guyana & . .. . . 11.2 N2 — —_
Saint Lycia™. . . . . . 9.6 9.6 — 60
St Vincent'& . ‘
the Grenod' es 9.0 30
i 7.3 —
6.1 s 45
5.1 1.5 _—
Regional 5.0 — 30
Dominica 48 - —
Antigua . . 15 —_ —
St Christopher & Nevis 2.5 - —
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Table O: Finuﬁcing provided in the Mediterranean Countries from 1977 to 1991

Geographical breakdown {amounts in million ecus)
EiB own Budgetory
TO’GI resources resources
Amount % ~Amount m
Yugoslavia . . . . . . . . . . o ... .. 760.0 282 760.0 e
Algeria e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 358.1 133 3541 4.0
Morocco . . . . . . L. L .o oo 3270 12.1 297.0 300
Tunisia . . . . . . L oL oo e e 297.5 110 257.0 40.5
Egypt . . . . . . o o 0000 434.0 16.1 420.0 14.0
Jordon . . . . . . . Lo Lo e 121.3 1120 9.3
lebanon . . . . . . Lo o 00 40.0 40.0
Syria . . L. Lo Lo s 97.6 94
Cyprus . i o e e 780 63.0
Israel 1270 127.0
. Malta 525 ¢ 42.0
" Total 2693.0 25662 126.8

Operations in Turkey, not included: in this table; comprise 115 million in loons from own resources advanced between 1974 ond 1981 and 619.2 millien in loans on special
conditions granted between 1965 and 1987, a total of 734.2 million.

Table P: Mediterranean Countries from 1977 to 1991
(financing operations and allocations from ongoing global loans)

Sectoral breokdown {amounts in million ecus)
Financing operations Allocations
Amount % Number Amount
Energy and infrastructure e e e 1966.2 730 31 18.2
Energy - 511.1 : 19.0 - —_
Production . . . . . . . o oL . L. 2737 ... 102 — -
Conventional thermal power stations. . . . . . . . . . . 2117 ; 7.9 — ~
' Hydroelectric power stations :: 34.0 1.3 —
i Oil and natural gos deposits ' 280 UL e
¢ Transmission and supply . 237.4 8.8 -
Electricity . Coe e e S e e e e 2124 : 7.9 —
Naturalgas . . . . . . L0 0oL 250 . 0.9 — .
Transport . . . . . . . o e e e e 1070.1 397 15 23
Railways . . . . . . . . . . . . ... L. 175.3 65 —
Roads . . . . . . . . . .. ... ... 760.2 28.2 15 23
Shipping . . . . . . . . . . ... 1184 4.4 — -
Airlines . . . . . . . .. o o oL L0 0L 16.0 0.6 — —
Telecommunications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 130 0.5 —_ —
Water, sewerage, solidwaste . . . . . . . . . . . 161.0 6.0 4
Otherinfrastructure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2111 7.8 12
Industry, agriculture, services . . . . . . . . . L. 7268 270 2223
Industry I 151.0 56 / 500
Agriculture, forestry, fisheries . . . . . . . . . . . 421 T ¥ 1599
~ Services : R e 60 0.2 124
Global loans S 5253 19.5 —
* Developmentbanks . .* 24 0 -
Total 26930 1000 2254
Table Q: Financing provided in the Central and Eastern European Countries from 1990 to 1991
Geographical and sectoral breakdown {amounts in million ecus)
Total Sector
Telecom- Industry
Amount % Energy °  Tronsport munications (globat loans)
Hungary . . . . . . . . . . o . 2350 47.0 50.0 C— 80.0 105.0
Poland . . . . . . . . . . . .. 240.0 48.0 50.0 200 70.0 100.0
Romania . . . . . . . . . . .. 250 5.0 25.0 — — - i
Total . . . . . .o 5000 100.0 1250 . 200 1500 2050

D
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7" Table S: Resources raised from 1987 to 1991

{amounts in million ecus)

1987 : 1988 1989 1990 1991
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % -

Community currencies ' ;
ECU 807 144 1329 17.3 1839 204 1765 16.1 2500

DEM 1153 20.6 1545 202 959 106 1124 102 1198
FRF 464 - 83 854 1M1 1164 129 1114 10.1 1378
GBP 142 25 752 9.8 1769 19.6 1331 121 1837
ImL 639 1.4 652 85 626 69 . 851 77 1466
BEF 302 5.4 473 6.2 346 330 30 166
NLG 338 60, 500 65 317 528 48 369
© DKK 8’ L7 — — 3 — — —
EP - 32 0.4 52 - — -
LUF 79 85 11 92 52 0.5 24
GRD : = - - - e - —
ESP = 237 31 701 S 614 L 56 813
PTE o ’ 29 0.4 86 124 1.1 250
Total 3963 709 6488 84.6 7954 7833 712 10002
of which: fixed 3763 67.3 5657 738 7 206 6055 55.1 6812
of which: floating 200 36 831 108 748 1778« 162 3190
Non-Community currencies
usD 722 129 308 40 385 43 1574 143 2262
CHF 370 66 556 73 264 29 818 7.4 782
JPY 517 9.2 314 41 432 48 771 7.0 627
¢ ATS (1) 21 0.4 — — — — — — —
Total 1630 2.1 1178 154 1080 120 3163 28.8 3670
of which: fixed 1437, 257 1101 144 1080 120 3084 28.0 3413
of which: floating 193 3.5 77 10 - — 79 0.7 257
Grand Total 5593 7 666 100.0 9034 100.0 13672
of which: fixed 5199 6758 88.2 8286 . 831 10225
©..908 1.8 748

' of which: floating 393 169 3447 02

(") Austrion Schilling.

{amounts in million e¢

Floating-rate! Borr

' Ruiséd in Total

g Before: . After Commercial Certificotes
v Year SWaps swaps paper of deposit | ecus(A) raised (B)
LEO 11981 850 © "-itgsl LA 850 2309.7
) 1982 1120 = — — — C e - 1120 32052
1983 230.0 — —_— —_ R 230.0 3619.4
1984 4550 -_ —_ 100.0 1000 5550 43609
1985 7200 —_— — -_— — 730.6 57091
1984 827.0 — — —_ e 897.0 67855
1987 675.0 — — — —_— 807.4 55927
1988 959.0 829 —_ 2525 - 3354 13284 7 666.1
1989 13950 75.1 200.0 375 31246 183846 90345
1990 12718 — 500.0 10.0 510.0 17649 10995.6
1991 1 550.0 450.0 500.0 —— 950.0 2500.0 136723
Total 82798

608.0 12000 400.0 2208.0 10 849.0 729510

71985 includes 10.6 million in third-party p
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2 - fixed capital formation corrected by the itidex of the change in the rates for converti

(e) Own resources: principally the proceeds of the Bank's borrowings on the caplfc markets but including “own funds” (paid-i in"
capital and reserves), this term was adopted to distinguish such resources from those deployed under mandate from the Community =

or the Member States. Whereas operations using own resources are entered on the balance sheet, operations conducted under man- .
date, which also form part of the Bank's activities, are entered in a trust management account: the “Special Section”.

6. Adjustments, totals and rounding: Because of statistical adjustments, amounts quoted for earlier financial years may differ
slightly from those published previously.

Amounts are quoted at current prices and exchange rates; they should be interpreted with care if added together over a long period.
The significance of figures for individual years is affected by price movements and exchange rate variations occurring over the years.

Differences between totals shown and the sum of individual amounts are due to rounding.

national price indices derived from groéé
ational currencies into ecus and welghfed ;
3 lmuted at 5 % for 1991.

7. Deflator: The deflator applled to' Bank activity is a composite index of the chcng

each Member Country's share in

'noncmg from own resources. This deflator:i st

Abbreviations and acronyihs ffsed in this report

Community or EC = European Community
Commission of the EC = Commission of the European Communities
Council = Council of the European Communities

ACP = African, Caribbean and Pocific

CEEC = Central and Eastern European Countries

EBRD = European Bank for Reconstruction and Development

ERDF = European Regional Development Fund

GDP/GNP = Gross domestic/national product .

GFCF = Gross fixed capitol formation

LIFE = Financial Instrument for the Environment

LIFFE = lLondon International Financial Futures Exchange

MATIF = Marché & terme international de France (French financial futures and options market)

MEDSPA = Strategy and plon of action for the protection of the environment in the Mediterranean region

METAP = Médfteffanqan Environmental Technical Assistance Pro‘gr‘arhme ,
NCI - = nmur

OAT =
- OCT = 5o

OECD = Orgamsaf/on for Economic Cooperation and Deve/opmenf

oJ = Official Journal of the European Communities

PHARE = Poland and Hungary — Aid for economic restructuring

SMEs = Small and medium-sized enterprises

= data non meaningful
— = inapplicable
p.m. = token entry

Abbreviations used in the list of financing provided within the Community

Italy:  AGIP ~ : Azienda Generale Industria Petroli

Artigiancassa ‘e : Cassa per il Credito alle imprese artigiane

BNL. : Banca Nazionale del Lavoro

Centrobanca -2..Banca Centrale di Credito Popolare o
.. CIs ‘Credito Industriale Sardo K
. Crediop : Consorzio di Credito per le Opere Pubb/tche

Efibanca B : Ente Finanziario Interbancario g

ENEL “ " : Ente Nazionale per [Energia Elettrica

ENI S : Ente Nazionale Idrocarburi

ICLE ‘ : Istituto di Credito per il Lavoro italiano allEstero

Ml : Istituto Mobiliare Italiono

Interbanca : Banca per Finanziamenti a Medjo e Lungo Termine

IRFIS : Istituto Regionale per il Finanziamento alle Industrie in Sicilia

IR : Istituto per la Ricostruzione Industriale

ISVEIMER , : Istituto per lo Sviluppo Economico dellltalia Meridionale

Mediobanca : Banca di Credito Finanziario

Mediocredito Centrale - : Istituto Centrale per il Credito a Medio Termine

SIP : Societd Italiana per I'Esercizio delle Telecomunicazioni

SNAM & Societa Nazionale Metanodotti

Venefondiario . :-Istituto di Credito Fondiario delle Venezie
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